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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Tenwow International Holdings Limited (the
“Company” or "“Tenwow"), | would like to present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

In 2017, the gross domestic product (“GDP") of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) grew by 6.9%
year-over-year. The transformation of the country’s
economy and the restructuring of its retail sector cast
uncertainty over all industries and sectors. Moreover, the
competition between online and physical channels
aggravated the challenging general environment.

The Group pressed on with the development of its own
brands, and also modified the product mix of the third-party
brands to improve its overall business. However, 2017
remained a difficult year. We were faced with enormous
challenges, great difficulties and various internal and
external issues. As a result of our efforts, the third-party
brand business maintained mild growth, but the own-brand
business was under tremendous pressure and the overall
revenue decreased slightly by 3.8% to RMB5,018.4 million,
with the gross profit decreasing by 10.7% to RMB909.0
million. The gross profit margin dropped by 1.4 percentage
points to 18.1%, and the profit attributable to shareholders
(“Shareholders”) decreased by 21.9% to RMB160.0 million.
The profit attributable to Shareholders of the Company
decreased by 21.9% to RMB160.0 million. The dividend
distributed for the year amounted to HK4.26 cents per share
with the dividend payout ratio of 50%, flat with the previous
year.

We have recognized the problems in the past year and are
determined to overcome these difficulties. For this purpose,
we have carefully reviewed the situation and intend to
improve various efficiency indicators through reform:

Firstly, improve production efficiency to reduce production
cost. We will perform full inspection on production
efficiency, procurement cost of raw and auxiliary materials
as well as personnel cost to provide our sales staff with
product sales that are competitive regarding profitability at
the source.
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Secondly, improve management efficiency to reduce
operating cost. Sales and advertising expenses must be
appropriately used while logistics and storage expenses
must be reviewed to reduce logistics cost, so as to improve
the Group's profit.

Thirdly, improve profit per employee to reduce labour cost.
We must dismiss under-qualified employees and recruit
talented employees to give full play to the catfish effect,
improving profit per employee while invigorating the
company.

In 2018, continuing to expand the market for its own-brand
products will remain the key strategy of the Group. We will
continue to innovate in our existing products and develop
new ones to meet the market's demand. Meanwhile, the
Group will step up the expansion and development of its
network of sales channels nationwide. The Group will
reinforce the cooperation with its existing clients and
distributors and continue to increase its products’
penetration in the existing markets. It will also seek more
excellent clients and distributors to further expand its
market shares and sales channels. The Group also intends
to capitalize o ge-of.Qpportunities presented
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

In 2017, China’s food and beverage industry is currently in a
period of structural adjustment and facing significant
changes to consumer demand. Products that succeeded in
the past are now experiencing stagnant or recess in growth.
The emergence of a variety of personalized new products
has made the market more complicated and volatile. This
situation is challenging but also represents opportunities.

REVIEW OF 2017

The Group produces and distributes a wide range of own
brand products and also distributes various products
produced by well-known international and domestic third-
party brands. The Group's products can be divided into four
major categories, namely food and snacks, non-alcoholic
beverages, alcoholic beverages, and other products.

In 2017, alcoholic beverages under both own brand and
third-party brand achieved relatively good performance, but
sales of own brand food and snacks were affected by the
varying dates of Chinese New Year. Meanwhile, own brand
non-alcoholic beverages were facing greater challenges. On
the other hand, the gradual deployment of a new enterprise
resource planning (ERP) system in August 2017 in eastern
China, which accounted for the greatest share of the
Group's revenue, has temporarily affected the business
operation as teams responsible for procurement, sales,
logistics and accounting were still adapting to and adjusting
the new system. Due to the above reasons, overall revenue
of the Group decreased by 3.8% to RMB5,018.4 million,
gross profit decreased by 10.7% to RMB909.0 million, gross
profit margin decreased by 1.4 percentage points to 18.1%,
and profit attributable to shareholders decreased by 21.9%
to RMB160.0 million.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of RMB1.32
cents (equivalent to HK1.55 cents) per share for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: final dividend of RMB0.50
cents (equivalent to HKO.57 cents) per share and a special
dividend of RMB1.86 cents (equivalent to HK2.12 cents) per
share) in cash to the Shareholders. The total dividend
payable for the year amounted to RMB3.63 cents
(equivalent to HK4.26 cents) per share (2016: RMB4.65 cents
(equivalent to HK5.40 cents) per share).
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E 3 REVENUE

TREFWAEEREE -_E—+ER T —KF The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue contribution
+ - A=+—BIFERERSBLRTIEERER by product segments and main product categories for the
SR AER years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016:

BEt+t=-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E2—+tF
2017
AR¥ET
RMB’000 RMB'000

BERMEER own brand products
IS E R Non-alcoholic beverages 603,312 12.0% 712,590 13.7%
B FEERE Alcoholic beverages 464,106 9.3% 447,517 8.6%
RmM&kZR Food and snacks 724,083 14.4% 1,079,812 20.7%
Hth® Others® 49,889 1.0% 42,227 0.7%

1,841,390 36.7% 2,282,146 43.7%
E=FTREER Third-party brand products
BB RS RO Non-alcoholic beverages 51,766 1.0% 39,723 0.8%
SRR Alcoholic beverages 2,537,308 50.6% 2,225,717 42.6%
BEmkER Food and snacks 503,721 10.0% 592,803 11.4%
Efp@ Others? 84,245 1.7% 78,260 1.5%

3,177,040 63.3% 2,936,503 56.3%
F Total 5,018,430 100% 5,218,649 100%
PR - Notes:
1. Heh X EEHEIM] PR AR kB EHE - 1. Primarily includes “Chuan Xiang" Chinese seasonings and packaging

materials.

2. HEhXrEZaiEatARm - 2. Primarily includes household care products.

201744%§  Annual Report 2017 07
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EFREF=ER GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

TREWAEEBRBE-_E—+FR T —RF The table below sets forth the Group's gross profit,

+- R=1—"BUIEEREGRONETEELRER contribution and gross profit margin by product segment

2 DHEF - EFNGEREFZR and main product category for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016:

BEt-B=1-HILEE
Year ended 31 December

i B3 —EE
2017 2016
| 1t Bl 7 fhtk =
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit ~ Contribution margin  Grossprofit  Contribution margin
ARETT % ARBTT %
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
BERBER Own brand products

FERIE Non-alcoholic beverages 210,911 23.2% 35.0% 270921 26.6% 38.0%
EEEE Alcoholic beverages 94,780 10.4% 20.4% 93,269 9.1% 208%
RMEER Food and snacks 205,810 22.6% 28.4% 277,116 27.2% 257%
Hh Other 13,180 1.5% 26.4% 12,824 1.3% 30.4%
524,681 57.7% 28.5% 654,130 64.2% 2.7%

BZRREER Third-party brand products
EERBHE Non-alcoholic beverages 5,929 0.7% 11.5% 3811 0.4% 9.6%
BREH Alcoholic beverages 322,713 35.5% 12.7% 281210 27.6% 12.6%
RmRER Food and snacks 49,406 5.4% 9.8% 71,047 7.0% 12.0%
Hity Other 6,240 0.7% 7.4% 8,040 0.8% 10.3%
384,288 42.3% 12.1% 364,108 35.8% 12.4%
@t Total 908,969 100% 18.1% 1,018,238 100% 19.5%

08 RIBBIFR IR AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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CANTI

THE ITALIAN WINE STYLE

RAMNRIESA &

o

OWN BRAND PRODUCT BUSINESS

In 2017, own brand alcoholic beverages sustained growth.
However, own brand non-alcoholic beverages were facing
different challenges. Moreover, while the varying dates of
Chinese New Year shortened the period for sales of roasted
nuts and seeds and the New Year gift boxes during the
year. Due to these factors, revenue of own brand products
decreased by 19.3% to RMB1,841.4 million. Gross profit
margin decreased by 0.2 percentage points to 28.5%, while
gross profit decreased by 19.8% to RMB524.7 million. In
2017, own brand product business contributed 57.7% of the
Group's total gross profit (2016: 64.2%).

— Alcoholic beverages
The Group's own brand alcoholic beverages, primarily
targeting at the mass market, include imported
bottled wines from ltaly, France and Chile marketed
under the Group's own brands, and own produced
Chinese rice wines. In 2017, revenue generated by the
Group’s own brand alcoholic beverages increased by
3.7% to RMB464.1 million. Imported bottled wine
achieved growth, while Chinese rice wine performed
strongly with a double-digit growth. Meanwhile, the
absence of sales of cocktail in 2017 has partially offset
the year-on-year growth. Gross profit margin of own
brand alcoholic beverages
slightly decreased by 0.4
percentage points to 20.4%,
and gross profit slightly
increased by 1.6% to
- RMB94.8 million.

201744%§  Annual Report 2017 09
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The Group’s own brand imported wines mainly target
at the low-end to mid-range market segments.
Currently, the mass market is still relatively
favourable, and the Group will continue to adhere to
the strategy of “small profit and quick returns”, and
step up its efforts in exploring more distribution
channels to expand its market for better economies
of scale. For Chinese rice wines, the Group launched
the "& A A 3% 5" series in a bid to reposition its
Chinese rice wines as trendy and fashionable
products to attract the younger generation.

Food and snacks

The Group’s own brand food and snacks mainly
include products (such as roasted nuts and seeds,
gift boxes, preserved fruits and meat snacks)
sold under the Group's flagship “Tenwow” brand
and its sub-brands (such as “Tenwow Ideas” (" XIE*
&), "Tenwow e-ldeas” ("X & Fe"), "Nuts’ Manor”
("8 B3 E"), and “lingchao Family” (“#5 ¥t "))
and products sold under its other own brands (such
as the “Morning Smile” (" £ 25 ") oatmeal series).

:
g
i
i
i
i
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|
|
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Revenue of own brand food and snacks decreased by
32.9% to RMB724.1 million in 2017 due to the varying
dates of Chinese New Year in different years. The
Chinese New Year in 2017 was on 28 January, which
was earlier than that in 2016 on 8 February. This
shortened the sales period of 2017 Chinese New Year
peak season by 11 days. On the other hand, the
Chinese New Year in 2018 was on 16 February, which
was 19 days later than that in 2017. These shifts of
the dates of the Chinese New Year shortened the
sales period of peak season before the Chinese New
Year by 30 days. Generally speaking, the length of the
peak season before the Chinese New Year has
greater impact on the sales performance of roasted
nuts and seeds and New Year gift boxes. Gross profit
margin of own brand food and snacks increased by
2.7 percentage points to 28.4%, mainly because the
Group proactively adjusted its channels and began to
gradually cover modern retail channel of eastern
China by itself. Gross profit decreased by 25.7% to
RMB205.8 million.

During the year, the Group has made great efforts to
develop the vast online market. The Group’s
preserved fruits, especially Han Huamei (“$% 3% #§"),
were well received by the online market. In terms of
new product, the Group combines different packaged
goods and preserved fruits into beautifully packaged
“Tenwow e-ldeas” gift boxes targeting at different
customers, and achieved remarkable results.
“Tenwow e-Ideas” will keep launching different new
products to cater to the evolving tastes of consumers.

201744,  Annual Report 2017 11
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Non-alcoholic beverages

The own brand non-alcoholic beverages comprise
ready-to-drink beverages such as “Fruit Tea” series,
“Charcoal Roasted” series, “Barno” coffee series,
"VitC VItE" series, “Tenwow Idea” series, “Pure Tea”
series, as well as bottled water series such as “Tribute

=

Spring” ("&£ & £ ") and "My Favourite Water” (" /£x7K").

In 2017, revenue of own brand non-alcoholic
beverages decreased by 15.3% to RMB603.3 million,
mainly because of the sales decline of “VitC VitE"
series and the lower sales in certain core markets
(such as Hunan and lJiangxi) due to abnormal weather
in the second quarter of 2017. With the exception of
“VitC VItE" series, major product series performed
well in sales. Among which, “Charcoal Roasted”
series grew satisfactorily, notwithstanding its
relatively smaller sales base was only able to partially
offset the overall decline. Gross profit declined 22.2%
to RMB210.9 million, while gross profit margin
decreased by 3.0 percentage points to 35.0%. The
decline in gross profit margin was mainly due to the
sales decline of “VitC VitE"” series, which has a
relatively higher gross profit margin; the increase in
raw material costs; and as overall sales declined,
some fixed cost items (such as depreciation) have
contributed to higher unit cost of sales.

KIEEFRIZAAIRAT » Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Regarding the performance of major series, “Fruit
Tea" series remained stable; “Charcoal Roasted”
series was relaunched and positive responses were
received following its adjustment last year, the high-
end "Barno” coffee series targeting at tier-one cities
have achieved satisfactory results.

Other products

Other own brand products include “Chuan Xiang” (*)!1
8 ") brand sauces and flavorings, groceries and
preserved food products as well as related packaging
materials. In 2017, the revenue, gross profit margin
and gross profit generated by the Group’s other
product categories under its own brands was
RMB49.9 million, 26.4% and RMB13.2 million
respectively. The sales of “Chuan Xiang” declined,
packaging material sustained its growth, while sales
of groceries and preserved food products increased
substantially from a relatively smaller base.

201744,  Annual Report 2017 13
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THIRD-PARTY BRAND PRODUCT BUSINESS

In 2017, the revenue from third-party brand product
increased by 8.2% to RMB3,177.0 million, which was in line
with expectations. Revenue of third-party product
categories other than food and snacks, i.e. alcoholic
beverages, other products (mainly household care products)
and non-alcoholic beverages, all recorded growth. Costs of
sales of third-party brand products mainly comprised the
purchase costs paid to brand owners. Costs of sales
increased by 8.6% to RMB2,792.8 million. Gross profit
margin decreased by 0.3 percentage points to 12.1%, while
gross profit increased by 5.5% to RMB384.3 million.

Alcoholic beverages

Third-party brand alcoholic beverage products include
spirits, wine, Chinese wine and beer, etc. The Group
distributes a wide range of international and domestic
brands, including Martell, Hennessy, Remy Martin,
Carlo Rossi, Imperial Court, Maotai and other alcoholic
beverages.

Revenue of third-party brand alcoholic beverages
increased by 14.0% to RMB2,537.3 million. Gross profit
margin slightly increased by 0.1 percentage point to
12.7%, while gross profit of third-party alcoholic
beverages increased by 14.8% to RMB322.7 million.
The Group continued to optimize its product portfolio
of third-party brand alcoholic beverages in response
to market conditions. Chinese wine, spirits and beer
achieved satisfactory growth, while sales of wine
remained stable.

Food and shacks

Third-party brand food and snhacks include, amongst
others, Nestle, Wrigley, Dove, Kraft and Glico. The
tough overall market environment, coupled with the
Group's strategy for proactively adjusting its portfolio
of third-party brand food and snhacks products in a bid
to pool resources in expanding its own branded
business, has leading to a 15.0% decline in revenue to
RMB503.7 million. Gross profit margin decreased by
2.2 percentage points to 9.8%, while gross profit
decreased by 30.5% to RMB49.4 million.
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— Non-alcoholic beverages

Third-party brand non-alcoholic beverages, which
account for a relatively small proportion of the
Group's business, currently include, amongst others,
Mogu Mogu coconut jelly drink, Red Bull energy drinks
and Saratoga spring water. In 2017, third-party brand
non-alcoholic beverages generated revenue of
RMB51.8 million and gross profit of RMB5.9 million
with gross profit margin of 11.5%. Third-party brand
non-alcoholic beverages is not a core operation of the
Group.

— Other products

The other third-party brand product category mainly
comprises Unilever household care products. In 2017,
sales of other products under the third-party brands
generated RMB84.2 million in revenue and RMB6.2
million in gross profit with gross profit margin of 7.4%.
Other third-party brand products are not core
operation of the Group.

REVENUE BY SALES CHANNELS

The Group distributed its own brand and third-party brand
products through direct sales which include four main sales
channels, and distributors which comprise Nanpu Food
(Group) Co., Ltd. ("Nanpu”) and third-party distributors.
Nanpu is the largest distributor of the Group. The Group has
been actively developing its own distribution channels over
the years. As Nanpu’s sole nationwide distribution rights for
the Group’s own brand non-alcoholic beverages expired,
and the Group began to cover modern retail channel of
eastern China by itself, revenue contribution from Nanpu
reduced from 44.8% in 2010 to 7.4% in 2017.
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The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue contribution
by retail channels for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016:

TRHEWAEBRHEZE - ZT—+tFR T —RF
+ A=+ HULFERTEREESHIKRATE :

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—+tF

2017

AR®T R
RMB’000

HiHRE Direct channels

BIgRRE M On-premise channels® 838,652 16.7% 711,546 13.6%
WREEO Modern retail channels® 675,659 13.5% 738,298 14.1%
mmEEe Small business channels® 357,207 7.1% 459,755 8.8%
Hihz=E@ Other channels® 369,717 7.4% 243,348 4.7%
NEE Sub-total 2,241,235 44.7% 2,152,947 41.2%
WAl L5 Distributors

[E2pRe Nanpu® 369,549 7.4% 1,110,557 21.3%
EZFDHEE Third-party distributors 2,407,646 47.9% 1,955,145 37.5%
NEE Sub-total 2,777,195 55.3% 3,065,702 58.8%
Het Total 5,018,430 100.0% 5,218,649 100.0%
BIEE - Notes:

(1 BEAKMNERBHERMEHER DS RIKHE IR 4L Q) Includes chain restaurants, hotels, and leisure and entertainment
5P locations that provide dine-in services for the Group’s products.

2 BIREEAES  EHBH REFE - ) Includes chain hypermarkets, chain supermarkets and chain

convenience stores.

€) PREMBEPLREETER - @) Includes wholesale centres and various retail stores.
(4 FEAHEENEE - (4) Primarily includes group purchase and online sales.
(5) BUR MR EBEBA - (5) Nanpu and its associates.

16 RIBBIFR IR AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS

The table below sets forth the Group's revenue contribution
by sales in different geographic locations for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016:

BEt+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—+tF
2017
AR%ET
RMB’000
ER MR Eastern China 3,205,822 63.8% 3,146,126 60.3%
S Central China 1,001,259 20.0% 1,103,366 21.1%
EEHE Southern China 386,438 7.7% 419,427 8.0%
FEHbih @ Northern China 215,879 4.3% 331,994 6.4%
ey Western China 209,032 4.2% 217,736 4.2%
st Total 5,018,430 100.0% 5,218,649 100.0%
o 88 K AN DISTRIBUTION COSTS

DHEKATERERDHEHBEBNES M EER
X ITERBHNNEGES - —T—+F  AEEH
DHRAIZFETKS6BEIARKEA45FET - HiH
BRAS KB U A 8.3% (Z B —7X4F : 8.4%) » 7 #HA A
THRETEANESAIAERD  BXEEHEN
EF - TERRHM LT - HIEER D BKIE - NREENE
ERERRBEELTHE  EHHNAEEREDF
REER ERAZTIENINUEE  BRERRESH
HEE  GTHERRCRHEE  BEREEHEE  ES
KBRS EAMBELDE - AEER T —RFH
HETEENHEEBEMEFERRE  £—FER
BEH - BHERRARBANE _FEIRAKE
BEL NME-T—tFRKG AEBEATEEE
RitReBRARE  RAFREEBABER - UK
AEREGERRABERBMEM -

Distribution costs primarily include advertising and
promotion expenses, wages and benefits, and
transportation expenses, etc. related to the distribution
activities. In 2017, the Group’s distribution costs decreased
by 5.6% to RMB414.5 million, which accounted for 8.3% of
the Group’s revenue (2016: 8.4%). The decrease in
distribution costs was mainly due to the significant
decrease in advertising expenses, which was partially offset
by the increase in transportation expenses, and increase in
wages and benefits. Advertising and promotion costs
decreased substantially as the Group proactively adjusted
its market strategy by shifting its focus from traditional
television commercials to diversified new media and offline
promotional campaigns at points of sales in order to reach
the consumers directly. For transportation expenses and
staff costs, it was a transitional period in the first quarter of
2016 when the Group started to distribute its own brand
non-alcoholic beverages nationwide. Related transportation
expenses and staff costs were gradually incurred since the
second quarter of 2016. The transportation expenses and
staff costs further increased in 2017 because the Group
began to cover modern retail channel in eastern China by
itself and the significant growth in online sales.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses consist primarily of wages and
benefits for management and administrative staff, and
depreciation expenses associated with property, facilities
and equipment for administrative purposes, etc. The
Group's administrative expenses increased by 9.1% to
RMB202.3 million, which accounted for 4.0% of the Group’s
revenue (2016: 3.6%). Increase in administrative expenses
was primarily due to increase in average wages and
benefits, increase in depreciation that resulted from the
Group’s increased fixed assets, and increase in rental fees
incurred by more regional offices opened across China.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s financial costs primarily include bank loan
interests and handling charges less interests income on
bank deposits. In 2017, net finance costs increased by
13.7% to RMB98.2 million. This was primarily due to the
increase in the amount of borrowings.

SHARE OF PROFIT OF NANPU

Due to the tough overall market environment, both revenue
and profit margins at Nanpu decreased in 2017, resulting in
a significant decrease in the Group's share of profit of
Nanpu to RMB716,000 (2016: RMB9.0 million).

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
decreased by 21.9% to RMB160.0 million in 2017.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s funds and capital required for operations are
primarily from internal resources and loans provided by the
Group’s principal banks.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank deposits and
cash balance in the amount of RMB1,652.0 million (31
December 2016: RMB1,671.5 million), with Renminbi
accounted for approximately 87.0%. As at 31 December
2017, the Group had total borrowings in the amount of
RMB2,732.4 million (31 December 2016: RMB2,305.0
million). Approximately 79.9% of these borrowings were for
terms of less than 1 year. The majority of the Group’s
borrowings were in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar, with
Renminbi accounting for 83.2%.
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The net borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2017
(total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash) was RMB1,080.4 million (31 December
2016: RMB633.5 million). The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31
December 2017 was 24.8% (31 December 2016: 16.3%).

The Group has sufficient cash and credit lines from banks to
meet its future operation needs. The management is also
prepared to make prudent arrangements and decisions in
response to the changes in domestic and international
financial environments.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the SEHK on 17 September 2013 with net proceeds from
the global offering of approximately HK$1,714.2 million (after
deducting underwriting commissions and related expenses).
According to the intended usage as set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 5 September 2013 (the
"Prospectus”), the amount utilized as at 31 December
2017 was HK$1,605.8 million. The unutilized portion
included HK$69.8 million for expansion of production
capacity of the existing facilities and construction of new
production facilities, and HK$38.6 million for research and
development (such as purchasing research equipment and
hiring qualified research and development personnel). The
Company has no intention to use the remaining net
proceeds contrary to the description as stated in the
Prospectus.

USE OF PROCEED FROM SHARE
SUBSCRIPTION OF MARKET GENIUS
LIMITED

On 19 December 2016, a total of 132,358,000 shares were
allotted and issued by the Company to Market Genius
Limited, a company owned by an investment fund advised
and managed by a subsidiary of Fosun International Limited.
The net proceeds from the subscription, after deduction of
the related expenses, were approximately HK$319.1 million.
The amount utilized as at 31 December 2017 was HK$171.3
million. The unutilized portion included HK$147.8 million for
capital expenditure. The Company has no intention to use
the remaining net proceeds contrary to the description as
stated in the announcement dated 9 November 2016.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

In 2017, the Group's capital expenditures and investments
amounted to RMB164.8 million (2016: RMB155.5 million),
which primarily included the expenditures for construction
costs and equipment for Chengdu production base,
construction costs and equipment for warehouses and
logistics in Putian production base, and equipment for
Wuhan production base. The Group's fixed asset
investments in the short term will mainly be the office
buildings in Shanghai production base, construction costs
and equipment for Chengdu production base, construction
costs for warehouses and logistics in Putian production
base, and phase 2 of Changxing water production base. The
Group’s capital commitments relating to building,
equipment and land was RMB285.6 million as at 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: RMB203.7 million).

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The following table sets forth the Group's key financial
ratios for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2017:

BE1+t=-A=1+—BHLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—E —T—REF

2017 2016

FEF) =% Gross profit margin 18.1% 19.5%

D RS Operating margin 6.5% 7.2%

NATESRSB AEMLFIESE  Margin of profit attributable to the equity

holders of the Company 3.2% 3.9%

—E—tF —E—RF

t=A=+—-8A +=A=+—H

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

e R Current ratio 1.52 1.48

HmEpLE =& Quick ratio 1.26 1.26

BARBELE Gearing ratio* 24.8% 16.3%
* BRABELER=FED - (BEREBE+FEDR * Gearing ratio = net borrowings + (total equity + net borrowings)
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INVENTORY ANALYSIS

The Group's inventory primarily includes finished products,
followed by raw materials and packaging materials, as well
as work-in-process products. As at 31 December 2017,
inventory and inventory turnover days were RMB1,079.2
million (31 December 2016. RMB869.4 million) and 85 days
(31 December 2016: 74 days) respectively. Alcoholic
beverages, household care products and accessories have
longer shelf life and accounted for over 65% of the
inventory. The increase in inventories was mainly from
alcoholic beverages, foods and snacks. Due to the strong
demand for alcoholic beverages, and the arrival of peak
season for own brand gift boxes and roasted nuts and
seeds in early 2018, the Group has stocked more finished
products.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group's trade receivables refer to the Group’s accounts
receivable from its customers. As at 31 December 2017,
trade receivables balance and trade receivables turnover
days were RMB2,128.3 million (31 December 2016:
RMB2,025.8 million) and 149 days (31 December 2016: 147
days) respectively. The increases in both trade receivables
and turnover days were due to the delayed payment by
certain quality customers (such as customers in modern
retail channels and on-premise channels) and distributors
amid the challenging retailing environment.

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group’s trade payables primarily include payment due
to suppliers of third-party brand products, raw materials
and outsourced products. As at 31 December 2017, trade
payables and trade payable turnover days were RMB1,225.4
million (31 December 2016: RMB1,203.7 million) and 106
days (31 December 2016: 97 days) respectively. The trade
payable turnover days increased because the Group
deferred its payments to certain suppliers after considering
the status of their trade receivables in order to ensure
greater flexibility in cash flow management.

201744 o AnnualReport2017 21



TEEENWR DN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SNEE B2
REBALHEEOUARSEE  MARETH

BREABABING - ARBERFANKSHARNEED
EEWBENEMNERTHNTZE - AEBENTEEH
AT EHNE R o B AR R E PR 2 [E XK B
PRl - B2 E M RN ERT RSN BRR A
HEERE ARE/KERERIINEEMEONUER
REELARARENEELRE AKRBEHBEK
RINZEEZBENTELEERR S TTEHRY
B2 RENEBEXRERAERMENR RN S BE
.t BREREPESHBLUHTA -

HRER
R-Z—tER-_T-—R"FT-_A=+—H KL
BPRERETMFENHI/AREKIIABETLARE
10BEETHE T LHEREEEY - AEEAEHN
REREIHEAREARETEL MARNZE
ENEBEET D A S8 - RALBRNEERMF
R AEL R

EEIEH

RZE—+tF+-A=+—8 EEFEEGEAEA
R¥5671EETHMERE « T HF AU RS
BRECIEREFRNERY (ZE—A"EF+ZA=+—
H:6191H&T) °

ANERMNE T H

RZE—tF+-A=+—8 XEERFERNH
REEKERIWEZEEE(ZTS—X~"F+=A
=+—B:3646%)  —E—+tF BEFHAAR
MoN2BEEL(ZT—RF : ARK26525ET) °
AEERBEERESZHMN - KB - KB MRE
MEEEETEENIE  AEBRHEETEKES
5 URBEEIXRARAEEN B RE
RANA R B IR AT B B AR -

22

KIEEFEIER B AR * Tenwow International Holdings Limited

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The majority of the Group's transactions are settled in
Renminbi, which is not a free-floating currency. The
fluctuation of exchange rate of Renminbi during the year did
not have any material impact on the Group’s performance.
The Group will periodically review its foreign currency risks.
Although the Group is exposed to minimal exchange rate
fluctuation risks, the Group will use foreign exchange
forward contracts for risk management and to control the
Group's assets and liabilities when interest or exchange
rate is uncertain or fluctuation or whenever it is suitable.
The Group's policy is not to engage in speculative derivative
financial transactions and not to invest the current capital in
financial products with significant underlying leverage or
risk, including hedge funds or similar instruments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group
was still in the process of renewing certificates for certain
land use rights with net book value amounting to RMBO0.9
million and RMB1.0 million, respectively. The Group might
incur certain obligations in connection with such application
of land use rights certificates. Since the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, no
provision was made in the consolidated financial
statements.

PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, buildings, land use rights, and
machinery and equipment with net book value of RMB567.1
million were pledged for borrowings (31 December 2016:
RMB619.1 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES AND STAFF
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 3,509
employees in the PRC and Hong Kong (31 December 2016:
3,646 employees). In 2017, employee remuneration was
RMB291.2 million (2016: RMB265.2 million). The Group's
employees and Directors are remunerated with reference
to their position, performance, experience and prevailing
salary trends in the market. The Group provides
professional management training to employees, and offers
incentives and share options pursuant to the Company'’s
share option scheme based on the employees’
performance and the Group's profits.
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PROSPECTS

The year of 2018 is expected to be full of challenges like
2017. As domestic and international economic environment
remains uncertain, the Chinese government has adopted
various policies to ensure steady progress in the overall
economy and to safeguard employment. Many
circumstances will remain uncertain in the short term, but
in the long run, the rising salary and purchasing power will
be able to drive the overall consumer market. With the huge
potential of China’s consumer market, the Group believes
that there are still ample opportunities up for grabs in the
food and beverage market.

FUTURE STRATEGIES

In order to grasp the opportunities in the PRC's market for
packaged food and beverage, the Group will continue to
leverage its own competitive advantages to develop its
businesses. The details of the Group's strategies for
development in the future are as follows:

Continue to Strengthen Own Brand Products
Business

The Group has always focused on the development of its
own brand products. It will continue to enrich the portfolio
of its own brand products while further strengthening the
market position of existing product offerings. Structural
adjustments will be carried out according to market demand
to phase out stock keeping units with unsatisfactory
performance, while efforts will be made to facilitate
continuous innovation and promotion of new, trendy and
healthy products. The Group will strengthen the market
penetration and fine tune every aspects to bring about new
growth to own brand products business.
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Continue to Optimize Distribution Networks
and Enhance Business Presence Nationwide

In order to tap into the end consumers’ increasing demand
in the PRC, the Group has achieved some success in
extending its market coverage via expansion of distribution
networks. In the future, the Group will focus on cultivating
the markets of certain core regions with huge potential,
while further solidifying its existing distribution networks.
The Group has strategically established production bases in
various regions across China for the production and sales
of its own brand non-alcoholic beverages, foods and snacks
locally in order to achieve the “local sales” business model.
This model enables the Group to make flexible adjustment
to its production capacity according to changes in the
markets and meet demand promptly. The Group will focus
on optimizing the operating efficiency of these production
bases in a bid to achieve cost savings. In terms of channel
expansion, by improving the special sales channels, on-
premise channels, modern retail channels and small
business channels, the Group will seek to build up more
effective points of sales that can serve as a platform for
distributing fast-moving consumer goods efficiently. This is
the Group’s plan for facilitating the sales of its products
through diverse sales channels.

Marketing Strategy Through Diverse Media

The Group's marketing strategy mainly comprised of online
marketing and offline activities. Over the past few years, the
Group has put significant effort in television commercials
and other online media to build up brand recognition of
Tenwow products. In the future, the Group will adjust its
marketing strategy proactively by shifting its focus from
traditional television commercial advertising to diversified
offline and new media in order to reach the consumers
directly.
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Expand Online Market to Boost Online Sales
The fast-growing online channels developed rapidly with
vast potential. This new mode of distribution has already
altered customer’s habit. To grasp this huge opportunity,
the Group has devoted itself in developing both online sales
channels and special product lines for the online market,
and launched a variety of online promotional activities in
different seasons to expand market share. The Han Huamei
series of the Group were already among the top sellers in
Tmall. The Group will continue to develop online sales
channels rationally and in an orderly manner so that online
and offline sales channels can complement each other to
promote high-quality Tenwow products to more customers.
In order to cope with market changes, new products of the
Group will be launched in the online sales channels first to
test the market responses and catch customers’ attention.
If such products are proven to be highly popular online with
huge potential, they will be gradually rolled out in offline
market for synergies.

Look for Opportunities for Business Expansion
To expand its business further, the Group will continue to
seek opportunities for acquisitions and cooperation
according to criteria such as the brand recognition,
business prospects, compatibility with the Group's existing
products, sales channel coverage, management team and
transaction price. The Group believes that suitable
acquisitions or cooperation can further improve its value
chain, facilitate the exploration of additional distribution
channels and add new products to its offerings, and acquire
new experience and expertise. Acquisitions and
cooperation will also provide a springboard for the Group to
diversify into different product categories in the future,
helping to enhance the Group's market position and enlarge
its market share.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board of the Company is committed to achieving high
corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance
standards are essential in providing a framework for the
Company to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, to
enhance corporate value, to formulate its business
strategies and policies, and to enhance its transparency
and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board is of the view that throughout the year under
review, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for code
provision A.2.1 which states that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Related details are set
out in the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” below.

The Company will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure that these will
continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code and the
rising expectations of the Shareholders and investors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has also established written guidelines of no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for securities
transactions by employees (the "Employees Written
Guidelines”) who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.
No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and should take decisions
objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required
from a Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company, and whether the Director is spending sufficient
time performing them.

The Board currently comprises eleven Directors, consisting
of five executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
four independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Jianhua, Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer, Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and member of the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Lin Qi

Mr. Lam Hang Boris, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary

Mr. Yeung Yue Ming

Ms. Au Lai Hang

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Zhao
Mr. Yan Zhixiong

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong, member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee

Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren, Chairman of the Audit
Committee

Mr. Wang Longgen, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee

Mr. Shen Yalong

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 95 to 104 of this annual report.

The relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the
respective Director’s biography under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 95 and 104 of
this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
held by Mr. Lin Jianhua. Mr. Lin was appointed as Chief
Executive Officer on 22 March 2017 when Mr. Wang Juewei,
the former Chief Executive Officer resigned. Mr. Lin is the
founder of the Group and has over 24 years of experience
in the food and beverage industry. He is very familiar with
the Group's business and thus is the ideal candidate for the
role of chief executive officer. The Board believes that this
arrangement will enable the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly, and to achieve the
Company's objectives efficiently and effectively. The Board
will review the current situation from time to time and will
make necessary arrangements when the Board considers
appropriate.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board
with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in
respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of 3 years, subject to renewal after the expiry
of the then current term.

The Company's articles of association (“Articles of
Association”) provides that all Directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by Shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment.
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Under the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if
their number is not three of a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company, and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees,
leads and provides direction to management by laying
down strategies and overseeing their implementation,
monitors the Group's operational and financial
performance, and ensures that sound internal control and
risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible
for ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the
Company and providing a balance in the Board for bringing
effective independent judgement on corporate actions and
operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company and may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.
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REPORT

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage
on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal
actions taken against Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage
would be reviewed on an annual basis.

Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments
and changes in order to effectively perform their
responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements. Such induction shall be
supplemented by visits to the Company’s key plant sites
and meetings with senior management of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors would be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics would be provided to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
organized training sessions conducted by qualified
professionals for all Directors. Such training sessions cover
a wide range of relevant topics including directors’ duties
and responsibilities, corporate governance and update on
Listing Rule amendments, etc. In addition, relevant reading
materials including directors’ manual, legal and regulatory
update, seminar handouts and business development have
been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying.
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REZE-ZT—+HF+-_A=+—"HILFE EFE The record of continuous professional development relating

RN EHMEEBENEENEGRERENSEREL to director’s duties and regulatory and business

Rr ey mT development that have been received by the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2017 are summarized as
follows:

EHIERE

Directors Type of Training Nete
BITES Executive Directors
WREL A Mr. Lin Jianhua A B
MEFEEO Mr. Lin Qi A B
FHEELEED Mr. Wang Juewei® B
A Mr. Lam Hang Boris A B
BB Mr. Yeung Yue Ming A B
REVEZ+ Ms. AU Lai Hang A B
FHTES Non-Executive Directors
285 E Mr. Liu Zhao A B
B R I 4 A D Mr. Yan Zhixiongt® B
BIFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
B REE Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong A B
REFELE Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren A B
FRERSLAE Mr. Wang Longgen A B
TLERRESE A ™ Mr. Shen Yalong® A B

iy MHFEER-_Z—+F=-_A-_+_RHEZEIA ()  Mr. Lin Qi was appointed as executive Director on 22
WITES March 2017

iy ITEBAAR-_Z—tF=ZA-+-HEITH (i) Mr. wang Juewei resigned as executive Director on 22
TER March 2017

(iiy EEHELER-_ZT—tF-_A-_+-_HEZT (i) Mr. Yan Zhixiong was appointed as non-executive
RIFMITES Director on 22 March 2017

(v, MEEEER_ZE—tF=_A-_+-_HEZT (iv)  Mr. Shen Yalong was appointed as independent non-

RENIFRTES executive Director on 22 March 2017

s Note:

EFIER Types of Training

A SHEIRRE  BEETRABNE - fide  @EkEE A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
It seminars, conferences and workshops

B: BB ERETR  RE - 87 #EEETY B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and

relevant publications
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.
The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and are available to the Shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit
Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren, Mr. Liu
Chang-Tzong and Mr. Wang Longgen. Mr. Cheung Yui Kai
Warren is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems,
effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope of audit
and appointment of external auditor, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to review the interim and
annual financial results and reports and significant issues
on the financial reporting, operational and compliance
controls, the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function,
appointment of external auditor and relevant scope of
works and, connected transactions and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice
without the presence of the executive Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Wang Longgen, independent non-executive
Director, Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong, independent non-executive
Director, and Mr. Lin Jianhua, executive Director. Mr. Wang
Longgen is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Lin Jianhua has been appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee when Mr. Wang Juewei resigned
as member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company on 22 March 2017.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
of no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management; and
establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure of the Company, and the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior
management and other related matters.

The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference
to their experience, qualifications, responsibilities involved
in the Company and the prevailing market conditions.
Details of emoluments of Directors for the year under
review are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements. The emoluments paid to senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out
below:

EREEEAR

Number of
Senior Management

=T &= AR 500,000 7T Nil to RMB500,000 4
AR 500,001 L= A R ¥ 1,000,000 7T RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 3
AR #1,000,000 7T A Over RMB1,000,000 2

FHZBE MR AFEMZEZNIT  FFRTRIB
VHERTEEZRBAORTTRAESTSREE

The Remuneration Committee also made recommendations
to the Board on the terms of service contract and letters of
appointment of the new executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors appointed during the
year.
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Nomination Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lin
Jianhua, executive Director, Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong,
independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Wang
Longgen, independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lin
Jianhua is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects as well
as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in the
Company's Board diversity policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience etc. The Nomination Committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider
the candidate’s character, qualifications, experience,
independence and other relevant criteria necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee met once to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for re-
election at the annual general meeting and to consider and
recommend to the Board on the appointment of Mr. Lin Qi
as executive Director, Mr. Yan Zhixiong as non-executive
Director and Mr. Shen Yalong as independent non-executive
Director. The Nomination Committee considered an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board
is maintained.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and
Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2017 is
set out in the table below:

HE/BRRH
Attendance/Number of Meetings

BREAFAE

RRZES HHEES ENEES Annual

Nomination Remuneration Audit General

Name of Director Committee Committee Committee Meeting

Mg Lin Jianhua 4/4 1/1 N/A N/A n

FEBER-F—+4F  Wangluewei 1n N/A 111 N/A N/A

=AZ+ZHEF)  (Resignedon 22 March 2017)

LSS Lam Hang Boris 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 111

BHMHR-E—+E  LnQ 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
=A ;I; REZT)  (Appointed on 22 March 2017)

BE#% Yeung Yue Ming 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/1

BENE Au Lai Hang 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 7

2181 Liu Zhao 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/1

BEM (A =F—+% Yan Zhixiong 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 1"
=A-+-BEZ{F) (Appointed on 22 March 2017)

A Liu Chang-Tzong 44 7N il 3/3 0/1

REE Cheung Yui Kai Warren 4/4 N/A N/A 33 111

TER Wang Longgen 4/4 1/1 1/1 3/3 01

MDE(R=E—tF ShenVYalong 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 0/1

=A-+-BEZ{) (Appointedon 22 March 2017)

RER BEFEHIERIN TRTEFATES (B
EEUIFNTER) ARZRERTETHRENES -

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meeting with the non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) without the presence
of executive Directors during the year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or 10ss.

The Board regularly reviews and makes improvements to
the risk management and internal control systems. Major
risk areas are identified, assessed and monitored and risk
mitigation plans are formulated and corrective measures
implemented.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Company's strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Various risk management procedures and guidelines with
defined authority for implementation by key business
processes and office functions have been developed and
adopted by the Company.

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems have been developed with the following principles,
main features and processes:

All divisions conducted internal control assessment
regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the
business of the Group and various aspects including key
operational and financial processes, project management,
sales and leasing, human resources, information technology
and security and regulatory compliance are covered.
Evaluation has been conducted to confirm that control
policies are properly complied with by each division.
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The management, in coordination with division heads,
assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide
treatment plans, and monitor the risk management
progress.

Risk management reports on all findings and the
effectiveness of the systems are collated and reported to
the Audit Committee and the Board. The management has
confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for providing
the internal audit function and performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems. The Internal
Audit Department examined key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provided
its findings and recommendations for improvement to the
Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as
the management report and the internal audit findings,
oversees the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis, and has reviewed the
risk management and internal control systems, including
the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the
year ended 31 December 2017, and considered that such
systems are effective and adequate. The annual review also
covered the financial reporting and internal audit function
and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guideline to the Company’s Directors,
officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling and disseminating inside information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that

unauthorized access and use of inside information are
strictly prohibited.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
from pages 105 to 112.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to RMB3,580,000. Non-audit
service fee of RMB100,000 was also paid to the external
auditor of the Company in relation to the provision of
advisory service for the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board appointed Mr. Lam Hang Boris as its Company
Secretary in accordance with the Articles of Association
and in compliance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Lam
complied with the professional training requirement of
taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training as set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary on corporate governance and board
practices and matters.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various
communication channels and a shareholders’
communication policy is in place to ensure that
Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights,
separate resolution should be proposed for each
substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Director. All resolutions put
forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange
after each general meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, any
member who wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring director at a general meeting for election as director
of the Company may lodge a notice in writing of the
intention to propose that person for election as director and
a notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be
elected at the Head Office at Suite 1101, 11th Floor, 28
Hennessy Road, Hong Kong or at the Registration Office of
the Company at Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
period for lodgment of the notices will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to
the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

Shareholders who wish to put forward other proposals at
general meetings may follow the procedures set out above
to request the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for the transaction of business specified in
the requisition.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the
Company, Shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal
Or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address:  Suite 1101, 11th Floor, 28 Hennessy Road,
Hong Kong
For the attention of the Company Secretary
Fax: (852) 2808 1721
Email: enguiry@tenwowfood.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice
or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2808 1972 for
assistance if required.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other
general meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors
(or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date
version of the Articles of Association is available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The Company prepared the Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) Report (the “ESG Report”) in accordance
with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the "ESG Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The ESG Report covers the
Company’s main business segments of preserved fruits,
roasted nuts and seeds, beverages, and others, and the
reporting period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.
It outlines our philosophy, practice, measures and
accomplishments for sustainable development and social
responsibility from both environmental and social
perspectives, and reflects our full responses to issues that
stakeholders care about as well as our resolution to persist
with sustainable development. In the ESG Report, the
Company disclosed the key performance indicators in
environmental area according to requirements set out in
the ESG Guide, covering the Company's production bases in
Shanghai, Fujian, Wuhan, Inner Mongolia and Changxing, as
well as Royal Winery. The intensity of the environmental key
performance indicators in the ESG Report was calculated in
million RMB revenue.

The Board supports all the Company’s commitments to
performing corporate social responsibility, and has overall
responsibility for the ESG strategies and reporting of the
Company. The Board is also responsible for assessing and
determining the ESG risks that the Company is exposed to,
and ensures the Company establishes adequate and
effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems. The management of the Company is responsible
for confirming effectiveness of relevant ESG systems with
the Board.

The Company established an ESG workgroup to implement
comprehensive ESG management. The workgroup consists
of employees from the Administration Department, the
Human Resources Department, the Procurement
Department, the Research and Development and Quality
Control Department, as well as the Legal Department.
Officers-in-charge of these departments were directly
appointed as members of the workgroup. Dedicated
employees were designated to be responsible for ESG
management and reporting. The Company attaches great
importance to communication with stakeholders, and
established effective communication channels with
stakeholders including shareholders, employees, suppliers
and consumers, with the aim of discussing and responding
to ESG issues that stakeholders care about.
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AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

GREEN OPERATION AND COORDINATED
DEVELOPMENT

The Company continuously enhanced its awareness of
green development and incorporated environmental
management into its corporate operation and management,
in order to continuously promote local environmental
protection and pollution prevention and treatment, and
reduce environmental impact of the Company’s production
and operation. An environmental protection management
committee has been established and the respective general
manager of each industrial park has been appointed as
chairman member in order to facilitate and supervise the
environmental protection activities of the Company. An
environmental impact assessment shall be conducted for
any new construction, expansion and reconstruction
projects of the Company prior to commencement of
construction in accordance with the environmental impact
assessment regulations implemented by the government.
The Company shall make prior investigation into, prediction
and assessment of the location and design of any
construction projects and their potential adverse impacts
on environment after being put into operation, and shall
also put forward prevention and treatment measures.
During the construction process, the environmental
management department is responsible for the supervision
of the implementation of the prevention and treatment
measures suggested in the environmental impact
assessment. When assessing any project, the construction
department shall take into consideration the prevention and
treatment measures suggested in the environmental impact
assessment, and shall adopt these treatment measures
suggested or those superior thereto. The Company shall
also strictly implement the “three simultaneity” system for
environmental protection purpose, namely the
environmental protection facilities of all newly-built, rebuilt
and expanded capital construction projects and
technological transformation projects shall be designed,
constructed and put into operation simultaneously with the
main works.
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REFFSLAYNESE HEMEE
The Group made gradual improvement to techniques and
equipment that produce waste water. The environmental
protection personnel should record the category, quantity
and concentration of discharged pollutant required.
757K
Sewage

AT E

Radioactive substances
B G IEIR e R A st BR E AS AR B BT R
EkE - WRBRERE
The radioactive equipment or instruments
should be filed with and approved by the
competent department, and pass safety
inspection.

225
Alr pollution

REZERFAN RGN ERETRIRNRRS

RIRRERIRE
The Group ensured the smooth operation of air pollution

The Company formulated the Tenwow Environmental
Protection Manual ({ X 12 3R 3% (R & F ff} )) in accordance
with the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China (€ # #E A & £ A B 3R 32 (R # )% )) and
other laws and regulations to provide guidance on the
prevention and treatment of six kinds of pollutants within
the industrial parks (or business units) of the Group and to
facilitate environmental protection and pollution prevention
and treatment within the places where the Group and the
industrial parks of the Group operate, so as to ensure a
healthy working environment for our employees, effectively
reduce discharge of pollutants, and promote continuous
improvement and development. The six kinds of pollutants
include "W" (waste), “S” (sewage), “"A" (air pollution), “T"

(toxic substances), “N” (noise) and “R” (radioactive
substances):
BN AES%M  BHEERINARK  BRTEHEINGE

A list has been created to include all toxic drugs and agentia
and an accounting has been maintained to record their
utilization. Residues should be transported by external parties
for handling on a regular basis.

BESYWE

| * Toxic substances

FEZY)

| . Waste

DallsE=y e BEW)5 2
; %T&ét%ﬁéti&

The group prevented or
reduced solid waste
pollution. Unauthorized
discharge and misplace-
ment were prohibited.

| o

Noise
B R IIRAR SR
ke
When planning for any new construction, expansion or
reconstruction projects, the Group should give priority to
selecting sound insulation materials as much as possible

ERRLELERATRERSH

prevention and treatment facilities and that the emissions meet the
requirements of relevant environmental protection laws and

regulations.

NIETH
Six Kinds of Pollutants
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FEKE
Sewage

LEFLE
COoD
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Emission Reduction and Consumption
Reduction

Sewage discharge

The Company strictly complied with the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China ({H ZE A R A E K55 2 F78 %)) and other laws
and regulations as well as local waste water quality
standards. The Company also ensured that sewage is
treated to meet the discharge standard and then discharged
into urban sewage pipe network. For example, sewage from
Shanghai Industrial Park was discharged according to
requirements of the Wastewater Quality Standards for
Discharge to Municipal Sewers (357K HE A 88 T K8 /K &
Z 4E) (DB31-445-2009).

The Company set up sewage treatment stations to treat
sewage, and conducted facilities maintenance and repair
for sewage treatment stations according to Introduction
and Working Process of Sewage Treatment Station Facilities
(FKBRIBU R BEN 28 R TYERHE). We kept records of the
operation of sewage treatment stations, prepared water
quality test report and received inspection from the relevant
department of the Company. The Company also provided
training for the staff in charge of sewage treatment, so as to
ensure the effect of sewage treatment. The Company also
hired external parties to help maintain and operate water
treatment stations. For instance, in the Shanghai and
Wuhan Industrial Parks, the Company has entrusted
qualified external parties to carry out works such as
operation of processing equipment, equipment repair and
maintenance and water quality monitoring and analysis for
sewage treatment stations, so as to ensure that the treated
sewage meets the required standards. In case of excessive
discharge, the Company will timely handle it with the third
party.

989,112 I
989,112 tons

41 T
41 tons

2
2tons
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Air emission

The Company takes measures to prevent and control
exhaust gas pollution in accordance with the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution (/R # A R FE B AR5 2087%))
and other laws and regulations, as well as the Tenwow
Environmental Protection Manual (X 12 3% 3% (R 7 F fit ),
which set out requirements as follows:

. The Company shall manage the emission of pollutants
in accordance with the discharge limit stipulated by
the government;

. Each unit should ensure the smooth operation of air
pollution prevention and controlling facilities, and
emissions shall meet the requirements of the
environmental protection regulations; and

o Each unit should take relevant measures to collect
and dispose fugitive emission in places or locations
where such emission can easily occur during the
production process to ensure such emissions meet
the environmental protection requirements in the
PRC.

The Company has formulated the Gas Boiler Management
Policy (/A 5= 88 4& & 2 /= )), Boiler Operation Procedure
(CHAKEIRERRFRE)) and Procedure for Safe Boiler Operation
(iR IEZ 212 1E#F2)) to ensure the smooth operation of
boilers. The Company also took measures to improve and
upgrade facilities with the aim of reducing exhaust gas
emission.

Lampblack clearing purifiers

In 2017, the Company installed lampblack
purifiers at the meat snack workshop and
staff canteens to enhance the lampblack
clearing efficiency.

20174 %  AnnualReport2017 45



RE #HEREAHRS
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BEKBHEKR Greenhouse gas emissions

BEHER 12,294 tCO2e
Direct emissions 12,294 1CO2e
BE IR B HE IR 27,532 tCO2e
Energy indirect emissions 27,532 tCO2¢e
KRR 39,826 tCO2e
Total emissions 39,826 tCO2e
PEmEmE 7.941C02e /" BETAREE
Emission intensity 7.94 tCO2¢ per RMB1 million

AATHE =R eiEa e (&GE—) M The greenhouse gas emissions of the Company include
EREER(GES) R TR BAR direct emissions (Scope 1) and energy indirect emissions
BRI BR g B B AR 9 BE R - AL BRI E B AR (Scope 2). The direct emissions primarily derived from fuel

RONBEE HFFELE MR - XA TEIBMNEBLLE combustion, and energy indirect emissions from generation
1B SRR DAL IR AT AR B A T BB = R A BE K o of purchased electricity. The Company controlled its

greenhouse gas emissions by strengthening energy use
management and adopting energy-conservation
technologies.
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BEYEIR IR RIS 2 - IRIE A R A A A AT 6 1
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RO EEARMEENEREEY - NFE
EEEYEFEEAR - FEHE - —MITENR
AT R R NEE BRI R ER S MR BEEENSE
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Waste discharge

The Company has formulated the Waste Control and
Management (& 2= 1% & #1 % 32 )) Policy in accordance
with the requirements of the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste ({ /2 A & £ A BBERED
75 AR B A A )) and Standards for Pollution Control on
Hazardous Waste Storage (/&% BE ¥ 15,5 242 H1Z )
(GB18597-2001). The Company has taken necessary
measures for solid wastes generated during the course of
production to prevent or mitigate environmental pollution
caused by solid wastes, carried out proactive measures to
collect and recycle industrial solid wastes in light of the
economic and technical conditions of the Company, and
engaged lawful contractors to dispose solid wastes
generated by the Company. The non-hazardous wastes,
including household garbage, waste oil, general industrial
waste and recyclable waste such as waste plastics and
paper, were collected by qualified external parties for
disposal.

1,701 18 13214§ 1.4 183 ME 3268
1,701 tons 132 tons 1.4tons 183 tons 326 tons
B E 2,343 if

Total emissions 2,343 tons

==
Emission intensity

0.47W, /BB TARE
0.47 ton per RMB1 million
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Acid and alkaline waste liquid
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The Company’s hazardous waste primarily included acid
and alkaline waste liquid. To strengthen control and
management of hazardous waste, the Company formulated
the Management System for Hazardous Wastes ({f& % &
YIEIRHIE)) to regulate the classified storage and labeling
of hazardous wastes as well as liaison with hazardous
waste disposal companies for daily transfer, in order to
ensure proper disposal of hazardous wastes and avoid
imposing extra burdens on the environment. The regulating
department of the Company has strict requirements on
management and control of hazardous wastes. It collects
the hazardous chemical wastes in a centralized manner,
timely informs qualified external parties to collect wastes,
and keeps records for wastes collection and disposal. For
instance, the Shanghai Industrial Park established a
dedicated hazardous wastes storage warehouse, installed
double clocks on the warehouse, and set cameras at the
entrance and exit for monitoring.

1.9
1.9 tons

037 F%=/BETARE
0.37 kg per RMB1 million

Use of Resources

Energy conservation

The Company strictly implements the Energy Conservation
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({#ZE A R F1 R &
#)8EJR %)) and other policies, regulations and standards
issued by the competent national, local and industrial
authorities, making constant efforts to improve energy
efficiency and performance and encouraging all employees
to participate in energy conservation and carbon reduction.
The Company has built sound systems and framework. For
instance, Shanghai Tenwow Tea Co., Ltd. has formulated the
Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction Policy (¢ & A&
S EEIE ), which facilitated energy efficiency improvement
in day-to-day work.

The Company has established an energy conservation
steering group, and specified its duties and responsibilities
as follows:

—  Proactively organizing promotion, education and
training in relation to energy conservation,
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— TEHEHSMETENE K&
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SN
Externally purchased electricity

Natural gas

ey

Diesel

Y
Gasoline

Total energy consumption

gEREREEE
Energy consumption intensity

Making plans for energy conservation technological
transformation and technology research as well as
annual energy conservation plans;

Reviewing and approving various annual energy
consumption indicators and energy conservation
targets;

Reviewing and approving the Company’s major
achievements in energy conservation and major
rewards and punishments;

Conducting inspection on various energy conservation
activities carried out by the Company;

Convening energy conservation meetings on a regular
basis; and

Planning, arranging, examining and summarizing
energy conservation activities.

41,949 MWh

5,488,598 m3

107,817 L

68,730 L

102,973 MWh

20.5 MWh /"B &TT AR
20.5 MWh per RMB1 million

20174 % o AnnualReport2017 49



BB HERERBHS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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EEREFREIRVBRARE -

HirgE R  WIEEEE R
Energy conservation project: boiler flue energy
saver

—T—+F LBREERTETRIEZBSES
fERAEEITEYCN A - M EDERRERUR o

In 2017, the Shanghai Industrial Park installed boiler
flue energy saver to recycle the flue gas heat and

achieve energy conservation.
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Each competent energy conservation department will act as
daily working agencies of the steering group for energy
conservation. Under the leadership of the steering group for
energy conservation, they should coordinate and manage
the energy conservation tasks of the Company, carry out
guota-based management production, and conduct
supervision and inspection on various energy conservation
works of the Company in accordance with the Fuel
Management Policy ({ {& 2 ¥5 £ & 12 %I [ )), Management
Policy for Rational Electricity Utilization and Power
Conservation K (XA IEHAEMGFHAETEEHE)),
Quota-based Management Policy for Energy Consumption
(¥R TEEETE)), Reward and Punishment Policy
for Energy Conservation and Rational Heat Usage ({{> 2 &gk
HEE E . EAE M), Energy Measurement and
Statistics Management Policy ({13 8EIRFTE © #iaTE 2l
€ ) and a series of other detailed energy management
rules, as well as the Company’s supporting quota-based
energy supply system, so as to reduce loss and waste of
energy in every aspect of the production.
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PERKERRE
Annual water consumption and intensity

1,317,619l tons
262.6W8 /"5 &t tons per RMB1 million
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2EREMHABREE
Annual packaging materials consumption and intensity

31,483 tons

6.3WE /A & 7T tons per RMB1 million

Water conservation

The Company strictly abides by the Water Law of the
People’s Republic of China (/1 #E A & £ 1 B 7K /%)) and
other laws and regulations, and formulated dedicated
management systems to strengthen management of water
conservation and ensure rational utilization of water
resources, in an effort to develop into a green and
resource-saving enterprise. For instance, Shanghai Tenwow
formulated the Water Conservation Policy ({&87Kk & ») and
the Management Policy for Rational Heat and Water Usage
(EAEAZ - F/KEEHIE)). The company primarily
used municipal water supply and mountain spring water.
Metering devices shall be installed in accordance with
relevant provisions when taking water from water source.

As required by the Company, all water-using points within
the plant should implement two-level management and
install meters for measurement, and efforts should be made
to supervise and monitor water usage at various water-
using points; accountability systems should be
implemented for water-saving management, and each key
water-using department should appoint one person to be
the officer-in-charge for achieving the water saving target
of the department. In light of its production equipment,
water usage and water resources, each unit should develop
water consumption quota for main products and recycle
rate of water for different products respectively, and
regularly conduct water balance tests to assess level of
reasonability of water usage within the Company. The
equipment used in the water supply and usage devices,
such as pipelines, pumps, cooling equipments, storage
equipments, meters and treatment facilities should be
designed, manufactured and installed according to the
relevant PRC regulations and product standards. All water
supply and usage devices should be inspected and
maintained regularly, so as to maintain a good condition
and to prevent leakage.
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Packaging materials

The Company's packaging materials primarily included curl-
up film, plastic bottles, paper boxes, Tetra Pak packaging,
and plastic bags. The Company has used packages
reasonably and reduced sizes and weight of packages
without compromising their functions. By doing this, the
Company reduced resources consumption, lowered costs
and diminished the packages’ impacts on the environment.

Paper saving

The Company encourages paper saving and establishes
systems to regulate paper usage practices, and strengthen
management, so as to achieve scientific and rational
utilization of resources and reduce waste. For instance,
Wuhan Tenwow has formulated the Management Measures
for Energy Conservation and Consumption Reduction of
Wuhan Tenwow ((EVEKIE A RIETREMR FEE IR HEE)). The
Company advocates paperless office practice and requires
using electronic means for document circulation as much
as possible. When printed copy is required, efforts must be
made to avoid error printing and paper waste, and double-
sided printing should be adopted for documents comprising
more than three pages (if applicable). In case of error
printing, the paper may be used for receiving fax. The
Administration and Human Resources Department should
supervise and monitor the implementation of the Measures
by each department, the result of which will be taken into
consideration for performance appraisal of each
department.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Company is principally engaged in the production and
sales of shack food, and does not massively use any non-
renewable energy or generate lots of noises in its operating
activities. It does not jeopardize forest resources or
biological diversity, or exert any significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
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People-oriented, People-driven

The Company formulated the Recruitment Management
Policy ((FREEEIEHIEZ )) in accordance with the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China R #E AR KB4 8% )
and the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China (R E#E AR H MBI B) A [R)%E)) and other laws and
regulations, so as to regulate the recruitment and
employment management of the Company, attract and
retain quality talents, optimize internal talent structure,
satisfy the demand for human resources of the Company
and business development, and lay a foundation for
sustainable development of the Company.

Employment

Upholding the principle of “morality first and merit-based
fairness, impartiality and openness; selection by talent,
engagement by posts and internal promotion first”, the
Company carries out open recruitment through all kinds of
channels and evaluates and hires the most suitable
candidates through the interview procedures of the
Company. Meanwhile, adhering to the principle of talent
reserve and talent recommendation, the Company
encourages employees to recommend talents for the
Company and awards will be granted for every successful
case.

1841 Ajjelo

AF ALIE
N
Impartiality and
openness
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uolo9|es
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Employees’ Interests and Benefits

The Company signs labor contract with each employee in
accordance with national and local laws and regulations,
performs its due obligations under such contracts and
protects the legitimate interests of its employees. The
Company also provides social insurance for its employees
in accordance with national and local laws and regulations.
The Company provides remuneration package based on
salary rate of the peer companies and position rank of the
individual employee, which is competitive as compared to
that of other peer companies and fair as compared with
other peer employees within the Company. The
remuneration is determined by the Company after
performing assessment with reference to the position,
production skill, professional skill, length of service and
performance of each individual employee.

Besides salary and wages, the Company also offers
performance-linked bonus to employees on a quarterly
basis according to the operating results of the Company
and individual performance of the employees, extends gifts
in kind to the employees on major Chinese traditional
festivals such as the Dragon Boat Festival, Mid-Autumn
Festival and Spring Festival, provides traffic allowances and
meal allowances and provides communication allowances
based on the needs of different posts. In addition, the
Company has allocated accommodation and recreation
rooms for the employees, with the aim of providing
convenience for the employees and enriching their spare
time life.

The Company respects employees’ rights for rests and
holidays: employees are entitled to the statutory holidays,
annual leave, marriage leave, bereavement leave, work-
related injury leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, etc.
Except for the employees working on flexible working hour
system, all the employees of the Company work for eight
hours a day and five days a week as standard working
hours. The Company makes sure that all employees enjoy
at least one day of break for each week except for special
situations.
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Diversified Life

The Company holds various group activities
every year, including wWomen's Day
celebrations, employee birthday parties,
Mid-Autumn Festival events and others, so
as to enhance the employees’ mutual
understanding for each other, and boost
team cohesion and employees’ sense of
happiness.

BIAHEES
Employee birthday parties

Labour Standards

The Company strictly complies with the provisions of the
laws and regulations such as the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({(F #E AR HEME 45 8)%)) , the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (¢
= AR XA L B A R %)) and the Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour ((Z£F R ZE TR E)), as
well as the internal Employee Manual (( & TFfft)) of the
Company, and eliminates the use of child labour and forced
labour, so as to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
the employees, and in an effort to create a fair and
harmonious working environment. In accordance with the
Employee Manual, no individual under the age of 18 shall
be employed. Overtime work is based on a voluntary and
approval basis, and any arrangement of overtime work by
the Company should be agreed by the relevant employee
and should be approved by the officer-in-charge. Payment
for overtime work will be made as agreed in the
employment contract.

A o FERED
Mid-Autumn Festival
Birthday celebrative activities
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BHri@EE Development Path

NAEIREY T TEHWMOBLER  SRABENF The Company has established a sophisticated and well-
PIHEET TRE - BF - ARG THEETINHT defined position system to regulate position name and
ERIMBEEE HETHE G Y RAEEMNE TIRE function category. Each year, the Company conducts
NHA - FEOEIIREAH#E - BABMT®R BT assessment on the performance and development potential
HBEMERBEMALER - of individual employee, and provides open and equal

training and promotion opportunities for every employee.
When a position vacancy opens up, all employees have the
opportunity to apply for it.

- PREMTEsenorenginger st e Se-BBE regional drector
- prIfMfengneer  ceeeeeqeeeeees O5-BRIEM WOrkshOp difeCtor ~ + v r e r e
M4-4E38 manager - .- PI-BpEETi260 assistantengineer - foeine 04-E[&JZE 1 deputy workshop director - - - - $5-4838 manager

S4-[E 48T regional manager

M3EB head e 03-3% head - $3-%% head
MZ'éE COOrdinatOl’ ............................................ 02,&(&1 mechanic e SZ'¥1§§ salesman
MEZE Gk e S1-5E BT sales assistant

O1-#2{ET operator

EEFS BEF BRI EHFT
Management function Professional function Operation function Marketing function
MET
New employees

REETIWEZHRE
Occupational development path of Tenwow employees
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ABB B = AU 3 S AREI
Induction and Development
pre-work training training

BETABE-XZHAR LQRSFABSERRRE

Bl - AT B TAR R RIE

hEXE - BRER RE EABRFEH  RAER
HES - RS e
BARETIEIAFE T

MR ENERREM I

Bk HEEITKIME

Fr 4 35 B R GB AN R BE o

The Company gives The Company holds a
induction for the new variety of development

members on their first day in training activities every year according to the

the office, covering
corporate culture,
development history of the
Company, regulations, rules
and systems, and others.

to improve team spirit,
strengthen sense of

team cohesion.

The pre-work training is
designed to introduce
business processes and
work requirements, and to
teach the new employees
the knowledge and skills.

FIER - AZE BB S

competition and promote

Training Opportunities

In accordance with the Employee Manual ({8 TF1f)), the
Company provides equal and fair training opportunities for
each employee. The Company attaches great emphasis on
establishment of internal management and development
system, and proactively organizes all kinds of internal
trainings, external study and development programs such
as induction training, pre-work training, quality development
and management trainee programs, so as to improve
employees’ skills, cultivate quality talents for the industry,
and promote sustainable development of the Company.

%
112
$ 41516
7 9
0
- +
X
ERE EEEILIEE
On the job Management
training trainee program

EEBPIEH B TRifz RAFFEHESERLRR

FRFAREME femxE B TRRER
BB EHHR T BEMARRRIAS
BTETIFES - PRS- RE THRME
HEFZERERM ZREHREFE -
BEMEAL - RRITH

BTERHETERBETSE -

Each department provides
on-the-job training

The Company continued
to push forward the
management trainee
program, in order to
improve employee career
development path and
development system for
different types of talents,
and provide a diversified
development platform for
employees.

requirements of the
position, and provides
instruction for the new
members through sharing
of experience by the
existing employees. For the
posts that require
credentials and
qualification, the Company
should arrange for the
employees to attend
development programs
provided by the specified
organization.
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FiMER
outdoor development

REARNSN R
BEEE MRy
i@%@h%%g
20075 RIKRNE R
wIEHE LRINARES
The outdoor development activities for employees —

at Shenzhen Nanpu RIS EA ARt AR A B THEFIAR
Henan Tenwow Drinks held development
trainings for employees

ERBREEEHE TEI
Shanghai Tenwow Group held training session for new employees

“EHFEAZTRBEAAST AR KERHAR
ETHTTRESRR  MELERCEXEMEERSR &
METEN  MECEAREFMEERR  EPHET
PR A B EEHIE R EEE - BRE DR R B

On 26 July and 28 September 2017, the Group held lectures
for new employees, in order to instill the employees with
our corporate culture and values, employee behavior
standards, and daily operation and management system, so
as to help them rapidly learn about the Company’s
management systems and corporate cultures, and enhance
their sense of belonging to and identification with the
Company.
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Safety First, Health Foremost

The health and safety of employees are cornerstones of the
Company’'s operation. Therefore, the Company is
committed to reducing any hazardous factors that may
cause occupational diseases, preventing accidents or
injuries, and creating a healthy, comfortable, safe and
worry-free working environment for its employees.

Production Safety

Based on the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China
(R EE AR KB L B L)), Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Work Safety ((# 2 A R HEFE % 2 A EE)), Law
on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases of the
People’s Republic of China ({# & A B H AN B w7 7a)%))
and other relevant laws and regulations, the Company
formulated management systems and safety operation
procedures such as the Work Safety Goal Management Policy
(Z24EBZEESIE)), the Work Safety Accountability
System ((Z &4 E & fE4)), the Management Policy on Work
Safety Accountability System ((Z &£ EEEHIEEHE)),
the Management Policy of Laws and Regulations and Other
Requirements on Work Safety ((& & B AR AR EE A E
o8y & 1 #l E ), the Management Policy on Operation,
Overhaul, Repairs and Maintenance of Equipments and
Facilities ((EREZMEETT - & #E  REBTEHE))
and the Major Hazardous Sources Management Policy ((ZEX
ERIREIEHIE)), so as to fulfill its responsibilities of
protecting employees.

The Company has developed a well-established safety
management network, appointing its general manager as
the officer-in-charge for production safety and setting up
safety management department with one full-time safety
management officer under its operation department. Every
year, the Company develops its safety management goal,
indicators and management solutions, and signs the
“Responsibility Commitment on Safety Goal for the Year (4
EZ# & BEEE)" with each department. The Company
continued to specify such goal and indicators for each
workshop and shift group, and signed the “Responsibility
Commitment for Safety Goal for the Year” with the heads of
each workshop and shift group, so as to facilitate, examine
and assess the implementation process. Each unit shall
strictly comply with the Safety Inspection Policy ({Z & &&
HIFZ)) of the Company, implement unified management of
the equipment and conduct regular checks such as daily
inspection, comprehensive inspection, holiday and festival
inspection, special inspection and seasonal inspection to
eliminate potential risks and troubles and ensure the
employees’ safety and health.
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Occupational Health

The Company has formulated the Occupational Health
Management Policy ( {BEEREIEHIE) ), the Hazardous
Chemicals Safety Management Policy ( (/2L 25
LZ2ERHIE) ) and other rules, and carefully conducted
assessment on the identification, distribution and regular
monitoring of occupational hazardous factors, and replaced,
inspected, repaired and maintained protective equipment
on a regular basis. The Company adopted the annual
checkup system on occupational safety and physical health,
and established and maintained employees’ occupational
safety and health records. The Company also implemented
the accountability system on occupational safety, health
and hygiene for hazardous positions. In addition, in
accordance with the Personal Protective Equipment
Distribution Standard of Tenwow ( (K12 45 B & A a3
Z#E) ), the Company has specified the requirements of
labour protective equipment for various posts.

Emergency Management

The Company formulated the Accident Emergency Rescue
Management Policy ({2 RIEEEHIE)), in a bid to
ensure timely implementation of emergency solutions and
provision of emergency rescue facilities and materials, and
thereby minimize the impact of the accident. The Company
conducted special emergency trainings, emergency drills
and assessment activities. It also made statistical analysis
on the accident and, based on the accident indicators of
the Company, effectively implemented the principle of “Four
Never”, so as to instill its staff with safety knowledge and to
implement remedial measures.

Adhering to the firefighting guideline of “putting prevention
first and combining prevention with fire control”, the
Company is well equipped with firefighting facilities and
devices, and conducts inspection on such equipment on a
regular basis and sets up firefighting warning signs as well.
Meanwhile, the Company carries out promotion and
education on firefighting safety and conducts emergency
evacuation drills in light of its production and operation. The
Company’s Management Policy on Fire Related Operation
(B AEEBETRHIE)) provides that any fire related
operation within the premise shall be subject to the Permit
for Fire Related Operation (8 A {E 2 7 7] 7% )) issued by
the relevant officer-in-charge after on-site inspection and
implementation of fire prevention measures.
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SHBE I
Firefighting training

77 FEEASGOEERNEIRELE RHEME
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In 2017, the Group held safety and firefighting
trainings for employees at the packaging workshop.

Fire drills

On 9 November 2017, Shanghai Industrial Park held
activities for the firefighting safety day, with the theme of
“fire prevention and safe workplace™, which included
training on use of equipment such as fire extinguishers, fire
blankets, and smoke masks, as well as escape drills.

ERESER
Elevator Emergency drills

TR
- - .

T i
ERESER2017F9A6E  mERM(EE)ARA
AR R AR E S FHUE SORUREAR -

On 6 September 2017, Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd.
conducted elevator accident emergency rescue drills.

4

Z 2
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Safety Training

The Company formulated the Safety Education and Training
Management Policy ( (X2 #BEHEIIEEFE) ) to
standardize management of daily safety education and
relevant training on safety certificate, in a bid to help
employees acquire skills and knowledge required in safe
production, and enhance the quality of safe production
technologies and the Company’s abilities in preventing
accidents. The Company carried out daily safety training as
well as training in other forms for management officers at
different levels, employees on production posts, special
operation staff and external personnel, with the content of
trainings covering safety regulations, management system,
goal accountability system, hazard identification skills,
three-level safety education for new employees and
emergency plan training. In addition, the Company
organized relevant departments to keep records on effect
of such training, which shall include effective assessment
on the effect of the training. In 2017, the Company
continuously enhanced employees’ concept of safety
accountability through safety training, fire drills and
firefighting knowledge training.
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Join Hands, Fulfill Our Duties

The Company has formulated the Supplier Management
Policy (& B 2 #/E )) to strictly select raw materials
suppliers, supplementary materials suppliers, original
Equipment Manufacturer (OEMs) and other suppliers, and
control the quality of products or services provided by
them. The Company regularly carried out supplier
qualification assessment, annual rating and on-site
assessment, so as to effectively manage suppliers and
ensure that the products or services provided are in
conformity with the requirements

Supplier Threshold

The Company follows a set of stringent selection processes
including supplier qualification confirmation, product
sample test and on-site assessment, which ensure that the
products or service provided are in conformity with the
requirements, so as to continuously improve product
quality. Meanwhile, the Company conducted annual review
on the companies listed on the List of Qualified Suppliers
(At ERAEE)) based on the purchase record for the
year, on-site assessment report, raw material inspection
and acceptance record and record of remedial and
preventive measures for substandard products.

Suppliers are required to meet the following requirements
or standards:

Production premises shall possess business license,
hygiene license and food production license issued by
relevant regulatory authorities;

A valid quality management system certificate is
available;

Factories has established and effectively implemented
quality assurance procedures, cleaning system,
personal hygiene operating procedures, pest control
procedures and food additives control procedures;
factory buildings are well maintained with waste
guarantine zone and no source of pollution in the
surrounding areas,

Workshop layout is well designed and there are no
cracks or falling paint, so as to prevent contamination
in food production;

Quality management system training is provided for
employees;
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. Hygienic inspection is carried out on an irregular basis
and periodic water sampling test is conducted to
detect pathogenic bacteria and other contaminants;

. The plan for food safety management procedure
HACCP (Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point) is
being effectively implemented; and

. Laboratory staff is required to be trained and obtain
qualification certificate for their jobs, etc.

Communication with Suppliers

The Company enhanced its communication with suppliers,
conveyed its concepts and promoted the critical
management and control points through supplier meetings
and business communication sessions. In light of its actual
needs, the Company held seminars and visited excellent
suppliers’ factories to provide training and guidance for
suppliers, and thus help them improve quality and boost
accountability concepts. By doing this, the Company
managed to enhance its product quality, achieve mutual
benefits and realize sustainable development.

Suppliers are required to sign the probity clauses which are
attached to the external contracts, such as the Code of Conduct
for Suppliers ({ R 1T A2ER)) and Anti-Commercial Bribery
(=P 8% )), and to comply with the principles of integrity
and probity. The Company’s purchase contract is attached with
a Product Warranty (EmRE ERFEE)).

Supplier business communication session

In the mid of 2017, the Procurement Department of the
Group acted as the convener of a supplier business
communication session. At the session, suppliers and
relevant departments of the Group made semiannual
quality summary, and communicated on the cooperation
for the second half of the year. At the session, the
importance of suppliers’ product quality and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations was stressed, and the
Company'’s social responsibility concept in terms of green
products as well as safety and health was conveyed, which
reflected the Company’s rigid control over its supply chain.
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Product Responsibility and Innovative
Development

The Company adheres to the principle of “manufacturing
products of reliable quality with exquisite technigues, and
building a healthy brand”, as well as the operational
concept of “innovation through technologies and quality
first”. The Company used “good raw materials, good
technologies and good quality standards” to build “good
products, good healthy conditions and good life”, and
continuously provided more high quality and healthy drinks
for consumers.

After two years’ research and development, the Company
rolled out four new sugar-free tea products under Taste
series in 2017, namely Kungfu Black Tea, Rock Flavor
Oolong, Mellow Ripe Puer and Green Tea Made in Spring. In
addition, the Company sponsored the sensational cultural
documentary film Tea China (£ 5+ E)) jointly produced
by CCTV9 and Jiangsu TV. The select teas of Tenwow were
produced with world-leading technologies such as flavor
recycling, high-efficiency extraction, low-temperature
concentrated liquor that can generate strong effect in short
time, and low-temperature aseptic canning, which helped
preserve teas’ appearance, flavor and tastes, and provide
consumers with healthy ready-to-drink tea.
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Healthy Products

Quality Control

To enhance quality control and improve enterprise
efficiency, the Group and all industrial parks have
introduced the international standardized quality systems
that have been strictly verified to control product quality,
such as 1IS09001 quality control system, HACCP system and
ISO22000 food safety management system, so as to
implement its quality and food safety policy of “pursuit for
excellence, quality, customer satisfaction and market
share”.

The Company strictly abides by the Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((F Bl A R MBI E mE %)),
Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China ({ZE AR
HFE & &% &%), Regulations for the Implementation of
the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China ({54
AREMER % 205K 55 ) and other laws and
regulations, and has established an internal quality control
system to effectively improve production control capacity and
maintain consistent product quality. The Company classifies
and describes the defects in product quality and specifies the
handling principles and procedures in accordance with the
Guidance on Product Quality Issues of Tenwow Food Group
(KRERMEEEMESRIEIEGHRE)), S0 as to ensure
product quality. The Company also sets up a product quality
accountability system with the leaders of the Company as
main responsible persons and the heads of respective
departments as relevant responsible persons for product
quality, so as to ensure product quality in every aspect and
process covering such areas from incoming raw and
supplementary materials quality control (IQC), in-process
quality control (IPQC), strict final quality control (FQC) to
tracking of products on market.
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he Company has established physical and chemical
laboratories, microbiological laboratories, product
research and development laboratories and
product quality control department with
technology support by the central laboratory and
product research and development department,
in order to inspect product quality. In addition, the
Company's products are sent to external
inspection and testing agencies for hygiene
examinations regularly.
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HINE o
The Company regulated the hyg\ene management,
cleaning procedures and use of food additives and
strengthened product quality inspection and control in
accordance with the Guidance on Product Quality \ssues
Food Group
he Food Addmves Management Pol|c
the Guidelines on Hygiene Requlrements and Cleaning
Production Units of the Group RmEEENFER
nd other Policies.

Fr)). By anaging the pmdu(t\demt\f ation,
ing and recall, the Company did its best to
protect the health of the customers, and maintain the
Company's reputation.
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In 2017, the Company released corporate standards for
fermented tea products, roasted nuts and seeds series,
dried meat and oatmeal according to relevant national food
safety standards and rules, which regulate the hygiene
requirements, testing methods, labels and mark, packaging,
transportation, storage and shelf life of food products. To
ensure safety and hygiene of products exported by Tenwow
to the US (Including honey grapefruit tea, honey Sydney tea,
honey jujube tea and kumquat lemon tea), the Company
formulated HACCP plan according to the N0.142 Order of
Regulations for the Administration of Registration of Export
Food Production Enterprises K IE D REmAETHEBERERE
#7E)) by the General Administration of Quality Supervision,
Inspection and Quarantine and other related laws and
regulations, and in light of actual needs. By conducting
hazard analysis and establishing critical control points, the
Company controlled, reduced and eliminated significant
biological, physical and chemical hazards during the
production process, so as to ensure safety for customers.

The Company strengthened employees’ awareness in
product quality and safety by training and promotional
activities. On 8 March 2017, Tenwow Group held training on
the Shanghai Food Safety Regulations that was passed
within the year.

Production Hygiene

The Company has formulated the Guidelines on Hygiene
Requirements and Cleaning Standards for Food Production
Units of the Group K&EBEmAE BN FHEZ KK RHE
& R # )) to provide guidelines on hygiene management
during the food production progress for all food production
units of the Group. The Guidelines outline the hygiene
requirements and recommended cleaning methods during
the production progress for staff (including external
personnel), environment, equipment and instruments in
various cleaning areas, and specify the relevant hygiene
operating requirements and cleaning procedures, so as to
guarantee product quality.

Labeling Management

The Company has formulated the Label Revision and
Review Procedure ({122 M hi % 2 {EF2 7)) to regulate
the review procedure for all product labels of the Group
(including factories in other cities), so as to strengthen
control over the content of product labels. The labels are
reviewed in accordance with GB7718-2014 General Rules
for Labeling of Prepackaged Foods (TR E & RIZZEBA)),

GB28050-2011 General Rules for Nutrition Labeling of
Prepackaged Foods (BB ERmEEZZBAI)) and the
requirements of relevant product standards.
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Tracking and Recall

The Company formulated Product Identification, Tracking
and Recall Procedure ({ZE fhiZq » B E B BIEHITRF)),
which provides that:

The Quality Control Department is in charge of
product identification,;

The Food Safety Team should verify the effectiveness
of the recall scheme by conducting comparison tests,
simulating product recall or actual product recall;

The Production Department is responsible for the
implementation of product recall if there exists
serious hygiene problem; and

The management representatives should lead the
relevant departments in analyzing the causes to
prevent reoccurrence of such problem.

The Company strictly complies with this procedure to
effectively manage product identification, tracking and
recall, doing its best to protect the health of the customers.

Intellectual Property Right

The Company has established the Trademark Management
Policy (( E1ZE 2 % & )) to regulate the application,
registration, renewal, transfer, assessment and licensing
approval of the trademarks, approval of samples of items
carrying trademark logos prior to printing, document
management and information processing concerning the
trademarks, and others, so as to ensure legal and proper
use of trademarks, prevent any infringement of exclusive
right latent in trademarks, and drive continuous growth in
trademarks’ value.

» ARHER -

As at 31 December 2017, the Company owned

AeEsrmE382  mainland-registered

trademarks
EHEMEE20  Hk-registered
trademarks
EEMEE 2 Taiwan-registered
trademarks
68 KIEEFEIER B AR * Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Customer Satisfaction

In accordance with the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests
(R ARAMBE & EERREZE)) and other laws and
regulations, the Company established the Control
Procedures for Customer Satisfaction ((EE& % B E 1L Hi2
Fr») and the Customer Complaint Handling Procedure (&
BEE R BN EEE S 2 F)), with an aim to
investigate and collect satisfaction or dissatisfaction
information from the customers, and receive, record and
reply to suggestions or complaints from the customers. The
Company summarizes, analyzes and takes remedies for
complaints and feedback from customers once a month.

Compliant Operation and Effective Risk Control
The Company strictly complies with the provisions of the laws
and regulations such as the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({fF % A R £F1E A F)J%)), Tendering and
Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FF 2 A B 70
Bl FRIZ A% )), Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({1 ZE A R A B [ S 1F & % 30%)) and
Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery ({BFRAZE
PEEBRETT ARE{TRE)), and promotes the probity principle
and prohibits commercial bribery. The Audit Department and
the Supervision Department of the Company take turns to
review the supply and sales contracts and distribution costs of
the Company’s subsidiaries every month, and will launch
investigation after relevant complaints are verified. The
Company undergoes daily inspection on internal
standardization and conducts special investigation into the
major problems identified, and will report to the judicial
authority in respect of any illegal activities.

For external parties, the Company requires suppliers to
comply with the principles of integrity and probity, and has
attached probity clauses to contracts. Suppliers are
required to sign the Code of Conduct for Suppliers (£ &g
77 A% 81)) and Anti-Commercial Bribery ({ = & % B85 )).
For internal parties, the Company encourages employees to
report any illegal activities in relation to the Company
through the reporting hotlines and mailboxes. These
measures for internal and external parties have promoted
probity both inside and outside the Company.
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REHE ZEER Investing in Community and Benefiting the
Public
NEEITE T<< R &= (B 24 = \/\ﬁg@)rﬂ@%ljr> The Company has developed the Charitable and Public
ARE A NeEHNHE  FEFOBELe Welfare Activity Management Policy of Tenwow Group ({x
aZ%Hf%ﬁm TF%Q%W;‘%&%W;‘%H&TE&EE’U% BEBERESEAZEHEERHE)) in order to regulate its
TEEE - UXRXEEE - 208 BEEEE - charitable and public welfare activities and make greater
BIEKRBEZANEBRREESEZBFE AT SIEH®HA contribution to the community. The policy provides that the

BRERENSERAmES  ZT—+F - 2alk Company should , based on the business characteristics of
EBREAZRABRMAREE  RExBEA BT Tenwow and its products, initiate various featured
TENAEMSDHBEXEZBENERE  AHRERE charitable activities for the community including support for
EEE)  IRISHIE  BEIEERE) I EEER cultural and sports undertakings, charitable donations,
B - volunteer activities, care for the elders and promotion of
environmental protection, etc. In 2017, the Company held
various activities in the community, such as extending care
to the elders who lost their only children, left-behind
children and other disadvantaged groups; volunteer
activities for serving the community, sponsorship for
cultural and sports activities and other actions in support of
development in cultural and sports undertakings.

RAIRTERFEZIN - BREEESE  FHRAECEREF - —+FA - REBEER LET
REECEREMAIBET  tA  ERBEXERADETESESSRENME101&E TH - REZH
MEETRAEESGHREMEBIET -

. In addition to pursuing profits, the Company also devoted itself to charity and actively shouldered
é“ia%ézs corporate responsibility. In June 2017, Tiansheng Wines and Spirits donated RMB3.03 million worth of
donations materials to Shanghai Charity Foundation. In July, Royal Wines and Spirits donated RMB1.01 million worth

of materials to Shanghai Charity Foundation. In October, Tenwow Sale donated RMB2.34 million worth of
materials to Shanghai Charity Foundation.

Aofte  AFRECEINREESMTEREER %I%Eykﬂﬂ)\iﬂ FEARTE V1T - ﬂﬁf

ZIEEERSE - =2 —+F A tHEINREN N REEE —tFEANRBRERERITE

RRE(E1) o

To give back to the society, enhance employees’ service awareness and sense of social responsibility,

ERRITE and prompt more people to become volunteers, the Company provided many voluntary activities. On 7

ngtlfyw June 2017, Zhengzhou Tenwow launched activities to help those who attended National College Entrance
Examination. On 8 July 2017, Wuhan Tenwow Drinks held cooling and refreshing activities (Photo 1).

RRAEBRENEEAN  BHESARONEREULER - T —+F - REXREEF AP ALHE

RTRPERS SETEHREINRIAE(B2) -

The Company advocates healthy lifestyle and strives to promote healthy culture among the public. In

2017, Wuhan Tenwow teamed up with Sinopec’s Hubei branch to carry out hiking activity, so as to build a
BELE favorable environment for promoting physical exercises (Photo 2).

Healthy life
RABLCEBERE  WERBAR 8 %*Eé ,i HETETEZEE W_T—tF+HALER
BRI [LED | MUBMISHEERAHE (B 3) tiﬁﬁ THABRZERBE2NE ZEFASE
g‘go

The Company also earnestly promotes and contributes to the development of cultural and sports
cﬁ%id undertakings in various forms, thereby creating more value for the society. In October 2017, Tribute Spring
sports sponsored the “Heart to Heart” under CCTV and Grand Marine Rituals for Goddess Matsu in Meizhou

sponsorship  (Photo 3). On 29 May 2017, Wuhan Nanpu participated in the Second Douyu Carnival.
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The Board is pleased to present the report of the Directors
along with the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Currently,
the Company, through its subsidiaries, associated
companies and joint venture company primarily produces
and distributes its “Tenwow” own brand products. It also
distributes well-known third-party brand products. Primary
products include alcoholic beverages, food and snacks,
non-alcoholic beverages, and other fast moving consumer
goods.

Segment analysis of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in Note 5 to the financial
Statements.

RESULTS

The overall performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out on pages 115 and 116 in the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in this section and in the sections
headed "Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6
to 25 and "Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
on pages 41 to 71 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, and investment property for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in Note 6 to the financial
Statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on pages 237 and
238 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 15 to the
financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in Notes 16 to 17
to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share
premium, other reserves and retained earnings. As at 31
December 2017, the Company had distributable reserves of
RMB1,905,032,000. Movements in the Company’s reserves
during the year is set out in Notes 15 and 36 to the financial
Statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of RMB1.32
cents (equivalent to HK1.55 cents) per share for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: final dividend of RMB0.50
cents (equivalent to HK0.57 cents) per share and special
dividend of RMB1.86 cents (equivalent to HK2.12 cents) per
share) in cash to the Shareholders. Together with the
interim dividend of RMB2.31 cents (equivalent to HK2.71
cents) per share paid in September 2017 (2016 interim
dividend: RMB2.29 cents (equivalent to HK2.71 cents) per
share), the total dividend for the year amounted to RMB3.63
cents (equivalent to HK4.26 cents) per share (2016: RMB4.65
cents (equivalent to HK5.40 cents) per share).

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(“AGM") to be held on Wednesday, 16 May 2018. Upon
Shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM, the
proposed final dividend will be payable on or before
Wednesday, 6 June 2018 to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 29 May 2018.

Details of the dividend are set out in Note 30 to the financial
statements.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 10 May 2018 to Wednesday, 16 May 2018,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered, for the purpose
of ascertaining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM, all transfers of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
appropriate transfer forms must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 9 May 2018.

In addition, in order to determine the entitlement of the
Shareholders to receive the proposed final dividend, if
approved, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 28 May 2018 to Tuesday, 29 May 2018
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to receive the proposed final dividend, all transfers
of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and appropriate transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 25 May 2018.

DIRECTORS
During the financial year and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board was made up of the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Jianhua (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 22 March 2017)

Mr. Lin Qi (Appointed on 22 March 2017)

Mr. Wang Juewei (Resigned on 22 March 2017)

Mr. Lam Hang Boris (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Yeung Yue Ming

Ms. Au Lai Hang
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Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Zhao
Mr. Yan Zhixiong (Appointed on 22 March 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Longgen

Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong

Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren

Mr. Shen Yalong (Appointed on 22 March 2017)

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is satisfied that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent as defined under the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association,
Ms. Au Lai Hang, Mr. Liu Zhao, Mr. Wang Longgen and Mr.
Cheung Yui Kai Warren will retire from their offices as
executive Director, non-executive Director, and
independent non-executive Directors, respectively, at the
AGM to be held on Wednesday, 16 May 2018. Ms. Au Lai
Hang, Mr. Liu Zhao, Mr. Wang Longgen and Mr. Cheung Yui
Kai Warren, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section
headed "Directors and Senior Management” on pages 95 to
104 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM
has entered into a service contract with the Group which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration shall be determined based on
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee,
while also making reference to the complexity of the
Director’s work, workload, responsibilities, as well as the
Company's remuneration policies. Details of the Directors'
remuneration and the five highest-paid individuals of the
Group are set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

Under the Company's Articles of Association, every Director
or officer of the Company acting in relation to any of the
affairs of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs and damages which he may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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(i) REQXTRGHER (i) Interests in shares of the Company
BRMEEO10BTHE B
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BRERA D
FrERAEE Approximate
EEAE REEME Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held shareholding
MBS E R PEEE R 7 ) o
Mr. Lin Jianhua Interest of controlled corporation®ote 1:425,404,000 (1 64.62%
ER S A EmfEBA o
Mr. Lam Hang Boris Beneficial owner 2,030,000 (1) 0.09%
VY- vt BB A 0
Mr. Shen Yalong Beneficial owner 497,000 (1) 0.02%
BRI EnlEEA o
Mr. Yan zZhixiong Beneficial owner 2810000 0.13%
L—tFE (L) — Long position
P E Note:
MEELEHEAEHCEARAF100%E - MSBERE Mr. Lin Jianhua owns Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited as to 100%, which
AR A BI#EAB AR F]1,425,404,000 BB o Fitt - AREAE in turn owns 1,425,404,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Lin is
WAR B EBEER A RRFA KA AR 1,425,404,000 i A% therefore deemed to be interested in 1,425,404,000 shares of the
DREAER o Company held by zhi Qun Enterprises Limited.
(i) RAEXTEERGHER (ii) Interests in underlying shares of the
Company
BREE0.10B TNZER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BREERARBEA
BRETEREN
BRERETFE
HERGHE
Number of underlying
shares held pursuant
to share options BOFRB DT
granted under the Approximate
EEHE EatE Pre-IPO Share percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Option Scheme shareholding
EEMELZ T BmEBA o
Ms. Au Lai Hang Beneficial owner 1,666,667 () 0.08%
MRS BmEBA o
Mr. Lam Hang Boris Beneficial owner 4,166,664 () 0.19%
[pahz b BEmEBA o
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming Beneficial owner 1,666,667 (1 0.08%
L—tFE (L) — Long position
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EERF
Name of Director

EEEE AR
Name of associated corporation

MEELE
Mr. Lin Jianhua

SHOEBRAF
Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited

WRELE LERBRMEEBBAR

Mr. Lin Jianhua Shanghai Tenwow Food Production Co., Ltd.
L—tFeE
G

MEELENEBEERZLIR LERERREEBR AT
AR (RESBEAARKESS0,0007T) @ MAMEEHE AR
AR ER o

BEXREEN R_T—tF+-_A=+—
B BENEFLARAKSTHRABMA
T BMEERIARFAKREGTRAERARF
S EAEMRBBEE(EERESMREERNE
XVER) B EAAIA D - BB RIEEEFTHEE
RIFE S LB RDIEXVEBET K85 BMEX
ARARREBEREBLNIRIERE 5 L AE RS
EINHEMEFENELM - RRFZETA
MEBMGARNE MBI ERIORE -
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(iii) Interests in associated corporations

RIEBEE R

BR/RELE

Bat

BERZNHES Approximate

HESRELH percentage of

Number of shareholding/

securities investment

interested or amount

BEHE investment in the associated

Nature of interest amount corporation

EnfEAA 1R (L) 100%
Beneficial owner 1share (L)

[T ARE50,0007T(L) 59
Interest of spouse RMB50,000 (L) ’

(L) — Long position
Note:

Ms. Yan Yuzhen, the spouse of Mr. Lin Jianhua, is interested in
Shanghai Tenwow Food Production Co., Ltd. as to an investment
amount of RMB50,000, and Mr. Lin is therefore deemed to be
interested in the same.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, SO
far as was known to any Director or chief executive of
the Company, neither the Directors nor the chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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FTERRERB A
Name of substantial
shareholder

RSN

Eﬂllﬁﬁﬁ}\
Beneficial owner

EHPEARAR
Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited

EmiEAA

Market Genius Limited @ -
Beneficial owner

SEREPFNEIELE Fo

China Momentum Fund, L.P."

Nature of interest
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to any
Director or chief executive of the Company, Shareholders
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company
whose interests were disclosed above) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which shall be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Interests in shares of the Company

BREE10EBTHERER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

RESNA DL
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

FiERHEE
Number of
shares held

Interest of controlled corporation

Fosun China Momentum
Fund GP, Ltd.®

Fosun Momentum Holdings
Limited @

Fosun Financial Holdings
Limited @

MR EE LS

Fosun International Limited @

N2 EE RN ER
Interest of controlled corporation

REZIEEB R R
Interest of controlled corporation

REZIEEB R
Interest of controlled corporation

1,425,404,000 (L) 64.62%
132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
132,358,000 (L) 6.00%

Interest of controlled corporation
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FERRER HH
Name of substantial
shareholder

Fosun Holdings Limited @

Fosun International Holdings Ltd. ™

BEEO

Guo Guangchang ™

China FNB Investment Holdings
Limited @

Carlyle Asia Growth Partners IV,
LP.®

CAGP IV General Partner L.P. @

CAGP IV, Ltd. @

TC Group Cayman Investment
Holdings Sub, L.p. @

TC Group Cayman Investment
Holdings, L.P. @

Carlyle Holdings Il L.P.@

Carlyle Holdings Il GP L.L.C.2

The Carlyle Group L.P.@

EEHE
Nature of interest

REEEE R
Interest of controlled corporation

REEEE R
Interest of controlled corporation

REZ LB R R
Interest of controlled corporation

EaEA A
Beneficial owner

REZEEB R RS
Interest of controlled corporation

REZEEB R RS
Interest of controlled corporation

REZ AR R
Interest of controlled corporation

REZ AR R
Interest of controlled corporation

REZ AR R
Interest of controlled corporation

REZ AR R
Interest of controlled corporation

REZ AR RS
Interest of controlled corporation

REZ AR RS
Interest of controlled corporation
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BREE0.10BTHEER

FERHAEE
Number of
shares held

132,358,000 (L)

132,358,000 (L)

132,358,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
RESNB DL

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

6.00%

6.00%

6.00%

5.27%

5.27%

5.27%

5.27%

5.27%

5.27%

5.27%

5.27%

5.27%
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Fosun International Limited BIJ 3 74 # /A Fosun Financial Holdings
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L.P. Bl f8 A #E & Carlyle Asia Growth Partners IV, L.P. 8925 -
B R AR ZERG TR EBEZ - CAGP IV, Ltd. Al RS
CAGP IV General Partner L.P. 84z « #1818 AR5 R 7
7 A #E %5 TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings Sub,
LP.AIERAAEEA CAGP IV, Ltd. By s - BURR AR ZERMK
A 4 25 - TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings L.P. 8l
A TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings Sub, L.P. &)
o MR ARZERD R HEA L  Carlyle Holdings 1l
L.P. BIJf 73 & TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings L.P. &9
B MR RN ZERMN T AL Carlyle Holdings Il
GP L. LC HIJEEEG‘%ECarIyle Holdings Il LP. &y % » SR
BRZERM AR  The Carlyle Group L.P. B fR A
A Carlyle Holdings Il GP L.L.C. K% - SR AR ZEMRHN
PR

BREXEEEN RZE—+F+_A=+—H"
RATFNEEMEEMAL(EEREAR Ta—mﬂﬁﬁz
ABBIN BAERIEEZES LSS EXVIBE 2&3
D EE BRI RN B FE jzuﬂﬁ’:b*ﬂ& AR IR E
JoE! ff'ﬂﬁ”%%éﬂkﬁ,ﬂ_ﬁ ERMABNARRRGS
SRR D R SOKE ©

EE EZERBRRREREGHNNER

BTN [HERER S| — & RN E KIS
PIRBEEIN Rt FASFEREEANAR
AEFREFRERREEAEEES B ARRA
BEARS  RHHAMN(ERRL EMRAMERAX)
Ko 10 Bl B A A R 1 B s AN 2 A Y I 8 ) SR AR RUR
SEMBARBMBERNENGL -

EEEN
REEZZT— JCEJrfﬂfﬂL HIEFEN - #®
nTi_XTEﬁF§$ EHHEMERE D EBH
Ei@&ﬂﬂ(ﬁ’]iﬁmﬂ(?@ﬁ%izﬁﬂjiﬂ‘ﬂ@ﬁﬁy
H?E}jff{jj\j:ﬁﬁu]—imﬁ&ﬁmn

EEEWMSH

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Notes:

(1) These Shares are held by Market Genius Limited. Mr. Guo
Guangchang is deemed to be interested in these Shares under the
SFO by virtue of his interest in Fosun International Holdings Ltd.,
which in turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of
its interest in Fosun Holdings Limited, which in turn is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in Fosun
International Limited, which in turn is deemed to be interested in
these Shares by virtue of its interest in Fosun Financial Holdings
Limited, which in turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by
virtue of its interest in Fosun Momentum Holdings Limited, which in
turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of its
interest in Fosun China Momentum Fund GP, Ltd.. Fosun China
Momentum Fund GP, Ltd. is the general partner of China Momentum
Fund, L.P. and is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of
its interest in China Momentum Fund, L.P., which in turn is deemed
to be interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in Market
Genius Limited.

(2) These Shares are held by China FNB Investment Holdings Limited.
The Carlyle Group L.P. is deemed to be interested in these Shares
under the SFO by virtue of its interest in Carlyle Holdings Il GP L.L.C.,
which in turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of
its interest in Carlyle Holdings Il L.P., which in turn is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in TC Group
Cayman Investment Holdings L.P., which in turn is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in TC Group
Cayman Investment Holdings Sub, L.P., which in turn is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in CAGP IV, Ltd.,
which in turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of
its interest in CAGP IV General Partner L.P., which in turn is deemed
to be interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in Carlyle Asia
Growth Partners IV, L.P., which in turn is deemed to be interested in
these Shares by virtue of its interest in China FNB Investment
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the
Company has not been notified by any person (other than
the Director or chief executive of the Company) who had
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

DIRECTORS'/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below and in Note 33 to the
financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules) in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of 2017, and there
was no contract of significance between the Company or
any subsidiary of the Company with the controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year under
review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than a contract of service with a
Director or any person engaged in the full-time employment
of the Company, concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
UNDER THE LISTING RULES

Loan agreement with covenants relating to
specific performance of the controlling
shareholder under Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules

On 14 June 2017, Tenwow Food (Group) Co., Ltd., an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower (the
“Borrower”), and the Company and its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary Wuhan Nanpu Co., Ltd., as guarantors,
entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited and
Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited, as joint lead
managers and bookrunners, together with five other banks
as the lenders (collectively the “Lenders”), all of which are
independent third parties of the Company and its connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules). Pursuant to the
Facility Agreement, a syndicated loan of RMB600,000,000
was agreed to be granted by the relevant Lenders to the
Borrower for a term of three years from the date of the
Facility Agreement and subject to the terms and conditions
of the Facility Agreement. As at 31 December 2017,
outstanding balance of the syndicated loan amounted to
RMB536,250,000.

The Facility Agreement has the following specific
performance obligations:

()  at least 51% of the issued share capital of the
Company will remain to be beneficially owned (directly
or indirectly) by Mr. Lin Jianhua, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, who shall also remain to
be chairman of the Board; and

(i) Mr. Lin Jianhua shall have management control over
the Group.

A breach of the above specific performance obligations will
constitute an event of default under the Facility Agreement
and all amounts outstanding under the Facility Agreement
will become immediately due and payable.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Lin Jianhua was
indirectly interested in an aggregate of 1,425,404,000 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 64.62% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following
transactions are continuing connected transactions as
defined in the Listing Rules which are subject to the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Certain of these continuing connected transactions
which also constitute related party transactions are set out
in Note 33 to the financial statements.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group sells or purchases goods from connected
persons in the ordinary course of its business. On 13
November 2015, each of the Company and Nanpu and
together with its subsidiaries (“Nanpu Group”) entered into
new framework agreements with each relevant connected
person in respect of the sales or purchase of goods on
normal commercial terms, to replace the old framework
agreements that were entered into on 1 August 2013 and
terminated on 1 January 2016, for a period of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and ending on 31
December 2018. Payment will be made by wire transfer
upon delivery of the goods or on monthly basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the annual caps and
the actual amounts paid for the non-exempted continuing
connected transactions in respect of the purchase or sales
of goods under the framework agreements are as follows:

HE-E-—tFT-A=1t-HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

RERE(RRAFRE
WEAR FEEEREE)

BERZNA Tenwow Group (on behalf of BH(RRkEREE)
BEAL Nature of connected itself and its subsidiaries, Nanpu (on behalf of the &
Connected person transaction excluding the Nanpu Group) Nanpu Group) Total
BEREHEH ERELH BEREHEH
Actual FELR Actual FELR Actual FELR
amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap
ARETR AR%ETR ARETRT AR%Trn AR%Tn AR%ETx
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
LENBEREERAAR MEEATEERR 3,763 48,255 91,679 203,131 95,442 251,386
HBBA LEERAEE Purchase of goods from
BRRRO connected persons
Shanghai Shaowansheng
Commerce & Food Ltd. and its
associate, Shanghai
Huanglongtai Tea
Company Limited
LEREERE(RB)ERAT REEATEEAR 27,014 75370 66,737 359,981 93752 435,351

([ LBRETE]) 2 REBE APurchase of goods from
Shanghai Tangjiu (Group) Co., Ltd.  connected persons

("Shanghai Tangjiu") @

and its associates
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HE-E-—tHt-A=+-HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
RERE (RRAFRHE
WEAR  FEEEH
BERZNA Tenwow Group (on behalf of R (RREREE)
BEAL Nature of connected itself and its subsidiaries, Nanpu (on behalf of the &

Connected person transaction excluding the Nanpu Group) Nanpu Group) Total
EREHEH BEREHLH BEREHEH
Actual EELR Actual EELR Actual EELR
amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap

ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR  ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000

LENB4HEERARRE MEEATHERR 6,950 36,432 33,368 190,114 40318 226,546
HEALGHEERRATY Salesofgoodsto
Shanghai Shaowansheng connected persons
Commerce & Food Ltd.
and its associate, Shanghai
Shaowansheng Food
Company @
HEREEROREABEA MBEATHERR 811 179,145 13,664 706,056 137,475 885,201
Shanghai Tangjiu @ and its Sales of goods to
associates connected persons
ARKEREE)Y MEEATHERR 480,925 1,580,490 - - 480,925 1,580,490
Nanpu (on behalf of the Sales of goods to
Nanpu Group) ¥ connected persons
R (RREREE)Y MBEATEERR 1,008,680 1,170,200 - - 1,008,680 1,170,200
Nanpu (on behalf of the Purchase of goods from
Nanpu Group) ¥ connected persons
1. FENBAEEARAR S A AN ARERATR T Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce & Food Ltd. is a substantial
F)RRRARA TN EERE - TIMRELE AR T NE shareholder of Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and Food Co., Ltd.,
AR AN EEBELEEERATAAATMEEAL and Shanghai Chuanxiang Food Factory, both of which are
R SRR AR ATE LENEEE AR AN subsidiaries of the Company. Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce &
2EWMBRT - B FTTEBIE 14A8115 -« Pl EmEES Food Ltd. is therefore a connected person of the Company. Shanghai
SOAHE o Huanglongtai Tea Company Limited is wholly-owned by Shanghai

Shaowansheng Commerce & Food Ltd., a connected person of the
Company, and is therefore its associate and a connected person of
the Company. The above continuing connected transactions have
been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules.

2 A T A ) AR - RS Bl A R 2 Shanghai Tangjiu is a substantial shareholder of Nanpu, which is
H49% - B FTTEAARATIMAL AT AfiAAAT indirectly owned by the Group as to 49% and a joint venture of the
REEAL - Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules, and is therefore a

connected person of the Company.

84 RIBBIFR IR AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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s Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce & Food Ltd. is a substantial
shareholder of Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and Food Co., Ltd.,
and Shanghai Chuanxiang Food Factory, both of which are
subsidiaries of the Company. Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce &
Food Ltd. is therefore a connected person of the Company. Shanghai
Shaowansheng Food Company is wholly-owned by Shanghai
Shaowansheng Commerce & Food Ltd., a connected person of the
Company, and is therefore its associate and a connected person of
the Company. The above continuing connected transactions have
been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules.

. Nanpu is a joint venture owned by the Company as to 49% through
Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and
Spirits Co., Ltd. collectively, and as to 51% by Shanghai Tangjiu.
Nanpu is deemed by the Stock Exchange as a connected person
pursuant to Rules 14A.07(6) and 14A.19 of the Listing Rules.

For further information relating to the above transactions,
please refer to the Prospectus, the announcements dated
18 November 2013, 30 December 2013 and 16 November
2015 and the circulars despatched on 14 December 2013
and 10 December 2015 of the Company.

PARTIALLY-EXEMPT CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below is a summary of the continuing connected
transactions for the Group, which are exempt, under Rule
14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements, but are subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

BE-B-tHT-A=t-HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

RESE (RRAFRH
WEBAR  FEEEHER)
BERZAE Tenwow Group (on behalf of AR (RREERE)
BEAL Nature of connected itself and its subsidiaries, Nanpu (on behalf of the B3
Connected person transaction excluding the Nanpu Group) Nanpu Group) Total
EREHEH BERCHLE EREHEH
Actual FELR Actual FELR Actual FELR
amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap
AR®TR AR¥TR ARETRT AR%Trn AR%Tn AR%Tx
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
MEELERABEALS MEEATRENE 840 14,085 - 29,704 840 43789
AERHBRAF Leasing of properties from

Mr. Lin Jianhua and his associate,  connected persons
Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd.®
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1 Mr. Lin Jianhua is a controlling Shareholder and a Director of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company. Shanghai
Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Nanpu (Hong Kong) Investments Limited, which is in turn owned by
Mr. Lin Jianhua as to more than 30%. Therefore, Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. is an associate of Mr. Lin Jianhua and a
connected person of the Company. As Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. is connected with Mr. Lin, the continuing
connected transactions under the above tenancy agreements have
been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. For
further information relating to the tenancy agreements, please refer
to the Prospectus and the announcements dated 2 July 2014 and 16
November 2015 of the Company.

Confirmation from the Auditor and
Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company in relation to the Continuing
Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was
engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2017 in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of
continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

2. onnormal commercial terms or better; and
3. according to the agreement governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in the normal course of business are set out
in Note 33 to the financial statements. Those related party
transactions which constituted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, are set out in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
above, and the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
during the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important and
valuable assets and thus we provide competitive and
attractive remuneration packages to retain the employees.
The management reviews annually the remuneration to its
employees of the Group. The Group values long standing
relationships with its suppliers and customers. The Group
aims at delivering high quality services to its customers and
developing mutual trust and enhancing communication and
commitment between the Group and its suppliers.

201744%§  Annual Report 2017 87



EEEWME

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FEEFRHER
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—RHILEFE AEEZF
AEEFEAARHEREENE LD R R 19.4% K&
499% - AEBRARFPFERAARFELMNEER D
Lt S Bl B87% K325% - HE—_ZE—+tF+ = A
T —HIEFE BMEESIEARSEHEZTHE
AKARBMERRER (BEEFTRNERS AR EE %
TTRASR A E) R ERASEE R AHER KB
B o

BB AEsT 2l

BER DB EAERETS
R-Z—=%)\A—A ARFARMEARFERD
FEE AR AR B (R AR EAERE

Bl BRCHABENBEREAESEERTLEE

BEAREARRRENEE  YEBHSEERH
KEARBE  ABEHREHEAEERALRNE
M NBEMERMSEE -

NN

R-TE—+F+_A=+—H BREEXIXLH%E
ATEE IR AT IR B BRI BT AR R D &
SHERFARLEMS 95 AE17,916,667 BB &
19,166,667 BEB& (7 + 7 MG R AR E B BB A A B E
BEITRRARA90.81% K #70.87% ©

NN

EBEARBAARRBIREERAREEABREST
FREBEEN MR BIERER100EBT

REBEEXRAREERBERESENERITEER1.80
BT FR BNBRELHAET TREAAME

R RE AT & RTTE BB Z B M T AT A 5B
SO R ATER -

HE_Z—+tHF+-_A=T—BHLEFE HEAX
NEEERNBRESTE THRBBREETE - R TX
Pl e B HmBRESN  ARBEETEREERR
P E R B AE S BIE — D RITRIRDBAE -

88

KIEEFEIER B AR * Tenwow International Holdings Limited

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the percentages
of purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and the five
largest suppliers were 19.4% and 49.9%, respectively. The
percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers were 8.7% and
32.5%, respectively. During the year ended 31 December
2017, none of the Directors or any of their close associates,
or any Shareholders of the Company (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any interest in any of
the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 1 August 2013, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to give
the participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake
in the Company and to help motivate such participants to
optimize their performance and efficiency. It also helps to
retain the participants whose contributions are important to
the long-term growth and profitability of the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, the maximum number of shares
of the Company available for issue in respect of which
options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme was 17,916,667 shares for Pool A and 19,166,667
shares for Pool B, representing approximately 0.81% and
0.87% respectively of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 was paid by the
grantees upon acceptance of the grant of option by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The
exercise price per share under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$1.80. Each option was subject to a vesting
scale and exercise period as detailed in the note to the
movement of outstanding share options of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme during the year set out in the table
below.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no share option
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was exercised.
Save for the options which have been granted as described
below, no further options will be offered or granted by the
Company pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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TERBPEEFRARAETRERBEEARAHAEE The following table discloses details of the Company’s
BB RS RE ST ST AR B i R TE BB IR R 1B LA I outstanding share options held by the Directors and certain

EREHE - Z—+F+-_A=1t—HILFENES : employees of the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and its movement during the year ended 31
December 2017:
BREHE
Number of Share Options
B2 B2 gz
2 2 “E-tf ®
Sr=F =t+-B t=A=t-H “E—tF
® LEE LEE tFEE +t=A=t+-H
“E-tF BRH B BAX fl:3:4
-A-H Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Wi SRRH
mgEe during the during the during the during the Balance fTfEE#ET
ABRAEERER Balanceas  yearended  yearended year ended year ended asat  Exercise 1THEH
Name or category &1 A at 1January 31December 31December 31December 31December 31December price per  Exercise
of grantees Date of Grant 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 share period
2(248)
Directors (Pool B)
B —E-=N\A-H 4,166,664 0 0 0 0 4,166,664 180T LiEa
Mr. Lam Hang Boris 1 August 2013 HK$1.80 Note 1
BB T E —Z-=5\A—H 1,666,667 0 0 0 0 1,666,667 18077 Bz
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming 1 August 2013 HK$1.80 Note 1
BEELLT “Z-=57\A—H 1,666,667 0 0 0 0 1,666,667  1.807%7T Bzt 1
Ms. Au Lai Hang 1 August 2013 HK$1.80 Note 1
FHEEEE(MEI) ZT-=ZFfNA—H 1,666,667 0 0 0 0 1,666,667 1.8087T LiEa
Mr. Wang Juewei 1 August 2013 HK$1.80 Note 1
(Note 3)
BREEERAN —T-=%N\A-A 17,916,667 0 0 0 0 17916667  180%7T FizE2
[EE (F4)(85)  1August 2013 HK$1.80 Note 2
Senior Management
and other
employees (Pool A)
(in aggregate)
BREEERAM —T-=%NA-AH 10,000,002 0 0 0 0 10,000,002 1.80%7T B3k 1
EE(24)(85) 1 August 2013 HK$1.80 Note 1
Senior Management
and other employees
(Pool B)
(in aggregate)
st “E-=F)\A-H 37,083334 0 0 0 0 37,0833 180T
Total 1 August 2013 HK$1.80
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Notes:

Each grantee who falls under Pool B with share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company will be
entitled to exercise his/her options in the following manner:

1) up to 10% of the share options granted are exercisable from
17 September 2013 to 17 September 2014;

2 up to 30% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2014 t0 17 September 2015;

(3) up to 50% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2015 to 17 September 2016;

4) up to 70% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2016 to 17 September 2017,

(5) such number of share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2017 and ending on the expiration of 9 years from the date of
grant of the option (subject to the provisions for early
termination under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme).

Each grantee who falls under Pool A with share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company will be
entitled to exercise his/her options in the following manner:

1) up to 10% of the share options granted are exercisable from
17 September 2013 to 17 September 2014;

2 up to 35% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2014 to 17 September 2015;

(3) up to 65% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2015 to 17 September 2016;

(4) such number of share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2016 and ending on the expiration of 8 years from the date of
grant of the option (subject to the provisions for early
termination under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme).

Mr. Wang Juewei resigned as executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company with effect from 22 March 2017.
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 19 August
2013 (the “Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”), which
became effective on the listing date on 17 September 2013.
The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Group to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.
The Directors consider that the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation, will
enable the Group to reward its employees, Directors and
other selected participants for their contributions to the
Group and to encourage them to give their best
performance and efficiency to the Group in future. It is also
designed to attract and retain or utilize other means to
maintain good relations with qualified individuals who are
or will be beneficial to the Company’s development or
success. The Directors may, at their absolute discretion,
invite any directors and employees of any member of the
Group (including the Nanpu Group), any advisers,
consultants, distributors, contractors, customers, suppliers,
agents, business partners, joint venture business partners,
and service providers of any member of the Group to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
options may be granted to any company wholly owned by
one or more persons belonging to any of the above classes
of participants. The eligibility of any of these classes of
participants shall be determined by the Directors on the
basis of the Directors’ opinion as to the participant’s
contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.
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S

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the day on which trading of the
shares of the Company commenced on the SEHK and any
shares issued upon the exercise of the over-allotment
option during the listing of the Company’s share on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 17 September 2013
(the "Listing"), which were 207,361,200 shares representing
9.4% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this annual report.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

As at 31 December 2017, no share options had been
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The share options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme are exercisable within a period of 10 years
after the date of grant. The Directors are entitled to
determine the performance targets to be achieved as well
as the minimum period that an option must be held before
an option can be exercised at the time of offer of the
Options to the participants. The subscription price per share
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be a price
determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the SEHK's daily quotations sheet on the date
of the offer of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the SEHK's daily quotations for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of grant. The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing on 17
September 2013. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is
payable upon acceptance of the grant of an option.

For further information relating to the scheme, please refer
to the Prospectus of the Company.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO PURCHASE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2017 was the Company or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme of the Company as
disclosed on pages 88 to 92, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman
Islands where the Company is incorporated which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing Shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Saved as those disclosed under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Group did not
have any significant investment during the year under
review.

PURCHASE, SALE, OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

TAXATION
Details of the taxation of the Group are set out in Note 28 to
the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the level of public float as required under the
Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates.
Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the
Group endeavours to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and to adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations in the amount of approximately RMB6.4 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There was no subsequent events between the balance
sheet date (i.e. 31 December 2017) and the date of this
annual report that would cause material impact on the
Group.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will
retire at the conclusion of the AGM. PricewaterhouseCoopers,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Lin Jianhua
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2018
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIN Jianhua (MEZ), aged 59, is the founder and
chairman of the Group and was appointed as an executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
August 2011 and March 2017, respectively. He is also the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lin is responsible for the
overall strategic planning and business direction of the
Group. Mr. Lin has more than 24 years of experience in the
food and beverage distribution industry. Mr. Lin worked at
Putian Huanan Food Co., Ltd. (BEETER IR BB R A7)
as a manager from September 1985 to September 1992. In
October 1992, Mr. Lin founded Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd.
(FERSEE)AB R AR]) (previously known as Shanghai
Nanpu Food Co., Ltd. (E/8MEHERMAERAR]), and was
the general manager until May 2016. In December 1999, Mr
Lin founded Tenwow Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (KIZ & F (=)
BRRAF]) (previously known as Shanghai Tenwow Food
Co., Ltd. (E/BRERMBRAF)), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and has since served as the
chairman. Mr. Lin is also a director of Praise Sheen Limited
FEABR AR and Nanpu International Limited (Fa 58 BIER
BBR 2 7)), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Lin was appointed as the chairman and authorized
representative of Tenwow (Chengdu) Food Co., Ltd. CRIE (A
#ERMAR A7) and Tenwow (Tianjin) Food Co., Ltd. (K18
(KB)R AR AT, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company in June 2013 and December 2013, respectively.
Mr. Lin was appointed as the chairman, general manager
and authorized representative of Tenwow Food Group
(Shanghai) Sales Co., Ltd. (RKIEER fmERE (/8 EHERAR)
in March 2014, a director of Tenwow Beverages
International Company Limited (K& 25 A= 8k S BIFR A PR A 7)
in July 2014, the chairman and authorized representative of
Tenwow (Chongging) Food Co., Ltd. (EE T AEBERRAR A
al) in December 2014 and a director of Nanpu Fine Wine &
Spirits International Company Limited (R 7/ BB 55 BIFR A R
Z2A]) inJuly 2015. Mr. Lin was appointed as a director of
Redew Bio-Technology International Company Limited (41 5&
AR BB AR AT in June 2016 and was appointed as
the chairman and authorized representative of Shanghai
Redew Bio-Technology Co., Ltd. (E/84IBAWMRIRERA
al) in September 2016. Mr. Lin has been a director of zhi
Qun Enterprises Limited (F&f 3 A R 2 8)), the controlling
Shareholder of the Company. He is the father of Mr. Lin Qj,
an executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. LIN Qi (#£3F), aged 25, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 22 March 2017. Mr. Lin joined
the Group in January 2016. He is currently the deputy
general manager of the Group and is responsible for the
day-to-day management of Tenwow non-alcoholic beverage
division and overseeing the Group’s marketing department.
Mr. Lin was appointed as executive director, general
manager and legal representative of both Hangzhou Lin's
Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd. (FUNAREEZEABR A F]) and
Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd. (E/&KEB
EERAT]) in April 2017. He was also appointed as a
director of Tenwow Foods (Group) Co., Ltd. (KIER fh (5 )
AR in May 2017. Mr. Lin was appointed as the
chairman and legal representative of Tenwow (Inner
Mongolia) Food Co., Ltd. (REBE(AFEH)RmBRAR) in
August 2017. Mr. Lin graduated from University College
London in August 2013 with a bachelor’s degree in
mathematics. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lin worked as
the assistant to the general manager at Nanpu Food (Group)
Co., Ltd. (FERm(ERE)BR 2 A]) from July 2014 to
December 2015, where he was responsible for managing
the marketing and media departments. He was the brand
manager at Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Lid. (B R m(EE)E
R~ &]) from October 2013 to June 2014, where he was
responsible for the marketing and promotion of Tenwow
non-alcoholic beverage products. Mr. Lin is the son of Mr.
Lin Jianhua, an executive Director, the Chairman, the Chief
Executive Officer and a controlling Shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. LAM Hang Boris (#K#2), aged 47, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Group and was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company in May
2012. Mr. Lam is responsible for the overall financial
operation of the Group, investor relations related matters
and overall secretarial matters of the Company. He is also
in charge of communications with the Stock Exchange and
other regulatory authorities. Mr. Lam graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy in 1996. Mr. Lam has more than 21 years of
audit and finance-related experience. He joined KPMG (£55
HE TR EFEAT) in September 1996 and resigned in March
2011. Mr. Lam has been an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 1999,
and a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since November 2000.
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Mr. YEUNG Yue Ming (#5#188), aged 52, is a vice
president of the Group and was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company in May 2012. Mr. Yeung is
responsible for the Group’s overall sales. Mr. Yeung
received his bachelor’s degree in social sciences
(journalism and communications) from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1988. After graduation until
March 1994, Mr. Yeung worked at Nestlé (China) Ltd. (&£ &
(FFED)ABR A R]). Mr. Yeung then worked as the senior
regional manager in charge of the Beijing Region for
Maxxium Shanghai Limited (BE&FBE 5 (AR A T)
from March 1994 to June 2006. From June 2006 to April
2012, Mr. Yeung worked at Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (3
HEM(ER)ARAF) as a vice general manager,
overseeing Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd.'s (R H & fm(EE)
BB 7)) marketing and sales activities. Mr. Yeung joined
the Group as a vice general manager of Tenwow Food
(Group) Co., Ltd. (RERm(EE)FR A F]), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in May 2012.

Ms. AU Lai Hang (EE1E), aged 49, is a vice president of
the Group and was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company in May 2012. Ms. Au is responsible for the
overall sales and marketing and promotions of the Group.
Ms. Au graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1989
with a bachelor’s degree in social work. Ms. Au worked at
Nestlé (China) Ltd. (=& (R E)EBR A 7)) after graduation to
May 1995, starting as a marketing executive trainee and
was promoted to the position of senior product manager.
Ms. Au then worked at A.S. Watson Group (fE R K £ E)
from May 1995 to August 2011 where she was the
marketing director for water & beverages for Mainland
China when she departed. During her employment, Ms. Au
continued her education and obtained a master’s degree in
business administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1997. Ms. Au joined the Group in May 2012 as
a vice president of Nanpu International Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. She was appointed as a
director and general manager of Nanpu Fine Wine & Spirits
International Company Limited (R EE& B R AR A7),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in August 2014
and July 2015 respectively, and was appointed as a director
of Redew Bio-Technology International Company Limited (4T
BEMEFBEBAERAF) in June 2016. Ms. Au was
appointed as deputy general manager of Tenwow Food
(Group) Co., Ltd. (REER M (EE)ER 2 7)), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, in October 2017.
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ANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Zhao (2I#l), aged 45, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2016. Mr Liu
received a bachelor’'s degree and a master’s degree in
finance from Tsinghua University in 1996 and 1998,
respectively. Mr. Liu has been serving as a managing
director of CICC Jia Cheng Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. ("CICC Jia Cheng"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
China International Capital Corporation Limited (“CICC") (the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3908)), and is mainly responsible for
investments and post-investment management. Mr. Liu
possesses 19 years of experience in private equity
investment and investment banking. From 1998 to 2002,
Mr. Liu worked in the investment banking division of CICC.
From 2002 to 2004, Mr. Liu founded Beijing Dynamic Space
Information Technology Co, Ltd., where he served as the
chief executive officer. From 2004 to 2006, he was a vice
president in the investment banking division of CICC and
was mainly responsible for handling and has accomplished
several major initial public offerings and mergers and
acquisitions. From 2006 to 2007, he was an associate
director of Standard Chartered Private Equity. Mr. Liu joined
CICC Jia Cheng in May 2007 and has led several investments
in various industries including consumer, clean-technology
and industrial.
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Mr. YAN Zzhixiong (Bx&1%#), aged 46, was appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 22 March 2017.
Mr. Yan is currently the managing director of China
Momentum Fund, a fund managed by an affiliate of Fosun
International Limited. Mr. Yan graduated from the Darden
Graduate School of Business at University of Virginia with a
master of business administration (“MBA") in 2006. He also
obtained a master’s degree in accounting from Lubin School
of Business at Pace University in 2003, and a bachelor’s
degree in economics from the Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics in 1994. From 1994 to 1999, Mr.
Yan was responsible for the sales and marketing of personal
and skin care products at Unilever (China) Co., Ltd.. Later,
between 1999 and 2001, he was in charge of the China’s
business development for Seagram Company Ltd..
Subsequent to his MBA graduation, Mr. Yan worked in the
consumer investment banking department of Bear Stearns
in New York as a vice president from 2005 to 2008. He then
worked at Macquarie Group Limited, Yuanta Financial
Holdings and Standard Chartered Bank in Hong Kong from
2008 to 2015 and was responsible for the Greater China
consumer investments. He is also a chartered financial
analyst of the Chartered Financial Analyst Institute.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LIU Chang-Tzong (£1#°R), aged 62, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 17 September 2013. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Liu graduated from Chien-Hsing Industrial
College (now known as Chien-Hsing University of Science
and Technology) in 1975. Mr. Liu served as a distribution
manager at Taiwan Coca-Cola Ltd. (& /&7 O] 24355 B R
~\]) from May 1988 to July 1990, and then as a national
sales manager at Taiwan Nestlé Ltd. (&/&& LMD AR A
&]) from August 1990 to October 1995. Mr. Liu subsequently
worked at Nestlé China Ltd. (ZZ (P E)ERRAF]) as the
director of national sales from November 1995 to June 2002,
and then at Nestlé Purina (Shanghai) Ltd (/8% & & R4
B BBR /AT as executive general manager and director
from July 2002 to May 2006. Mr. Liu was last employed by
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corporation from July 2006
to February 2012, and served as executive vice president of
the convenient food division and was chairman of North
China before departure.

Mr. CHEUNG Yui Kai Warren (38&£), aged 50, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company since 17 September 2013. He is also the Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheung
graduated from the University of Southern Queensland of
Australia with a bachelor’s degree in business and has
more than 22 years of corporate finance experience. Mr.
Cheung held management positions of corporate finance in
several financial corporations such as Standard Chartered
Asia Limited, Standard Chartered Australia Limited, ABN
AMRO Asia Corporate Finance Limited, SMBC Nikko
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, Ping An of China Capital
(Hong Kong) Company Limited and Great Wall International
Corporate Finance Limited. Mr. Cheung has been serving as
the director of China Silk Road International Capital Limited
since August 2017. From May 2016 to August 2017, Mr.
Cheung served as the managing director and head of M&A
of First Capital International Finance Limited. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Food Wise Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 01632)
on 8 November 2016.
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Mr. WANG Longgen (E#E4R), aged 65, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 17 September 2013. He is also the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Wang was
qualified as a senior economist by the Shanghai Economics
(Circulation) Senior Professional and Technical Title
Qualification Evaluation Committee in 1995. Mr. Wang
graduated from Air Force Political College of the People’s
Liberation Army of China in economics and management in
1999. Mr. Wang also received a master’s degree in
economics from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in 1999. From May 1979 to June 1989, Mr. Wang
worked at Huangpu District Tobacco & Wine Co., Ltd. (ZJ#
[@ &%~ 7)) and Huangpu District Commerce Commission
(EHREIEZES). From June 1989 to March 1991, Mr.
Wang served as the deputy director-general of Huangpu
District Industrial and Commercial Administration Bureau (&
HE TETHEER). Subsequently, from March 1991 to
October 1996, Mr. Wang served as the director-general and
then deputy secretary of the Chinese Communist Party
Committee of Huangpu District Industrial and Commercial
Administration Bureau (E)A& LETKEREE). From
October 1996 to June 1999, Mr. Wang was the director-
general and then deputy secretary of the Chinese
Communist Party Committee of Huangpu District Economic
and Trade Commission (E)A @& EE 5Z B ). From June
1999 to April 2011, Mr. Wang served as vice chairman,
president and deputy secretary of the party committee in
Shanghai New World (Group) Co., Ltd. (H/8# it REBAR
‘A7), and chairman and secretary of the party committee
from April 2011 to January 2013
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Mr. SHEN Yalong (Jt3E8E), aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 22
March 2017. Mr. Shen has over 43 years of experience in
the fast-moving consumer goods industry. Mr. Shen served
as deputy general manager from July 1971 to March 1993 at
the Seagull on the Bund Hotel (also known as the Shanghai
International Seamen’s Club). He was appointed as the
Shanghai regional manager for Seamart Limited from March
1993 to July 2000 and the Beijing regional manager from
August 2000 to July 2001. Mr. Shen held various key
positions in Pernod Ricard China from August 2001 till his
retirement in November 2014, including the business
director for Central China, the director of external affairs
and human resources, as well as the executive director and
the executive vice president.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. LU Ying (BE§), aged 48, is a vice president of the
Group and is primarily responsible for the Group’s financial
operations. Ms. Lu received a bachelor’s degree in
accounting in 1994 from Changchun Taxation College (K&
FRISEBR). Ms. Lu received her accountant qualifications in
1996 and became a non-practising member of the Shanghai
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2009. From July
1989 to December 2000, Ms. Lu worked at Jilin Chemical
Industrial Co. Ltd. (ML IARR AR AR in the accounts
department, and was promoted to the position of chief
accountant before her departure. Ms. Lu then served as the
financial manager at Petro China East China Refining &
Marketing Taicang Company (R BIA mZEERL TEEHE KA
7~ &) from December 2000 to March 2002. Ms. Lu served as
a deputy general manager in charge of finance and
administration at Shanghai Miaoshi Dairy Co., Ltd. (E/8%+
FLEEBR A A]) from January 2003 to October 2008. Ms. LU
joined the Group in November 2008 as the financial
controller for Tenwow Group, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. She was appointed to her
current position in August 2010.
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Mr. ZHANG Le (5R%%), aged 43, is the Vice President of
Sales of the Group's Tenwow Tea and is mainly responsible
for the sales of the distribution channels of the Group's
Tenwow Tea. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
Business Administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University
in 2015. From October 2000 to December 2008, Mr. Zhang
served as Director of Sales at PepsiCo (Guangzhou)
Company Limited. In March 2009, Mr. Zhang joined Nanpu
and served as Vice President of Sales responsible for the
sales of Tenwow Tea’s distribution channels in Eastern
China region. Mr. Zhang was appointed his current position
in January 2018.

Mr. YOU Qiming (X 87), aged 48, is the Vice President
of the Group and is mainly responsible for the Group’s
modern channels (other than distribution channels of
Tenwow Tea) and the eight branches of the Group, as well
as the Group’s logistics center. Mr. You obtained his
bachelor’s degree from Zhongyuan University of Technology
(formerly Zhengzhou Textile Institute) in 1993. From October
1993 to June 1995, he served as a business representative
at Zhongyi Textile Machinery Engineering Co., Ltd,
responsible for sales. From July 1995 to May 2004, he
served at Swire Coca-Cola Beverages Zhengzhou Ltd. as
Sales Manager and then Marketing Manager, responsible
for sales, channel, and marketing. From May 2004 to
October 2010, he served at Synear Food Holdings Limited
as the General Manager of a branch company responsible
for sales. From October 2006 to May 2010, he served at Yili
Group as Director of Modern Retail Channels, responsible
for sales management of modern channels. From May 2010
to July 2016, he served at Sanquan Food Co., Ltd. as
Director of Modern Retail Channels, responsible for sales
management of modern channels. From July 2016 to
October 2017, he served at Eternal Asia Supply Chain Co.,
Ltd. as Vice President of 380 Platform, responsible for the
exploration and establishment of the online/offline model of
modern channels. In October 2017, he joined the Group and
was appointed as his current position.
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Mr. ZHOU Yanwen (B#EX), aged 42, is a vice president
of the Group and is primarily responsible for the marketing
and sales of the Group’s food and snacks. Mr. Zhou
graduated from the Wuhan University of Technology (&%
T ZKEZ) (now known as Wuhan University of Technology
(FVEI T AE) with a bachelor’s degree in management
engineering in 1999. Mr. Zhou received an executive MBA
degree from Wuhan University (30/ZA£) in 2008. Mr. Zhou
joined the Group in March 2000 as the general manager of
Wuhan Nanpu. Mr. Zhou also serves as the general
manager of several other jointly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, including the general manager of Tenwow
(Wuhan) Food Co., Ltd. (RIE(EVE) R B BR 2 &) since June
2009, the general manager of Wuhan Tenwow Drinks Co.,
Ltd. (BUERIEZRESEER QR since August 2010, the
general manager of Tenwow (Chongging) Food Co., Ltd. (&
BmAERMAERAT) from December 2010 to December
2014 and the general manager of Xiangyang Nanpu Food
LLC (EFSmEARmMABRELAR) since November 2011,
overseeing the operations and management of each
company. Mr. Zhou was appointed to his present position in
January 2013.
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22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888 Fax: +852 2810 9888

BERAE

To the shareholders of Tenwow International
Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Tenwow
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 113 to 236,
which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2017,

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“"HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. The
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on the matter.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

° Revenue recognition

. Impairment of trade receivables

BN ET A EEEARETEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

KA TR
Revenue recognition

R4 6 M MR 2. 25 AR o
Refer to note 2.25 Revenue recognition to the
consolidated financial statements.

WA BB B TEIMRMERS T AR - WA R & ZEAAE
BRI AL AR A S AR LN EERR
MBMEREEER -

Revenue is recognised when the amount and the
related costs are reliably measured, and the risks and
rewards of the underlying products have been
transferred to the customers.

BMETFZEHEEHRNBEENRZE=EREA B
TR AT R BRI R L EHEE - AMBEE R K
I mA R B RS WA MWERRR 2 Fa g FE
B =& o

We focused on this area due to the huge volume of
sales transactions mainly with numerous distributors in
many different locations and there may be time lapse
between the timing of the goods received by the
customers and the recognition of revenue.

Wit ZEXHRERACEENREBHETEFE
VEIERRTR ©

Accordingly, there could be potential misstatements in
relation to whether these transactions are recognised
in the proper reporting periods.

BMBBERHEEAR  HESENRAERBRETT
R AR RN R4 o

We understood and evaluated the revenue recognition
policy of the Group by reviewing the contracts with
customers.

B ER  FHEURE T EREE RS EMNERIHE
WA G SR HIES] o pEoN - BPVRIH T E KB AME
RS — M= BT EHIIR S R B B L] o

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s
controls in respect of the Group’s sales transactions from
customer order’s approval to sales recording. In addition,
we tested the general information technology control
environment and the related automated controls of the
Group's revenue related systems.

BMEAMERN - RRRESHBIFES  BEHE
E R RERBMER R HERE  BEBUREFH
ZUEE - HEARTRMEANNRZE AU AET TR
ol EEREPHMUE REE - BHMEE P AFEER
—RERIBRANHETT B ERR o

We conducted testing of revenue recorded covering
different locations and customers, using sampling
techniques, by examining the relevant supporting
documents including risks and rewards terms of the sales
contracts, customer orders, goods delivery notes and
customer’s receipt notes. In addition, we confirmed
customers’ balances on a targeted basis, considering the
nature and characteristics of those customers.

Brib 2 9N - BT EAT TIEE S 2 — 2B A =
BEEABHABLENHEERA  TEESZTREEREP
B EHERRE - LA S A B S TE IERER 3RS BRI TR o
Furthermore, one of our focused audit efforts was testing
sales transactions recorded before and after the balance
sheet date, using sampling techniques, by tracing to the
goods delivery notes and customers’ receipt notes, to
assess whether revenue was recognised in the correct
reporting periods.

FMMARESEEA S BN o AR ZEIER -
We also tested journal entries posted to revenue accounts
to identify any unusual or irregular items.

ERBAIMMAIE - RFVREBRN L G HiRE M BHRE
EESRTENEIE -

Based on our work performed, we did not note any
significant issues which would impact the consolidated
financial statements.

107

201743k e Annual Report 2017



B M % BRD ¥R &

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

HREITER

RMNFNAEEAREEER

Key Audit Matters

BB BN AR E
Impairment of trade receivables

BR2RRE M BHREMT2.14 8 5 K& E M fE W IR
M) B 5 REMEBRIERRER 135 %&E@ﬁ%
ZHIE o

Refer to notes 2.14 Trade and other receivables, 4(iv)
Impairment of trade and other receivables and 13

Trade and other receivables to the consolidated

financial statements.

RZEBE—tFTA=+—0  A&EEFHERKFIE
RARE2146BET  EREERARBIBEETT °
At 31 December 2017, the Group held trade receivable
amounted to RMB2,146 million, against which a
provision of RMB18 million was set aside.

MENGRIEEH A RERERE - ZEBGEMNE
ERESREEEHHAMBARARESREN G Mt
1R TARERERBRNEUGRIEZS:  BIRERE
RS EHEITH AR - B 5 RBGRIERRERE
DIRERE#AE %EE’JT@HSZ MAERTAE © B 5 I WRIBR
BEREBIREEREHE  BERE&RAIEERTERTE
FREE °

For receivable balances with objective evidence of
impairment, individual provision was made based on
management’s estimate of discounted future cash
flows. Receivable balances without objective evidence
of impairment are grouped based on their credit risk
characteristics for evaluation. Impairment provision of
trade receivable is made based on an assessment of
the recoverability of the amounts. Provision for
impairment of trade receivable involves management
judgement and the actual outcome may be different
from original estimation.

BMEER UL BT RN E 5 B GRIB AR 85 - A
R UL AR AT W B M AT R st M A BT E 2
M o

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of trade
receivable balances and the significance of estimation
and judgement involved in determination of the
recoverability of such balances.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

BT RE - FHETIERE T EIRE ARG - NEE -
HANEEE ZRYKRENRE  BESFTERESE
HEERR IR D T AT ERE R E AV ABRRIE S -

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s
controls to review, assess and determine the impairment of
trade receivables, including controls over identification of
objective evidence of impairment, maintenance of aging
analysis and calculations of the impairment provisions.

g

BAEORR T B R ER KA EIER TR ARE D TR ZEREE o
We tested the accuracy of aging ana|y3|s of trade
receivables prepared by management on sample basis.

BB ATEE S RBRRESREAN PO - E250
AERBHNEERER  KfBAREXFUEIR(E
BRELE  SHARE %) K ARERN KDL -
We independently assessed the recoverability of a sample
of trade receivable balances, focusing on significant past
due or high risk balances. We assessed the collectability of
the balances by checking the supporting evidence,
including subsequent settlements, credit history, etc.

HREHERERENER - AMEXERFRRENE
B UYHESEERNBEAENSARRAE S
Tarfh - EREELERSENERER - FPHEAMNMIS
1B5 °

For those items with impairment provision made, we
reviewed the evidence of impairment for individual
provision, and then assessed the appropriateness of the
Group's grouping and calculation of estimating collective
provisions by considering the historical bad debts amounts
and pattern, taking into consideration of factors such as
customers’ credit and market condition.

BRBFAITHRR - RMRREEBETHEKARR AT
Bl R FTER 2B 1S 3 T R AP R R B IR 55 o
Based on the procedures performed, we considered
management’s judgments in assessing the recoverability of
trade receivables were supported by the evidence we
gathered.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’'s report is Mang Kwong Fung,
Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

RZE—tF+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2017

Rt=A=+-8
As at 31 December
—E—+F —E—RF

2017 2016
BT AR%ET T AREEFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - WENRE Property, plant and equipment 6 1,060,120 1,036,846
+ i {5 FE Land use rights 7 152,381 140,229
EEE Intangible assets 8 88,086 90,576
REEZE R BIRE Investments in associates 9 3,027 2,764
R—REL N ANKE Investment in a joint venture 10 423,315 424,422
BEFEMERE Deferred income tax assets 21 25,336 20,042
1,752,265 1,714,879
REBEE Current assets
ER < Inventories 12 1,079,160 869,402
E 5 M EMEWZIE Trade and other receivables 13 3,475,661 3,167,830
SR IR Restricted cash 14 714,898 702,362
B REEZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14 937,118 969,158
6,206,837 5,708,752
EEHAE Total assets 7,959,102 7,423,631
= EQUITY
i Share capital 15 176,448 176,448
f& A% B Share premium 15 1,190,822 1,293,887
E Other reserves 17 249,692 258,966
REBAF| Retained earnings 16 1,607,633 1,461,549
3,224,595 3,190,850
IR R Non-controlling interests 59,802 59,972
R Total equity 3,284,397 3,250,822
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R=ZZE—+F+=-A=+—8H
As at 31 December 2017

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
AR¥ET AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
=L LIABILITIES
FRBERS Non-current liabilities
B Borrowings 20 548,383 280,380
ELEREHARE Deferred income tax liabilities 21 31,372 27,386
IR 7 B A L A Deferred income on government grants 18 17,947 19,712
597,702 327,478
REBEE Current liabilities
B 5 R E (R~ FIE Trade and other payables 19 1,837,350 1,746,142
EHIFTSHAE Current income tax liabilities 53,047 71,964
B Borrowings 20 2,184,031 2,024,650
B EREEW A mE 35 Current portion of deferred income
on government grants 18 2,575 2,575
4,077,003 3,845,331
BE8E Total liabilities 4,674,705 4,172,809
Rk EERE Total equity and liabilities 7,959,102 7,423,631
55121 % 236 B WM Al A B TSR ER 2822045 - The notes on pages 121 to 236 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
FIBEI0EMFERRCHESTEN -2 — \F The financial statements on pages 113 to 120 were

At At IRRESFEEE - approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2018 and
were signed on its behalf.

e e
Director Director
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BHE_T—+F+-A=+—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

BEt+t-A=1t—HLEEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
B =E AR¥T R AREFIT
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
A Revenue 5 5,018,430 5,218,649
HHE R Cost of sales 23 (4,109,461) (4,200,411)
EF Gross profit 908,969 1,018,238
2SR Distribution costs 23 (414,501) (439,154)
TR Administrative expenses 23 (202,317) (185,363)
H A A Other income 22 27,778 19,069
Hapleas /(BE) — 558 Other gains/(losses) — net 24 5,399 (37,459)
R Operating profit 325,328 375,331
B U A Finance income 8,118 7,967
B TE R AR Finance expenses (106,273) (94,263)
BERA — BEE Finance expenses — net 26 (98,155) (86,296)
FE(REE &N RS A(EE) Share of profit/(losses) of associates 9 263 (22)
JE1E—R & &R ala A Share of profit of a joint venture 27 716 9,023
FRETEB B AR R Profit before income tax 228,152 298,036
FrERiEs Income tax expense 28 (58,408) (84,091)
FEBF Profit for the year 169,744 213,945
Hih2EUBA Other comprehensive income
Higm st EDEEIEHEE  Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or l0ss
— GNEEITE =R — Currency translation differences (23,647) 3,238
FEZHKRBE Total comprehensive income
for the year 146,097 217,183
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE+=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
B =E AR%T AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
RAEER Total profit attributable to:
AAFIERFFAA Equity holders of the Company 159,975 204,834
IR R Non-controlling interests 9,769 9,111
169,744 213,945
2HKREZEER : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
KARERITEA Equity holders of the Company 136,610 207,888
e Non-controlling interests 9,487 9,295
146,097 217,183
AT DR AEG Earnings per share for profit
193 AR 2 F attributable to equity holders
of the Company
— SREREF — Basic earnings per share
(ABRAREDFIER) (expressed in RMB cents per share) 29 7.25 9.86
— EREERT — Diluted earnings per share
(AR ARES58R) (expressed in RMB cents per share) 29 7.23 9.81
F121 2236 EMMIFERBERE VB HRER BB IS - The notes on pages 121 to 236 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BHE_T—+F+-A=+—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

FENALAAERFBA
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ke BEEE  HbRE  REEA

Share Share Other Retained controlling Total

capital el TeServes earnings Total interests Equity

ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Kt 15) (Ht3E15) (WsE17) (Kizt16)
(Note 15) (Note 15) (Note 17) (Note 16)

“Z-~E-f-BE%  Baanceat 1 January 2016 164,634 1,149,151 234,246 1,275,982 2,824,013 75,95 2,899,568
FaUA Comprehensive income
EREH Profitfor the year - - - 204,834 204834 9,111 213,945
EREMEEHA Other comprenensive

income for the year - - 3054 - 3054 184 3238
SREARA Total comprehensive income - - 3,054 204834 207,888 9.29 217183
AfEENR S Transactions with owners
EEak (i s) Issug of ordinary shares (Note 15) 11814 273,33 - - 285,149 - 285,109
s Dividends - (128,599) - - (128,599 9.878) (138,477)
BRDRERR #E:r2  Pre-IPO share award scheme

—EHEEREEE —value of current employee Services - - 2399 - 2399 - 2399
HERBA Disposal of subsiiaries - - - - - (20,000) (20,000)
HEBATESRIERES  Capital contribution from non-controling

BARRA interests of subsidaries - - - - - 5,000 5,000
HREENRS Total transaction with owners,

ERBRNER recognised directly in equity 11814 144736 2,399 = 158,949 (24 878) 134,071
BEDTTRE Appropriation to Statutory reserve - - 19.267 (19.267) - - -
“E-5E Balance at 31 December 2016

TZA=+-REH 176,448 1,293,887 258,966 1,461,549 3190850 59,972 3250822
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HBHE-_T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

BEREAREERAA
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
k& RExEE Efbfite REEF i FERER
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling

capital premium reserves earnings Total interests  Total Equity

AEETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Rt 15) (&t 15) (W 17) (Mt 16)
(Note 15) (Note 15) (Note 17) (Note 16)

“Z-+tF-f-BE%  Baanceat 1 January 2017 176,448 1,293,887 258,966 1,461,549 3,190,850 59,972 3,250,822
SRBA Comprehensive income
EEHF Profit for the year - - - 159,975 159,975 9,769 169,744
EEEZERA Other comprehensive income

for the year - - (23,365) - (23,365) (282) (23,647)
GRERA Total comprehensive income - - (23,365) 159,975 136,610 9,487 146,097
RFEENR S Transactions with owners
&E Dividends - (103,065) - - (103,065) (9,657) (112,722)
BNARERRN %853  Pre-PO Share award scheme

—EhEERHER —value of current employee services - - 200 - 200 - 200
SFEENRS Total transaction with owners,

EERINER recognised directly in equity - (103,065) 200 - (102,865) (9,657) (112,522)
ERTLERE Appropriation to statutory reserve - - 13,891 (13.891) - - -
ZE-tE Balance at 31 December 2017

TZA=t-RER 176,448 1,190,822 249,692 1,607,633 3,224,595 59,802 3,284,397
5121 % 236 WM Al A B TSR R HREBE 25 - The notes on pages 121 to 236 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

118 FEEEERARAT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited



GEHTRER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

B E
Note

BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

BEt+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000

RETEHNRERE cash flows from operating activities
e (FTR), /i8R E Cash (used)/generated in operations 31 (19,504) 555,654
B UHE Interest received 6,273 7,602
B TS Income tax paid (78,633) (108,092)
sEENIR S R,/ Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
MAHER operating activities (91,864) 455,164

RETHNRESRE cash flows from investing activities
B E R A Investment in an associate 9 - (1,750)
BEE (AR Purchase of land use rights 7 (15,676) =
EEYMZE - WEKEE Purchase of property,

plant and equipment 6 (131,197) (141,708)
HEME  HERBHEBTSZR  Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 4,842 1,359
BEERTEE Purchase of intangible assets 8 (145) (814)
HEASSNTIEMDIREMSE  Proceeds from disposal of partial

shares in a joint venture - 20,000
HENBARER Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries - 6,553
WEEHIR S R ERE Net cash outflow from investing activities (142,176) (116,360)
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REERETRER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE+=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

b S

2017

ARMBT T
RMB’000

—TREF
2016
AREET T
RMB'000

AEEENRERE cash flows from financing activities
BATHIRPTS 3K Proceeds from issuance of new shares - 285,149
ME A REE R ER T E Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries - 5,000
SRITIEFRPTE K Proceeds from bank borrowings 31(b) 3,259,119 2,226,844
BEBITER Repayment of bank borrowings 31(b) (2,810,466) (1,772,313)
B LE Interest paid (113,292) (92,029)
SRR $I3R & Payments of restricted cash (12,536) (337,951)
SAHEAR R RS Dividends paid to equity holders
BEARRE of the Company (103,065) (128,599)
X4 IR E S B AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests (9,657) (9,878)
BEEZERESR Net cash inflow from financing activities 210,103 176,223
HeRBESEEYN Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
FORD) B cash equivalents (23,937) 515,027
FURE KB EEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 969,158 448,653
EXEHERSRIASE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
B2 on cash and cash equivalents (8,103) 5,478
FRASRAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 14 937,118 969,158

F121 2236 BHKIEBLE

TG RN AR D -

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rEEN-RER
REBBEZERER AR ([ARDQF]) BREESE
E((ERBRRDR-_Z—FNA-_T+HBR
BERSHEARE(CE—SFBIN)EHE
HEFMK RERRERAR - RAFIE®E
RERZZE—=FNLATLBEEBHERS
FIBRAR([EBERFT]) ER M o s
= 7 i#b 4 A Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands °

ARF (—RMRABKRAT) REWBAT (#
e L NESLEEINES LT DEE S
B RS TRANRAMERNEE HHR
CER

MRIESHHA  GREUBHRERAARE(TAR
D2 ZEVYBKRREAESTESR_ZF
—N\F=ZA -+ —_BH#ETIZ-

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP
Tenwow International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated by Mr. Lin Jianhua (the
“Controlling Shareholder”) in the Cayman Islands
on 25 August 2011 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (2010
Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The Company's
ordinary shares were listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK")
on 17 September 2013. The address of its registered
office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The Company, an investment holding company, and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing, distribution and trading of
beverages, food and snacks and others in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 22 March 2018.

201743% o AnnualReport2017 121



B %% & MY A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HBHE-_T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2

122

EESBRAE

RENEAEMBHRRRAN T ESHBERER
TX - BREEHBASN - L FBRIEMRF R T
BEERNERER -

21 REEE
RRNBKERE SRR TREE B
WEEN((EBMBREEN ) REB
RNANEGIFE 622 /B - iR E M EFHREE
RELRAERE -

RATABT R B RE LW B IREK
FRERE THRSH G - ENFEE
BEGERAASENG S BEBEPT
EEAE - MEARE S LS E H e
FERES - IO MRE M RREAR
RAMEETES o

KIEEEIZERR AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EESHEREE®)

22 BFBRENKBENED

(@

(b)

FEME RN T S B E
Ll

BB G EANETHR(ERD [RER
EXRIVN-_T—tF—-F—Hzkx
BN FERBLER - BEES
FRAFT75(ERIA) BRBERE
ABELNAEEY  FLEME
31(b) °

TR -LHFANERAEEERN
EARBRBENNEITREE

BRg £ FSH
ERVEACHD)

BREMBREER BERAMER
F 125 (BFT) KB

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

(@

(b)

New and amended standards
adopted by the Group

HKAS 7 (Amendments) “Statement of cash
flow” is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The
amendments to HKAS 7 require disclosure
of changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, see Note 31(b).

Standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards
effective in 2017 but not relevant to
the Group

HKAS 12 Income taxes
(Amendment)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in
(Amendment) other entities
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2 EESTBERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
22 S BENEENEE (H) 2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)
(c) MARFEMHVFERFZRE (c) New standards and interpretations

not yet adopted

TR —tF— A —BHBH The following new standards,

BB FEED&BHBROFED - F2 amendments and interpretations which

BEREERRZEENIEE HRE have been issued but are not effective for

B KB IR A IRATERA - the financial year beginning on 1 January
2017 and have not been early adopted by
the Group:

RUTBHR 2%
M FERBEXR

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

BERMBREENE 15 (BF]) BRERAEBHMBREER —Z-\¥$—H—H
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) First time adoption of HKFRS 1 January 2018
ERUBMEERE 25 (BFT) URHDREENNK —E-N\F—-H—H
HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Share-based payment 1 January 2018
BRMBEHMEERE 45 (BF]) REED —Z—-\F—H—H
HKFRS 4 (Amendments) Insurance Contracts 1 January 2018
BB ELERIE 95 SETE —ET-N\F—-H—H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BRI BREERE 1558 HEF 2 FEEE REEARA —E-)\$—H—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
B (BRI mE 2 HNERR B RFERRE —Z—-\F—H—H
ZEg)REE 25
HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign currency transactions and 1 January 2018
advance consideration
AR GETERIE 2858 (1BFT) REERB REERFNKRE —E-)\$—H—H
HKAS 28 (Amendment) Investment in associates and 1 January 2018
joint ventures
AR FETERIE 4098 1BFT) REME —E-)\$—H—H
HKAS 40 (Amendments) Investment property 1 January 2018
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BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2 EZSTBEBEE®E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
22 SHBENEENRE (B 2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)
(c) MAEMPWEFERFRRE (E) (c) New standards and interpretations

not yet adopted (Continued)

RUTBEfRz%
RENFERREN

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
BEMBETEAE 165 HE —E-hF—H—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
B GRERELZEgRE BETHEMHNMENREE —E-hF—A—H
F 2358
HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
BARBMBHREERFE 10957 R BEEREBEMFEIEERFE ZHD ST
BB GRS 2858 (1BF]) BELESHRA
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between To be determined
and HKAS 28 an investor and its associate or
joint venture
BRI EERIZE 1758 REEE 4 —E-_—4%—H—H
HBE B R E LR
FE15RRBBMBIRE
ZE R 58 9 SR A ER AN B
HKFRS17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2021 or
when apply HKFRS15
and HKFRS 9
EFHer e RRER TR A Certain new accounting standards and
RBE_Z—tH+-_HA=+—H interpretations have been published that
B R s BRI JEoa 1t - BARE R are not mandatory for 31 December 2017
W ARIZEETAN o 7N = (B 435 e S AE reporting periods and have not been early
EMB BN EMNTEINT adopted by the Group. The Group's

assessment of the impact of these new
standards and interpretations is set out
below.
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HBHE-_T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policy and

2 EEETBERBE® 2

22 BFBENKBENSEH(E)

disclosures (Continued)

() MARRMWPWFEAMRE(E) (c) New standards and interpretations
not yet adopted (Continued)
BB ERE SR T A HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
EHrBiat Nature of change
BBV BEHREERFOREIE S F HKFRS 9 addresses the classification,
EENEHBENSE  FFEMK measurement and derecognition of
&R - WA THEBESHSTH financial assets and financial liabilities,
FREARESREERFRERE - introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and a new impairment model
for financial assets.
T Impact
SEESFESITEHHemEE The Group does not expect the new
Mo EMFEEKEATE  AE guidance to have significant impact on the
WA classification and measurement of its
financial assets as the Group does not
have:
o DEATHIEESMEENE . Debt instrument that are classified
BIH: as available-for-sale financial assets;
o DHEARBEIIMIWIZERKA e Debt instrument classified as held-
FFTEMNEBIA to-maturity and measured at
amortised cost;
s REARBEFEAEEEFHTA
BaERIEE - e Equity investment measured at fair
value through profit or loss.
126 F<EEERERAERAR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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2 EESHERBE®

2.2 BHEHENEENES (B

(c)

te R ER AR Y T E R M2 ke (/)

BB EIREERIE9
(&)

B ()
RERED ’D\fﬁfﬁﬁufgﬁﬁi\%
FEtABRHETESRBER
FTERIE -  BRNBEAEEER ﬁg
FMEMRAAEEESHRNEMEE
WARR RIFZLAAEBEEZDE
BB EEEL B2 E
WA CETEBREREAERZ -
AEE W EIR BB IR ELERE
955 B - 18 Eﬁ?ﬁ’&ﬁfﬁﬁa‘fi
BEEZHT ABRNCRBE
ILERBASI BEEE n‘|'§'§E\'J%39
RIERMITHE: BRAKFE] 8B
]

FLE T A

MEMEHRAKBERETERR
REAEENRARERER - A&
EEEAEHTA  Ait - A&5H
B E B RS &K
2

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

()

New standards and interpretations
not yet adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new requirements affect the
accounting for non-derivative financial
liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss. The changes in the
fair value due to changes in the liability’s
own credit risk are recognized in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"), unless
such changes in fair value would create
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
There is no subsequent recycling of the
amounts in OCI to profit or loss. The Group
does not have financial liabilities subject
to HKFRS 9 that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss. The
derecognition rules have been transferred
from HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and have
not been changed.

The new hedge accounting rules will align
the accounting for hedging instruments
more closely with the Group's risk
management practices. The Group does
not have any hedge instruments.
Therefore, the Group does not expect any
impact on the new hedge accounting
rules.
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HBHE-_T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2

128

EEEMBRBE®)

22 BFBENKBENSEH(E)

(c)

REBFERERA

1e AR ER 4R O H E R M2k ()

BB EHREEREI R T A
(#)

+Z 36 )

FRE R B Z 5K 0 /,jﬁﬁﬁﬂf:.ﬁﬁia
Ko MIFRBFBSTERFE IR
f%?;zE%*iE’MfﬁﬁT@%ﬁEWm@
ZREERRRERK A BN
REE BEoREEAELEED
SARMEERANGEEIA &
BUBHRELERNEISHKIRETSZ
REMAaRELENKRAI THARE
E - BUTHER - EFURGEMA L
MBERER - NEEDEFEHH
BANEREE  HGWIEA#E
REZRUGHANEERK - AR
BYISER  BHMBEETTE
* o

$7 8 78 11 T B 5B AR 031 4R
M- AKEBHEBSBIAN
BT E A R
RIEFEB R R -
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SEX®EH
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TgE -

7] e Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

()

New standards and interpretations
not yet adopted(Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions
based on expected credit losses rather
than only incurred credit losses as is the
case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial
assets classified at amortised cost, debt
instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
contract assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers , lease
receivables, loan commitments and
certain financial guarantee contracts. The
Group is still assessing the actual impact
affected by the new model, it may result
in an earlier recognition of credit losses
for trade receivables. But according to the
preliminary result, the financial impact is
expected to be immaterial.

The new standard also introduces
expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent
of the Group’s disclosures about its
financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by Group

Must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018.
The Group will apply the new rules from 1
January 2018, with the practical
expedients permitted under the standard.
Comparatives for 2017 will not be
restated.
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2 EESHERBE®

2.2 BHEHENEENES (B

(c)
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HE-_T—tHF+-A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

()

New standards and interpretations
not yet adopted(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for
the recognition of revenue. This will
replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts
for goods and services and HKAS 11 which
covers construction contracts and the
related literature.

The new standard is based on the
principle that revenue is recognised when
control of a good or service transfers to a
customer.

The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of
applying the new standard on the group’s
financial statements and has identified the
following area that will be affected:

o Rights of return — HKFRS 15
requires separate presentation on
the balance sheet of the right to
recover the goods from the
customer and the refund obligation.
Due to the large size and low value
of the Group's products, the
historical goods return rate is low.
The financial impact of applying new
HKFRS 15 is not material.
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HBHE-_T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2
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KIEEEIZERR AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

()

New standards and interpretations
not yet adopted(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Date of adoption by Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2018. The group
intends to adopt the standard using the
modified retrospective approach which
means that the cumulative impact of the
adoption will be recognised in retained
earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.

HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It
will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the balance sheet, as the
distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value
leases.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.
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2 EESHERBE®

22 BFBRENHKENESEH(E)
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HE-_T—tHF+-A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

()

New standards and interpretations
not yet adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group's operating
leases. As at 31 December 2017, the
Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of approximately
RMB62 million. However, the Group has
not yet determined to what extent these
commitments will result in the recognition
of an asset and a liability for future
payments and how this will affect the
Group's profit and classification of cash
flows. Management is still assessing the
financial impact.

Mandatory application date/Date of
adoption by Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date. The
Group intends to apply the simplified
transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to
first adoption.

There are no other standards that are not
yet effective and that would be expected
to have a material impact on the Group in
the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.
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HBHE-_T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(@

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)
Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income
statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 consolidation (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in OCI in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in OCI are
reclassified to profit or 10ss.

2.3.1 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of
the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwiill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in OCI
is recognised in OCI with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is
the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of profit of associates” in the
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the income
Statement.
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2 EESHEERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
25 E¥RH 2.5 Joint arrangements
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The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11, investments in
joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to
be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially recognised
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses and movements in OCIl. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of the joint ventures have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive Directors that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. Other than the
Company and subsidiaries located outside
Mainland China, whose functional
currency is Hong Kong Dollar, all other
subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the
consolidated statements of
comprehensive income within “finance
income or cost”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other
gains/(losses) — net"”.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rates on the
dates the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation

differences are recognised in OCI.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in OCI.
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2 EESHEERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Y% - BMERZRHE 2.8 Property, plant and equipment
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Construction-in-progress (the “CIP”) represents
buildings, plant and machinery under
construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised
borrowing costs. No depreciation is made on
CIP until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the
costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated below.

Property, plant and equipment include buildings,
machinery and equipment, vehicles and other
equipments. All property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less depreciation
and impairment (if any). Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Buildings 16-30 years
— Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
— Vehicles 3-10 years
— Other equipments 2-5years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within “other gains/
(losses) — net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2 EESHEERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 tibfFEARE 2.9 Land use rights

MBI REMMA LI RE A SR
B MEALBAEELNFE - AEH
ERFETIHNERE - xS EmRE
PR E RS SEEHERNK - JItEL
R - WR20Z0FHERUER
RS o

210 BV EE

(@ BE
WEHBARE  EEEHESRN
REBMGHEBIIHAFEE
BERIREBBEZAABENE
o AR AR IEERER AR
BEMEE EARE-

URERRME BEBAHFELE
MEEE N EEEEBEHEZER
FENREELETRREER
Bl BokEmEnSETRE
THAEBREALRER £8YE
ZREBNERREERE BEE

¢ S S o S S 5 i
1RE DI EIRETTESE o

All land in Mainland China is state-owned or
collectively-owned and no individual land
ownership right exists. The Group acquired the
rights to use certain land. The premiums paid
for such right are treated as prepayment for
operating lease and recorded as land use rights,
which are amortised over the lease periods of
20 to 50 years using the straight-line method.

2.10 Intangible assets

(@

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries, represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group'’s
interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and
the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUS"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

201743 o AnnualReport2017 145



B %% & MY A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HBHE-_T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2

146

EEZEEMBRBE®)

210 B EE (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

BmE (&)

BEBERSSFET  MBEMHF
KI5 N RN A RE TR AR (E - A
BT - mEKREEREK
E#E(EREEXAREBENE
HEKRAME ZHRSERE) T
] o (ERERBISHER R T EE
B&#&ME -

BB

B o O P B AR AR B O B AN TR
EERER RS - BERREES
RIZESAARERRBRIELFE
BHFRMEERRAERNL - ZFK
AIZ10F 5t A E A IR #5H o

L

fIE 51 B8 A B P AR IR IR S PR AR 51 B
BIRABARF TR ERFEY - BAA
BR RETEH5IAR © B IRACANEE 35
NESEFTBRSE10F 0 MEA]
ERFH S -

KIEEEIZERR AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Intangible assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

()

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs to sell. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.
Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. The cost are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Trademark

Separately acquired trademark is shown
at historical cost. Trademark has finite
useful lives and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademark over
their estimated useful lives of 5-10 years.



B %% & MY A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2 EESHEERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

210 B EE (5B) 2.10 Intangible assets (Continued)
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(d) Mining licenses

Mining licenses acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Mining licenses
have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
mining rights over their estimated useful
lives.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of an impairment
at each reporting date.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets

(a)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to maturity investments
and available for sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.
Financial assets held by the Group are
loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’'s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables”,
“cash and cash equivalents” and
“restricted cash” in the balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Recognition and measurement
Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

For loans and receivables, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument'’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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2 EESHEERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
213 7E 2.13 Inventories
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling
EXPEeNsES.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
provided in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is
expected within one year, they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2.16 Restricted cash
Restricted cash represents restricted term
deposit and amounts held by banks, which are
not available for the Group’s use, as securities
for issuance of letters of credit, letter of
guarantee, bank acceptance notes and bank
borrowings.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.18 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2 EESHEERE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 & 2.19 Borrowings
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Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is recognised in equity.

(@

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where
the group companies operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

0]

(ii)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised,
using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is
Settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the
temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except
where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

()

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(@

Pension obligations

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the
Group and its Hong Kong employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation, subject to a cap of HK$1,500
per person per month and any excess
contributions are voluntary.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group entities in Mainland China
participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by
relevant government authorities for its
employees in Mainland China and
contribute to these plans based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the
employees on a monthly basis, up to a
maximum fixed monetary amount, as
stipulated by the relevant government
authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing
and future retired employees under these
plans.

The Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made.

Housing benefits

Employees of the Group entities in
Mainland China are entitled to participate
in government-sponsored housing funds.
The Group contributes to these funds
based on certain percentages of the
salaries of the employees on a monthly
basis, up to a maximum fixed monetary
amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities. The Group’s
liability in respect of these funds is limited
to the contribution payable in each period.
Contributions to the funds are expensed
as incurred.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-
settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity's
share price);

o excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period);
and

o including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service
conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.



B 7% R 3R MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EESHERBE®

2.23 ER KRB (&)

(a)

(b)

LES&EEURNDAERNRS
(/&)

LS FERLBERT - BEABE
B B8 AR ARTS - R F
At B AR BEAER RS
FREIRH A8 IR AR R -

EEERERR  AREKEIED
BRAMRIFIRIHERT L H BH A
TTRERVEIEZN B M fhaT - HREHE
BTN E(NE) £ N B RS H§
R WHERFHAEARE -

RRABVEREITER BT - K
BHAERIRENEREBR S
AR BB (M AN (8 ) -

SEERUROAERNABRS

ARBRASENBARNEERT
Higm TANHE  RER/EAKR
A WREERBHAALBESE
REBEWMAREENE  LEFH
AR BUNB A RRERE
me WAHEHEARKRENEEE
iC e

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense
during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (and share premium).

Share-based payment transactions
among group entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings in the Group is
treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the
parent entity accounts.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivables for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales within
the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)
The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it
is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group'’s activities
as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from the sales of goods is
recognised when the risks and rewards of
the goods have been transferred to the
customer, which is usually at the date
when a group entity has delivered
products to the customer and the
customer has accepted the products, the
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assumed and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

Rental income from properties is
recognised on a straight-line basis over
the periods of the respective leases.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at
their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant
and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred government grants and are
credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Operating Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors where appropriate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
currency risk, and cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the
PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB.
However, the Group has certain
trade receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables and
borrowings denominated in HK$ and
EUR, which is exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. Details of
the Group's trade and other
receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other
payables and borrowings are
disclosed in Notes 13, 14, 19 and 20
respectively.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

0]

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2017, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5%
against EUR with all other variables
held constant, the net profit for the
year ended 31 December 2017
would have been approximately
RMB2,688,000 higher/lower (2016:
RMB4,051,000 higher/lower), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of EUR
denominated borrowings and cash
and bank balances. And if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5%
against HK$ with all other variables
held constant, the net profit for the
year ended 31 December 2017
would have been approximately
RMBS5,601,000 higher/lower (2016:
RMB6,149,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of HK$
denominated borrowings and cash
and bank balances.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

Except for cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash, the
Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets. The Group’s
income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate
significant impact on interest-
bearing assets resulted from the
changes in interest rates because
the interest rates of cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash are
not expected to change significantly.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk (Continued)

The Group's interest-rate risk mainly
arises from borrowings. Borrowings
obtained at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group does
not hedge its cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of repayments of
borrowings are disclosed in Note 20.

At 31 December 2017, if interest
rates on bank borrowings had been
10% higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the net
profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB8,072,000 lower/
higher respectively (31 December
2016: RMB7,186,000), as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on
floating rate borrowings.
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3

FINANCI
(Continued)

AL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, trade and
other receivables, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed
transactions. Certain Group’s sales are
settled in cash or by its customers on
delivery of goods. Credit sales are made
only to selected customers with good
credit history. The Group has policies in
place to ensure that trade receivables are
followed up on a timely basis.

As at 31 December 2017, trade
receivables of RMB347,079,000 were due
from Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd.
(“Nanpu”), a joint venture of the Group (31
December 2016: RMB587,781,000). Nanpu
has a history of making profits and the
directors of the Group assessed there is
no credit risk in relation to the trade
receivables from Nanpu.

Other than the receivables from Nanpu,
the Group has no significant concentration
risk. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade
and other receivables included in the
consolidated financial statements
represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

At 31 December 2017, all cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash were
placed in highly reputable and sizable
banks and financial institutions without
significant credit risk.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Cash flow is managed at group level by
head office finance department (“Group
Finance”). Group Finance monitors the
Group'’s liquidity requirements to ensure
that it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs at all times and does
not breach borrowing limits or covenants
on any of its borrowing facilities. Group
Finance usually takes into consideration
the Group's debt financing plans,
covenant compliance and compliance
with internal balance sheet ratio targets.

Group Finance mainly invests surplus cash
in time deposits, with appropriate
maturities.

The table below analyses the Group's non-
derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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3 HRRBRERE® 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 MHEBEE (%) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
() wEMERER(E) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

—FR s
Within

1year 1-2years 2-5years Total
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R-B—RE As at 31 December 2016
+=-A=+—H
fEm Borrowings 2,024,650 230,856 49524 2,305,030
> fHE T A Interest payments on
borrowings 61,115 7,648 520 69,283
B NEMERFIE  Trade and other payables 1,746,142 = - 1,746,142
3,831,907 238,504 50,044 4,120,455
R-T—tF As at 31 December 2017
+=A=+—H
RN Borrowings 2,184,031 127,933 420,450 2,732,414
S HERA B Interest payments on
borrowings 75,008 25,756 14,214 114,978
B NEMERZIE  Trade and other payables 1,837,350 - - 1,837,350

4,096,389 153,689 434,664 4,684,742
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3 BEREREE () 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 EXEKREE 3.2 Capital risk management
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The Group's objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for equity holders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to equity holder, return capital to equity holders
or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total bank borrowings (including “current and
non-current borrowings” as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.
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3

B REKREE(®) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.2 EXEBER(E) 3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
R+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—+fF —E—RF
2017 2016
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SRITfE AR (I E 20) Total borrowings (Note 20) 2,732,414 2,305,030
W RERIBEEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents
(P 5E 14(a)) (Note 14(a)) (937,118) (969,158)
2R HEE 2 (M 14(0)) Restricted cash (Note 14(b)) (714,898) (702,362)
BEFEE Net debt 1,080,398 633,510
AR Total equity 3,284,397 3,250,822
BB Total capital 4,364,795 3,884,332
BELE Gearing ratio 25% 16%

3.3
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7
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EENRZEE QA BERSE - REEH
BM—FRIHEREENTAMGTEE
HEBEAEENRIEILEE -
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3.3

The increase in net gearing ratio as at 31
December 2017 is mainly attributable to the
increase of total borrowings.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
assets, including trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and current borrowings, are assumed
to approximate their fair values due to their
short-term maturities. The carrying values less
any estimated credit adjustments for financial
assets with a maturity of less than one year are
a reasonable approximation of their fair values.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experiences and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.10. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates (Note 8).

(ii) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment
The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a
result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Estimated write-downs of inventories
The Group writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an assessment of the
realisability of inventories. Write-downs on
inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying values of inventories and write-
downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group’'s management estimates the
provision of impairment of trade and other
receivables by assessing their recoverability.
Provisions are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible and require the use of
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of trade and other
receivables and impairment charge in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(v) Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC
and in Hong Kong. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are some transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
determined using tax rates that are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax
assets are realised or the deferred income tax
liabilities are settled. The expected applicable
tax rate is determined based on the enacted tax
laws and regulations and the actual situation of
the Group. The management of the Group will
revise the expectation where the intending tax
rate is different from the original expectation.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been
identified as the executive Directors. The executive
Directors review the Group's internal reports in order
to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments
based on the internal reports provided for review by
the executive Directors. The executive Directors
consider the performance of the Group from a
product perspective. The executive Directors assess
the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of gross profit for the year which is
consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's operations are mainly organised under
the following business segments: own brand products
and third party brand products, and each has the
segments of non-alcoholic beverages, alcoholic
beverages, food and snacks, and others.

The amounts provided to executive Directors with
respect to total assets, total liabilities and capital
expenditure are measured in a manner consistent
with that of consolidated financial statements. The
executive Directors review the total assets, total
liabilities and capital expenditure at Group level.
Therefore no segment information of total assets,
total liabilities and capital expenditure information
was presented.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary and only
reporting format.
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5 2HER@® 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) &X#E (@) Turnover
AEEHWA (BNEZERE)INT : The Group'’s revenue which represents turnover
is as follows:

BEt+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—E —T—REF
2017 2016
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
— BEREER — Own Brand Products

FEE B RR Non-alcoholic beverages 603,312 712,590
TEREEREL Alcoholic beverages 464,106 447 517
EmEZER Food and snacks 724,083 1,079,812
HA Others 49,889 42,227
1,841,390 2,282,146

— BT REER — Third Party Brand Products
STt Non-alcoholic beverages 51,766 39,723
B FEERE Alcoholic beverages 2,537,308 2,225,717
EmEER Food and snacks 503,721 592,803
EAh Others 84,245 78,260
3,177,040 2,936,503
“et Total 5,018,430 5,218,649
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HBHE-_T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

5 Z@ERGE

(b) 2 EEH
HE-T—+tF+-A=+—HILFE
PR EVERHDT :

5

BRRRER
Own Brand Products

FBRRR

Non- ERHE RARER
Alcoholic  Food and
beverages snacks
ARBTR ARMTR
RMB'000  RMB'000

At
Others
ARBT T
RMB'000

alcoholic
beverages
AR%T 7R
RMB'000

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information

The segment information for the year ended 31
December 2017 is as follows:

E=HRRER
Third Party Brand Products

FERHH
Non-
alcoholic
beverages
AREFT
RMB'000

R
Alcoholic
beverages
AREF T
RMB'000

RMRER
Food and
snacks
AR%F TR
RMB'000

Eft
Others
ARMTR
RMB'000

ey a5t
Sub-total Total
ARMTR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000

Pt
Sub-total
ARBT T
RMB'000

DHHE Segment sales 603,312 464,106 724,083 49,889 1,841,390 51,766 2,537,308 503,721 84,245 3,177,040 5,018,430
DERHER A Segment cost of sales (392,401)  (369,326)  (518,273) (36,709) (1,316,709) (45,837) (2,214,595)  (454,315) (78,005) (2,792,752) (4,109,461)
AHER Segment gross profit 210,911 94,780 205,810 13180 524,681 5929 322713 49,406 6,240 384,288 908,969
BHE_Z—R"FT+H=1T—HILFE The segment information for the year ended 31
B EPERIAT December 2016 is as follows:
BERMER E=HMRER
Own Brand Products Third Party Brand Products
FEERBHRE B
Non- Non- ERHE R
alcoholic ~ Alcoholic ~ Food and it /\&t alcoholic  Alcoholic  Food and Hith et
beverages  beverages snacks Others ~ Sub-total  beverages beverages snacks Others  Sub-total Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT AREBTR ARBTT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
PEHE Segment sales 712,590 447517 1,079,812 42,227 2,282,146 39,723 2,225,717 592,803 78260 2,936,503 5218649
AEHERAK Segment cost of sales (441,669 (354248)  (802,696) (29403 (1,628016)  (35912) (1,944,507)  (52175¢)  (70220) (2572,395) (4,200411)
AHEH Segment gross profit 270,921 93,269 277,116 12,824 654,130 381 281,210 71,047 8,040 364,108 1,018,238
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BHE_T—+F+-A=+—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

5 oHER@E 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) ZHEEHR(E) (b) Segment information (Continued)
KD EBEF BT AR AR T ¢ Operating segments results are reconciled to

profit before income tax as follows:

BEt+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—+tF —E—RF

2017 2016

AR® T AREETIT

RMB’'000 RMB’000

2EER Segment gross profit 908,969 1,018,238
U= | DN Distribution costs (414,501) (439,154)
TBRAX Administrative expenses (202,317) (185,363)

E AU A Other income 27,778 19,069
Hibzs/(B18) — F58 Other gains/(losses) — net 5,399 (37,459)

REER Operating profit 325,328 375,331

EURT N Finance income 8,118 7,967
B FZ Finance expenses (106,273) (94,263)
MBS — B8 Finance expenses — net (98,155) (86,296)
FE(RERE N BEF,(EE) Share of profit/(loss) of associates 263 (22)

B —RE &R RmH Share of profit of a joint venture 716 9,023

BADER Profit before income tax 228,152 298,036
REBERE T RE D A E /T H A& B Most of the Group companies are domiciled in
BREHIERBEEHLMRFE o the PRC and majority of the non-current assets

are located in the PRC.

HE-ZT—+tF+-A=1T—HILFE - During the year ended 31 December 2017,

KRB $’$ E&E AR ERAKAGEERSE revenue derived from Nanpu, a joint venture of

BRANTA%(BHE=ZZE—A"F+=H the Group, accounted for 7.4% (for the year

=+—HIFE : 21.3%) ° ended 31 December 2016: 21.3%) of the Group’s
revenue.

201743% o AnnualReport2017 177



B %5 ¥R 3% B

at

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

6

178

6

S5

Buildings
ARETL
RMB'000

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BERRE
Machinery
and
equipment
ARETT
RMB'000

L)
Vehicles

ARBTL
RMB'000

HitR#E  HEIR
Other Construction
equipments  in progress
ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

act
Total

ARBTL
RMB'000

HE-E-XKE Year ended 31 December

TZA=+-HLEE 2016
“E2-x"F—-HF—H 1 January 2016 408,083 416,338 15,082 38,756 130,297 1,008,556
WE—FMBAR  Acquisition of a subsidiary 2,545 - - - - 255
#n Additions 1,559 7,584 1,919 15,952 91,645 118,659
e Transfer 53,586 15,724 - 10,619 (79.929) =
HENBAR Disposals of subsidiaries - - 977) (274) - (1,251)
HeE Disposals - (990) (274) (98) - (1,362)
& (Ms31) Depreciation (Note 31) (24,517) (47,549) (3,729) (14,506) - (90,301)
“TRF 31 December 2016

+=-R=1+-8 441,256 391,107 12,021 50,449 142013 1,036,846
RZZE-XF At 31 December 2016

+ZA=t-H
AR Cost 595,956 529,805 41,025 114,355 142013 1,423,154
2EE Accumulated depreciation (154,700 (138,698) (29,004) (63,906) - (386,308)
EEFE Net book amount 441,256 391,107 12,021 50,449 142,013 1,036,846
BE-_E—+F Year ended 31 December

TZA=+-HLEE 2017
“Z—+tF—HF—H 1lanuary 2017 441,256 391,107 12,021 50,449 142,013 1,036,846
10 Additions 5,173 15,950 5,581 16,504 105,773 148,981
e Transfer 27,566 27,665 - 647 (55,878) -
HE Disposals (25) (1,050) (488) (409) (28,930) (30,902)
WE (F3E31) Depreciation (Note 31) (27,357)  (47,351) (2,965) (17,132 - (94,805)
—E—tE 31 December 2017

+=-A=1+-H 446,613 386,321 14,149 50,059 162,978 1,060,120
RZB—t# At 31 December 2017

+ZA=1+-H
XA Cost 628,075 569,629 45,577 130,027 162,978 1,536,286
REHE Accumulated depreciation (181,462)  (183,308)  (31,428)  (79,968) - (476,166)
EEFE Net book amount 446,613 386,321 14,149 50,059 162,978 1,060,120
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M BMERRE @ 6

(@ WMERIERGAEEZEKRERATE @ &F
BFER -

BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(@ Depreciation expense has been charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

BEt+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—2-t% T RF

2017 2016

AR® TR AREEFIT

RMB’'000 RMB’000

SHE RN Cost of sales 66,637 66,508
TR X Administrative expenses 25,003 18,803
E bl A Other income 2,109 4,654
2K =[N Distribution costs 1,056 336
94,805 90,301

b) FHESLEEACDIRPIESREBE
5 20) I VIS T RS I AR AR AR TR
BER :

(b) The net book amount of buildings and
machinery and equipments pledged as collateral
of the Group’s borrowings (Note 20) as of
respective balance sheet dates were as follows:

R+=A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E—+F —E—RF
2017 2016
AR® TR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
g Buildings 389,635 407,414
He2s N8 A Machinery and equipments 125,030 171,147
514,665 578,561
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HE—

Z—+F+_A=+—HIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

7

180

T b f5E A RE 7 LAND USE RIGHTS

T (E AR TE N R AT E R TE N EREEE - Land use rights represent the net book amount of
AREBRRAE T ERESAATRE - FAN prepaid operating lease payments. All the land use
T 20ZE50F KL - rights of the Group are located in the PRC and are

held on leases from 20 to 50 years.

T E AR E BT Movements in land use rights are as follows:

BEt+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—E —T—REF

2017 2016

AR¥ET T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BRI BR T HE Opening net book amount 140,229 141,418

Wi —RIE A A Acquisition of a subsidiary - 2,324

30 Additions 15,676 -

B ER ST (FIEE31) Amortisation charge (Note 31) (3,524) (3,513)

HASRER B Closing net book amount 152,381 140,229
ISR YERGEE2EBEERAN HERA ] B Amortisation expense has been charged to “cost of
T4 o sales” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

7 TERAEE 7 LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued)
HEXEEBEREARRNERBR(FIzE20)E The net book amount of land use rights pledged as
WA AEREFEN T ¢ collateral of the Group’s borrowings (Note 20) as of

respective balance sheet dates was as follows:

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December

—E—+F —E—RF

2017 2016

ARBT ARBTFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

I Hb s A Land use rights 52,409 40,527
RZE—RER=ZE—t+=—A=+—H & As at 31 December 2016 and 2017, the Group is still in
SEMEENE T L FRAERE - HE L the process of renewing certificates for certain land
R#ENEEFES B A& AREE91,0007T kA use rights with net book value amounting to
R #®873,0007T c AEBE I LA Z F i RMB991,000 and RMB873,000 respectively. The Group
FREZAREETET MBARZETHNESEHE might incur certain obligations in connection with
LD O SEHEE  WZETEIEARAE such application of land use right certificates, while
ERKITE 35 EE - since the amount of the obligation cannot be

measured with sufficient reliability, this obligation has
been disclosed as contingent liabilities in Note 35.
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

8 EFEEE 8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

RigE
[EES [ Mining By H

Goodwill  Trademark Licenses Software Total
ARETT  ARBTL ARBTT AR%TR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

B2-F-~F Year ended 31 December 2016

TZA=t-HLEE
—E-—rE-f-A 1 January 2016 25,034 1973 32,033 1717 60,757
WE—RHBAR Acquisition of a subsidiary 6,399 - 24,280 - 31179
1m Additions - - - 814 814
g (i 31) Amortisation charge (Note 31) - (429) (1,508) (237) 2.174)
ZE—R"ETZA=T—H  31December 2016 31933 1,544 54,805 2,294 90,576

R-B-~E+-F=+—-H At31December 2016

A Cost 31,933 3,241 57,600 2,835 95,609
ZEHE Accumulated amortisation - (1,697) (2,795) (541) (5,033)
FRFE Net book amount 31,933 1,544 54,805 2,294 90,576
HE_Z-t§ Year ended 31 December 2017
TZR=T-HLEE

“2—+F-HF-H 1 January 2017 31,933 1,544 54,805 2,294 90,576
1 Additions - - 72 73 145
BRI (P7E31) Amortisation charge (Note 31) - (420) (1,915) (300) (2,635)
“Z—+F+-A=1+—H  31December 2017 31,933 1,124 52,962 2,067 88,086

R=B-tE+=-A=+-H At31December 2017

AR Cost 31,933 3,241 57,672 2,908 95,754
2B Accumulated amortisation - (2,117) (4,710) (841) (7,668)
FaFE Net book amount 31,933 1,124 52,962 2,067 88,086

182 <EEEERAERART « Tenwow International Holdings Limited



8

B 7% R 3R MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B/YEE @
BHEFXERFA2ERERA HEKRE] &
[TTEFS ) TR

FEIHEEEERcELETEEETE
E-UTRBREDHHEDKNME :

REZEDRERAR (DR ])

REMEHRARERAE ([HH])

BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Amortisation expense has been charged to “cost of
sales” and “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The goodwill is monitored by the management at CGU
level. The following is a summary of goodwill
allocation for each operating segment:

BE+-A=1T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—+F

—E—REF
2017 2016
AR®T ARBF T
RMB'000 RMB'000

Changxinxian Jinshaquan Co., Ltd.
(“Jinshaquan”)
Changxin Meilin Drinks Co., Ltd. (“Meilin”) 6,899 6,899

17,121 17,121

EEIMARERER AT (I Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and
Food Co., Ltd. (“Chuanxiang”) 4,500 4,500
EEEXRBEAR AR ([2XEE]) Shanghai Royal Winery Co., Ltd.

(“Royal Winery")

3,413 3,413

31,933 31,933

RETRENR  mEESEECER SRR
EHETHNR/MER - RS ERETA A KE
SRDREREBEENEETE - BRATERE
REFUBKRENReRERA  AK2EH
BHGER BERAK—ERHTEALD - &
BHSNRERIBATHEHERRGEHE - BREX
TEBZRCEHETMEEEBNHRETY
BRE -

For the purposes of impairment test, goodwill has
been allocated to the smallest individual of CGU
identified. The recoverable amount of a CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budget made by the Directors, with reference
to the prevailing market conditions, covering certain
future period (the “Period”). Cash flows beyond the
Period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the business in
which the CGU operates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

8 ®\IEEE® 8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
—EFARSEFTABENTERELDT : The key assumptions used for value-in-use
calculations in 2017 are as follows:

EWR i JIE
Jinshaquan Meilin Chuanxiang
HER XK Sales growth rate 7% 10% 5% 5%
FE R & Gross profit margin 18% 18% 25% 25%
T ATAL IR = Pre-tax discount rate 14% 14% 12% 12%
JEEHASMEMIEE SR Growth rate to extrapolate
FY3E R cash flows beyond the
budget period 0% 0% 3% 3%
EREEENTG RZFT—tF+=A Based on management’s assessment, there was no
=+ — BRI EEERE - impairment of goodwill as at 31 December 2017.
9 MREZLATNRE 9 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

BE+=-A=1+—BHLEE
Year ended 31 December
—B—tF T RF

2017 2016

AR¥T T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

wn—A—H At 1 January 2,764 1,036
b:y) 1l Nk /N Addition of an associate - 1,750
FEEER, (&8) Share of profits/(losses) 263 22)
Rt+t—A=+—H At 31 December 3,027 2,764
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9 REEQATNRERE®E)
—F—+F+=A=+—H80"
BN R M E R A ARDT ¢

Name of entity

FEEENRRBERAR]
([EEBEN]D)

Shanghai Daoxiangcun Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Daoxiangcun”)

REZAREFR AR
([BARZEZE])

Changxin Jiamu Tea Co., Ltd.
(“Jiamu Tea")

AREBIE L™

BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

9 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31
December 2017, all of which are unlisted and equity
method is used to account for, are set out as follows:

B AMRLER
Place of business/country
of incorporation

FRERERER %
% of ownership interest
—B—tF —BAF
2017 2016

hE e

Shanghai, PRC

39% 39%
Fp B £ B
Changxin, PRC

35% 35%

AEBREE ARSI EXARE

10 R—REEQAANRKRE

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group's interest in the associates.

10 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

BE+t=-A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—+F —T—RF

2017 2016
AR¥T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R—A—H At 1 January 424,422 434,084
et 8 A (PR E27) Share of profit (Note 27) 284 12,140
HIHANEBRREEITHE Movement of elimination of
AR B IR m F 8 unrealised profits for sales to

Nanpu from the Group (1,391) (6,337)

HE A 2N T 2R B iE Disposal of partial share in the
joint venture - (15,465)
Rt+=—A=+—H At 31 December 423,315 424,422
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

10 R—REEQANKRE (@) 10

BB M ER
Place of business/country
of incorporation

Name of entity

R * e
Nanpu* China
BIEFARLIEEI AR ERME - mENES

CARSENRRRE  BR7E2EF4K ' B
HE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—H EF3KE=E
EHARBEE(CZE—XRF+-_A=+—8":

TREFTHIBMARRRE) - FEBRAE
H ) BURE B 75 MR R RARE R =0 2 — A
ERESHAE -

AEEHE L AR ZA ORI BAGE KRR

BfE-

* BT R A BB A9% &SN ARBIRD BIRE LER
REXERERAT - DEHEESERARRKE
BHERMER R EESEENE AR /2% - 10% K%
30% Bz f7 °
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INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

The joint venture of the Group as at 31 December
2017, which is unlisted and equity method is used to
account for, are set out as follows:

FREERERE %
% of ownership interest
=B—tF ZE-KF
2017 2016

49% 49%
Under articles of association of Nanpu, the Board of
Nanpu is the highest authority and decision-making
body, which was composed of 7 directors, of which 3
directors were appointed by the Company as at 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: 3 of 7 directors
were appointed by the Company). All strategic
financial and operation decision relating to the
activities of Nanpu require the approvals of two thirds
or more of the directors and the Group shared control
of Nanpu with other joint venture party.

There are no commitments and contingent liabilities
related to the Group's interest in the joint venture.

* In addition to 49% of ownership interest of Nanpu, the Group
also has shares in the subsidiaries of Nanpu, including 20%
shares in Shanghai Tiancheng Enterprise Development
Limited, 10% shares in Shanghai Puxing Trading Limited and
30% shares in Chengdu Nanpu Food Limited.
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BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

R—XEEARNRE @) 10 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

RERARNEENBER Summarised financial information for joint
venture

EUHEEZEARNRET EERMT ¢ Set out below are the summarised financial
information for Nanpu which are accounted for using
the equity method.

EEREBERREE Summarised balance sheet

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E2E—tHF —E—RF

2017 2016
AR¥T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TE Current
e RBEZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22,528 26,465
HinghEE (BRIEESH) Other current assets (excluding cash) 4,872,710 5,304,538
MENEEMEE Total current assets 4,895,238 5,331,003
HBEE Financial liabilities
(B2 S A ERFIN) (excluding trade payables) (2,125,000) (2,168,000)
HEhnghatE Other current liabilities
(BHEE S EMERR) (including trade payables) (1,992,665) (2,416,744)
REBAEEE Total current liabilities (4,117,665) (4,584,744)
EMBEE Non-current assets 36,423 60,475
FEE Net assets 813,996 806,734
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

10 R—REEQANKREH)

REWBERBE

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive
income

BE1+t=-A=1+—BHLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—E —T—RF

2017 2016

AR%T R ARBTFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

PN Revenue 4,019,662 4,666,454
IrE M Depreciation and amortisation (25,265) (31,420)
A2 A Interest income 817 1,550
B Interest expense (112,149) (109,321)
FERERT Profit from continuing operations 20,232 42,420
FriSfiF 2 Income tax expense (12,972) (15,802)
mEWEBE Total comprehensive income 7,260 26,618

A EERRRESERFNTBERRAZIH
B (WIFAEEMEER) U AKEERE
BRRHETBERMERFHAR -
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The information above reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the joint venture,
adjusted for differences in accounting policies
between the Group and the joint venture, and not the
Group's share of those amounts.
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BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

11 REEEINEEMIA

R+t=A=+—AH
As at 31 December
—E—tfF —F—

NE
2016
ARBTT

RMB'000

2017

AR®T R
RMB'000

REGAEERBERNEE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet

B F MG R B (FiTRE13) Trade and bill receivables (Note 13) 2,128,286 2,025,808
H fth i ek I8 (B3 13) Other receivables (Note 13) 195,791 146,777
e KA eEEY (M3 14@) Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14(a)) 937,118 969,158
IR HIER S (BT =E 14(00)) Restricted cash (Note 14(b)) 714,898 702,362

3,976,093 3,844,105

BREGEEERBERNARE Liabilities as per consolidated
balance sheet

B 5 K EH e 508 (fEE19) Trade and other payables (Note 19) 1,457,979 1,395,867
&3k (Fi=E20) Borrowings (Note 20) 2,732,414 2,305,030

4,190,393 3,700,897

RZEBE—+FR_E—R"F+_A=+—8 "
AEEFMFEEHREELAERLEWKIE A%
EFfEem B E AR HERAANRNESREsE -

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, financial assets
held by the Group represent loans and receivables,
and financial liabilities held by the Group represent
the financial liabilities at amortised costs.
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

12 78 12 INVENTORIES

BR+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—E —E—REF

2017 2016
ARMTRT ARBTET
RMB’000 RMB'000
[EM L K B EE Raw materials and packaging materials 153,502 139,279
H 5K i Work in progress 28,580 31,244
BURY oh Finished goods 903,388 701,047
1,085,470 871,570
W FEERE Less: inventory provision (6,310) (2,168)
1,079,160 869,402
BE_T—tH&+-_A=1+—HALEE " HA The cost of inventory recognised as “cost of sales”
F#53,883,913,000 LA ERUAN (ZF — /X FF amounting to approximately RMB3,883,913,000 for
AR W53,982,726,00070) EHER A [ #HE MK | the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
(MF3E23) ° RMB3,982,726,000) (Note 23).
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BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

13 ESREMEKRRE 13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

KR+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—E —E—REF

2017 2016
AR¥ET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 WA K RN EE (a) Trade and bill receivables (a) 2,146,258 2,034,771
—RERE=F — due from third parties 1,799,047 1,446,977
— FE U EARS 75 (P aE 33(0)(1) — due from related parties (Note 33(c)(i)) 347,211 587,794
B E SR IBR A RS Less: provision for impairment of
trade receivables (17,972) (8,963)
B 5 IE eSS — %58 Trade and bills receivables — net 2,128,286 2,025,308
REFETENIE Prepayment for procurement of
inventories 1,144,589 965,608
JEIEFA L Deferred expenses 6,995 29,637
H fh EUR A ¢ Other receivables: 196,183 146,994
— FEUL AR 5 B — Other amounts due from related
O (B £ 33(c)(ii)) parties (Note 33(c)(ii)) 27,370 12,532
— R — Deposit 28,583 15,592
— Hfh — Others 140,230 118,870
W H A UGG IR R E R Less: provision for impairment of
other receivables (392) 217)
1,347,375 1,142,022
3,475,661 3,167,830
RSB BN EEEERR A S EE R The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
HHAREE date is the carrying value of each class of receivable

mentioned above.

HE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HLEFE  BE Provision for impairment of trade receivables of
ERETHE S RIGIERERERTARK RMB9,009,000 was accrued for the year ended 31
9,009,000 0 ( =& — ;N F : A R ¥ 2,808,000 December 2017 (2016: provision of RMB2,808,000), in
7T) - WEBREEAE 2 EW R A1 TE X accordance with management’s assessment, which
B oo has been included in “administrative expenses” in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(@) Trade and bill receivables

13 BESZREMEBWREG) 13

(@ EBEZERWREREVRRE

192

REBERIHHE AR ET 58
HNF—EAZ=EA - &= A 88
B 5 REUCRIA K B Y R 15 &) B e o A 40
T~

The majority of the Group’s sales are on open
account with credit terms ranging from 1 month
to 3 months. The ageing analysis of the trade
and bills receivables based on invoice date was
as follows:

R+=HA=+—8H

As at 31 December
—E—+F —E-RF
2017 2016
AR%T R ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
31E A AR Within 3 months 1,827,458 1,883,548
3E6{EA 3to 6 months 210,719 85,474
61218 R 6 to 12 months 72,720 47,762
1218 A A E Over 12 months 35,361 17,987
2,146,258 2,034,771

MN-ZE—+t&E+-_A=+—8 28AA
R 318,800,000 7T H) & 5 fE W 30 18 B 8
HRZE—FR"FT+ZA=1T—H: AR
#151,223,000) - HERERERARE
17,972,007 (ZE—R"F+_A=+—
B : AR¥S89630007T) ° BEELES
TEERSEASRRRNER  BRE
FPlEREBREFEEU  AEEEmMBTEIT
HERIZRIRMEL ZELORBSEERE
B o FTAL TR HA SR S FE YRR IE FE R IR ] o
BRI R B A RRE -

KIEERIZARAIRAT  Tenwow International Holdings Limited

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
RMB318,800,000 were past due (31 December
2016: RMB151,223,000) and the amount of
respective provision for impairment was
RMB17,972,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB8,963,000). The impairment is firstly
assessed individually for individual significant or
long aged balances, and then the remaining
balances are grouped for collective assessment
according to their ageing and historical default
rates as these customers are of similar credit
risk characteristics. It was assessed that a
majority portion of the receivables was
expected to be recovered. No trade receivables
were past due but not impaired.
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BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

13 EFRHMERRIE(#) 13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(a) EZEWRERERERE (&) (@) Trade and bill receivables (Continued)
ZEB ZEUGIENREDTAT ¢ The ageing analysis of these trade receivables

was as follows:

Rt+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December

—E—+F —ERF

2017 2016

AR¥ET AREEFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BHAZME A AR Past due within 3 months 210,719 85,474

BEI3E A= 61E A Past due in 3 months to 6 months 72,720 47,762

BHAG6{E A LA £ Past due over 6 months 35,361 17,987

318,800 151,223
B REMEWRENEREBEIR NE The carrying amounts of the trade and other
HEtHE - receivables were denominated in the following

currencies:

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—+tHF —E—RF

2017 2016

ARET T ARKETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR & RMB 3,470,873 3,165,465
BT HK$ 4,593 2,365
g Other currencies 195 =
3,475,661 3,167,830
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

14 RERBESLEVURZIRERE
(@ RERREEZEY

AEEREMRESFEVNEREREEAT
PIEHEHE

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

RESTRICTED CASH

(a) cCash and cash equivalents
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

Rt=—RA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-tF ZFTAF

2017 2016

AR®T T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR & RMB 912,805 585,320
BT HK$ 8,893 309,458
HhE Other currencies 15,420 74,380
937,118 969,158

(b) ERFRE

(b) Restricted cash

R+=—HA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E—+F —E—RF

2017 2016

AR¥ T AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

EBTER Term deposit 556,327 572,350

RITENREERES Deposit for bank acceptance notes 142,841 115,664
EABERRERES Deposit for issue of letter of credit

and letter of guarantee 15,730 14,348

714,898 702,362
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BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

15 SHARE CAPITAL
EEREE
£@
LERMEE  Equivalent
ERRKEY Nominal hominal
Number value of value of BRARE
of ordinary ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares shares Premium
Br  ARETT ARETRH
HKS RMB'000 RMB'000
EE Authorised:
WZB—AR-ZE—+4%  Asat1lanuary 2016 and 2017 and
—A—BR=ZE—7"k 31 December 2016 and 2017
—E—+5+-fA=+-H 10,000,000,000 1,000000,000
BRT: Issued:
“Z-RF—f—H#s  Balanceat 1January 2016 2,073612,000 207,361,200 164,634 1,149,151
BITERR Issue of ordinary shares 132,358,000 13,235,800 11,814 273335
%2 Dividends i) - - - (128,599
“ERF Balance at 31 December 2016
+ZA=+—B&H 2205970000 220,597,000 176,443 1293887
“E—+F—F—H#&s%  Balanceat 1January 2017 2,205,970,000 220,597,000 176,448 1,293,887
RE Dividends 0) - - - (103,065)
“T—tF Balance at 31 December 2017
+-A=t+—R#&H 2,205,970,000 220,597,000 176,448 1,190,822

(0} BB S B S A A1A (2003 F & 5T ) £ 34 IERAA
RIMAAZIZARA) - AR AR A BEER DB A QTR
ABERMBNBARE - BT AKRRA R B AR R ER
BRIELEDIR - BE-T—A"F+-A=1+—ALHF
&35 A i £ 58 AR 52,291,000 TTHY R HARL B K i
RIS  REBEEZZT—tFA=THIEANER R
P EEAARES0,774000THF R EEREBEE=
T—+tF+A=1T—HUEFEIMNFARRMKE -

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law (2003
Revision) and the Articles of Association of the Company,
share premium of the Company is available for distribution to
shareholders subject to a solvency test on the Company and
the provision of the Articles of Association of the Company.
Final dividend and special dividend totalling RMB52,291,000 in
relation to the profits for the year ended 31 December 2016
and interim dividends amounting to RMB50,774,000 in relation
to the profits for the six months ended 30 June 2017 were
paid to the Company’s shareholders during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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HBHE-_T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

16 RERRF 16 RETAINED EARNINGS

BE1+=-A=1+—BHLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—E —E—REF

2017 2016
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R—HA—BMREZF Retained earnings at 1 January 1,461,549 1,275,982
FE R Profit for the year 159,975 204,834
BB L T R Appropriation to statutory reserve (13,891) (19,267)
R+ A=+—HMRBEF Retained earnings at 31 December 1,607,633 1,461,549
17 Hibf#E 17 OTHER RESERVES

BIRAHE

RERRH
B HE g
Pre-IPO e e

BXGE share AEMME()  Currency
Capital award  Statutory translation @t
reserve  scheme  reserve(i)  reserve Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARET:T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RZZ—~F—H—H At 1 January 2016 78,804 5,902 159,988 (10,448) 234,246
NEREZRE Currency translation differences = = = 3,054 3,054
BT RE Appropriation to Statutory reserve - - 19,267 - 19,267
BRRREERRNEEEE  Pre-IPO share award scheme
—RBEEMRBERI) — value of current employee
Services (ii) - 2,39 - - 2,399
RZZB—"E+-A=1—H At31December 2016 78,804 8,301 179,255 (7,394) 258,966
R_E—+F—F—H At 1 January 2017 78,804 8,301 179,255 (7,394) 258,966
SNEHEER Currency translation differences - - - (23,365)  (23,365)
BRE LT RE Appropriation to statutory reserve - - 13,891 - 13,891
BINAFRERMR B2l Pre-IPO share award scheme
—RBESMRBERI — value of current employee
Services (ii) - 200 - - 200
RZZE—+&E+-A=1+—H At31December 2017 78,804 8,501 193,146 (30,759) 249,692
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17 HtbFE @)

(i)

(i)

REFBEEAMAEEEARNAAMA
BERAR  EDIRSFEFENAT -
RSB R B AR A B R B AR B AR
EHEETEe R EENEA L —F
BRI - R FRATE F 5 M # 10% B
ANEEBRHEBE - A BHBRESS
NEAR 50% B - AIEER B AE DI
A

NEAREARDEBETE
RER-_Z—=F)\A—BOBRRRZ
AR BATT B IR AR R E A fE g 8
((BRDABERBRETS]) - LLEX
AHRBEEABREGTENENERESR
(BREF)EREEARRESEAR
o WHEREAE(ERBARYE [
BihABREEES - MfIWEREAE
ENERHRERLANENEHESR -

REBEERAMEEAMBARESEFEE
RETEATEZFTORODAKA
37,083,334 8 « AN AIEEREHEITK
AREI1.79% o W DFIREFIEIRIEN =2
—=FN\A-BET-

HRETREENBD - ANEARRRE
BHARZMAER QB TR LM ERE
KB B0 % 57 B B 4 R BT R IR 7S I AR
~E EBEFASHIR_ZE—=FNATL
B —T-—MmMFEAA+ER  —FT—A%F
NA+TER —F—R"FAATLBEEZ
Z—t+tFNAAT RS RYRITEEBR
o

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

17 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the
articles of association of the companies of the
Group, before distributing the net profit of each
year, companies of the Group registered in the
PRC are required to set aside 10% of its
statutory net profit for the year after offsetting
any prior year's losses as determined under
relevant PRC accounting standards to the
statutory surplus reserve fund. When the
balance of such reserve reaches 50% of each
company's share capital, any further
appropriation is optional.

Pre-IPO share award scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated on 1 August
2013, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is to give the employees
(including directors) an opportunity to acquire a
personal stake in our Company and help
motivating such employees to optimize their
performance and efficiency, and also to help
retaining the employees whose contributions
are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of our Group.

Total number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 37,083,334
shares representing approximately 1.79% of the
enlarged issued share capital of the Company.
The Pre-IPO share options were granted on 1
August 2013

For shares granted to the employees, subject to
the meeting of the criteria of the Company
being listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
employee being still on service at the end of
each vesting period, the granted shares can be
vested in five tranches on 17 September 2013,
2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017, respectively.
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

17 HiudE @) 17 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(i) ARHERRORBEE ()
BE-_T—tFt-_A=1+—BAEA
EARE AR T(E -

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H  B8XAH
ZENBRENENRE R RITEER

(ii) Pre-IPO share award scheme (Continued)

No options had been exercised up to 31
December 2017.

The Pre-IPO share options outstanding as at 31
December 2017 have the following vesting dates

N and exercise prices:

THREER
(BR) BT = &R B 12
Exercise prices Outstanding
Vesting Date (per share) HK$ shares
—E—=FNA+tH 17 September 2013 1.8 3,708,334
—E—NEAA+LEH 17 September 2014 1.8 8,312,500
—T—RFNLA+LH 17 September 2015 1.8 9,208,333
—E-RFhLATLEH 17 September 2016 1.8 10,104,166
—E—t+FNA+LEH 17 September 2017 1.8 5,750,001
37,083,334

R-ZZE—=57\R—RH " B&ETAH RE

RARBEERBRE R OB D Z
REBEAARKG6799,8957T 2 &H
VeaEBERGEMRA B GERE
R

N,

B
7N
¥

BE_ZTtF+-A=+—HLFE"
& E R AR 200,000 (=T —
F: AR 2,399,0007T) (FiF3E25) AR
A& 8 ) B F X -

5 St

198 <REEERAERART « Tenwow International Holdings Limited

The fair value of the shares granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 1 August
2013, the grant date, was RMB6,799,895, and
has been valued by an independent qualified
valuer using Binomial valuation model.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group recognised an expense of RMB200,000
(2016: RMB2,399,000) (Note 25) in relation to the
shares awarded by the Company to the
employees.
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BE-_ZT—+F+-A=+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

18 BFFMBIAVIEIE U A 18 DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT
GRANTS

BE+t-A=t—BLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—tE = —NF
2017 2016
ARBTRT ARKETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

T #6 Bh AR AE U A Deferred income on government grants
— mEEs — Current portion 2,575 2,575
— IEREH S — Non-current portion 17,947 19,712

20,522 22,287

BE+=-BA=1+—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—tF —E—RF

2017 2016

ARBTRT ARKBTE

RMB’'000 RMB'000

Rn—H—H As at 1 January 22,287 24,052
B Amortisation (1,765) (1,765)

Rnt+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 20,522 22,287
ZEMPEZAFRETHEBING THBSHE These mainly represent government grants received
By ERBAREEERME  HERZEN from certain municipal governments of the PRC as an
& o encouragement for the Group’s construction of

property, plant and equipment.
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

19 ESREMENSRE 19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BR+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—E —E—REF

2017 2016
AR%T R AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B SN FIERENEE Trade and bills payables
—ENE=F — due to third parties 1,099,600 1,108,327
— FEISTRARS 5 (B9 &% 33(c)ii)) — due to related parties (Note 33(c)(iii) 125,843 95,378
1,225,443 1,203,705
Y% - B R EER IR Payables for property, plant and
equipment 79,599 67,222
g Rt eEF Salary and social welfare payables 13,763 13,667
FETIE BT & E b Fi I8 Value-added tax and other taxes payables 182,424 174,655
BFETEWFIA Advance from customers 183,184 161,953
TEIRE A Accrued expenses 19,820 22,234
JE 1S BB BSE T ) L M R IR Other amounts due to related parties
(FF3E33(0)1v)) (Note 33(c)(iv)) 1,463 3,301
E At T FRIE Other payables 131,654 99,405
611,907 542,437
1,837,350 1,746,142
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BE-_ZT—+F+-A=+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

19 BESZRHMESRKE®E) 19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
BBREHESE S EN AN EA E AR The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables
RO based on invoice date was as follows:

BR+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—+F —E—RF

2017 2016
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
2@ AR Up to 2 months 855,959 888,611
2@MAZE3M@EA 2 months to 3 months 130,839 119,618
3BMAZE6EA 3 months to 6 months 219,732 183,179
6MRAZE1F 6 months to 1 year 12,233 7,450
18 E Over 1 year 6,680 4,847
1,225,443 1,203,705
REENE S REMERNKIBENREENL TS The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
BHEGHE - payables were denominated in the following
currencies:

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—+tF —E—RF

2017 2016

ARET T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR B RMB 1,810,583 1,732,531
& T EUR 21,376 13,344
Hfh & Other currencies 5,391 267
1,837,350 1,746,142
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

20 f&® 20 BORROWINGS

BR+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—E —E—REF

2017 2016
AR%ET T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
IR B Non-current
REAER Long-term borrowings 548,383 280,380
B Current
EHAE R Short-term borrowings 1,902,127 1,795,819
REERRREE D Current portion of long-term borrowings 281,904 228,831
2,184,031 2,024,650
B4 Total borrowings 2,732,414 2,305,030
He: Representing:
— KR — Unsecured 1,812,582 1,397,694
— B Q) — Secured (@) 848,832 844,336
— B#ERD) — Guaranteed (b) 71,000 63,000
2,732,414 2,305,030
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BE-_ZT—+F+-A=+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

20 ER@E) 20 BORROWINGS (Continued)
(@) BEFEFHIFET : (@) Analyses of secured borrowings are as follows:
R+t=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—B—+tF T—NF
2017 2016
ARMTR ARBTET
RMB’'000 RMB'000
IR Secured by:
— BFR TR — Buildings and land use rights
(fizE6 X2 7) (Notes 6 and 7) 712,338 728,294
— M R ERME (MI5E6) — Machinery and equipments
(Notes 6) 53,674 116,042
— THFER — Term deposit 82,820 -
848,832 844,336
(b) BEREFROIMMT : (b) Analyses of the guaranteed borrowings were as

follows:

R+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—tF —E—RF

2017 2016
AR¥T ARBT T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AT HER Guaranteed by:
— AEENE=FAH — Third party companies of
the Group 71,000 63,000
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

20 ER@E) 20 BORROWINGS (Continued)
(c) AEEEFEEZINOT - (c) The Group’'s borrowings were repayable as
follows:

Rt=—RA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-tF ZTAF

2017 2016

AR¥T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

1ER Within 1 year 2,184,031 2,024,650

1z 2% Between 1 and 2 years 127,933 230,856

2E5F Between 2 and 5 years 420,450 49,524

2,732,414 2,305,030
(d #EEWINETHEREFNRNT (d) The weighted average effective interest rates
per annum at the balance sheet date were as

follows:

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December

=Bt T RE
2017 2016

SRITIERR Bank borrowings 4.56% 4.36%
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e () 20
() MRMRNFBITEX  RBERHA

REEEEREERS FRBEFNE
REAMEREERAABERT

RITERK Bank borrowings

BE-_ZT—+F+-A=+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

BORROWINGS (Continued)

(e) The fair values of current borrowings
approximate their carrying amounts as the
impact of discounting is not significant. The
carrying amounts and fair values of non-current
borrowings as at each balance sheet date are
as follows:

IRMEE
Carrying amount
W+=HA=+—H

As at 31 December

—E—tF C—T~F
2017 2016
ARBFR  ARBTT
RMB‘000 RMB’'000

548,383 280,380

RITENK Bank borrowings

AREE
Fair value
R+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December

—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
ARTT ARBTE
RMB’000 RMB'000

548,030 274,454

FRBERNAABEERBRBER
B BAKEREEABSRTHISHNE
RIGRERFHABAER S/ T ARG -

The fair values of non-current borrowings are
estimated based on discounted cash flow using
the prevailing market rate of interest allocated
to the Group for financial instrument with
substantially the same terms and characteristics
at the respective balance sheet dates.

20174 » AnnualReport2017 205



B 75 ¥R 3% Y &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HBHE-_T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

20 fEFR(H)

() AEBEROREEN FHIEEAE:

20

BORROWINGS (Continued)
(f)  The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings
are denominated in the following currencies:

R+=A=+—H

As at 31 December
=2 —tF —E—XF
2017 2016
ARET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 2,272,345 1,933,648
BT HKS 253,942 147,593
BT EUR 148,244 163,965
Hih B Other currencies 57,883 59,824
2,732,414 2,305,030

21 EEFEHIE 21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
BR+=A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
ARET T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BERIBEE ¢ Deferred tax assets:
—BR12EAREERN — Deferred tax asset to be recovered
BT IEE = within 12 months 25,336 20,042
RERIEEE : Deferred tax liability:
— BR12E R BEER — Deferred tax liability to be settled

FEEFRIEAE after 12 months 31,372 27,386
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BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

RIEFRISHIR 21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
The gross movement on the deferred income tax
account is as follow:

EEFTS TR B MR E ST

BELERESHREE : Deferred income tax assets:
SEBE
FE  HERE
Taxloss  Provision XEREF  BREER
carried for Unrealised  Accrued @t
forward impairment profit  expenses Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R=B-xE-F—-H At 1 January 2016 621 683 6,010 6,054 13,368
WERBAR Acquisition of a subsidiary 1,495 - - - 1,495
REE2ERERR Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
FEA/ (1K) statements of comprehensive income ®) 2,154 2746 284 5179
R=E-R"E+=H=1—H At31December 2016 2,11 2,837 8,756 6,338 20,042
REE2ERERR Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
A/ (H1%) statements of comprehensive income 1,414 3,287 1,000 (407) 5,294
R-Z—t&+=-A=1+—H At31December 2017 3,525 6,124 9,756 5,931 25,336
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

21 BERBHE@E 21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
EEfEHEE: Deferred income tax liabilities:
HENE
ARREE
BANELDH
Withholding
BREE BREE tax on
AREE AftfBE  unremitted
Fair value of Fair value earnings
intangible  of tangible of PRC @t
assets assets  subsidiaries Total
ARBTT  AR®Fr ARBTn AR®ETn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE-"E—-F—H At 1 January 2016 9,108 2,71 14,871 26,690
WEERB AR Acquisition of a subsidiary 6,529 192 = 6,721
WA 2 EREE AR Charged to the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income (765) (674) 3,602 2,163
SRR A Payment of withholding tax upon
declaration of dividends - - (8,188) (8,188)
R=%-~"F+=A=1-H At 31 December 2016 14,872 229 10,285 27,386
REAaZBRER AR Charged to the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income (516) (326) 4,828 3,986
R-B—t&E+-B=1+-H At 31 December 2017 14,356 1,903 15,113 31,372
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EREFrISBLE (8)

EEFRBHEE : (8)

FEARRE TR TR R 2 A RE 35 1B R R AR T )t A B2 3R
MIERT  RAEEREBRRRARLERSHE
=

R-E—+tF+_A=+—BR-_ZT—~F
TZA=+—H AEEVERSBIRNAA
R 3,880,000 7T & A R # 6,523,000 7T H) #{ 18
BiEERSES A AREK970,000T R AR
1,633,000 TR IEFT IS EA E - IRIBEEM
AR REBIBEES TSR -

REEEEREZ BHE-_FT—+t&F+=A
=+ — B IEFEF R T 8 50% i 5 R B K B3R
ST ANz —+t&+=-A
=+—BHIEFEAMEHAREA48280007T (=
T— & AR¥E3,602,0007T) °

Htb W i

BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities: (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
loss carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable.

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of RMB970,000 and RMB1,633,000 in respect of
the tax losses amounting to RMB3,880,000 and
RMB6,523,000 as at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016. The tax losses will not expire
according to Hong Kong tax law.

In accordance with the board resolution, 50% of the
net profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 will
be paid outside of Mainland China and accordingly
withholding tax of R\VIB4,828,000 was provided for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB3,602,000).

22 OTHER INCOME

BEt+t-HA=1T—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—+F —E—RF

2017 2016

AR¥T T ARETTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

BFRB (55) Government grants (Note) 21,157 13,989
AL WA Rental income 4,462 2,133
At Others 2,159 2,947
27,778 19,069

F: BEZEFT-A=tTBLFE  BF#EDE
RRTPEET WG TR  (ESHAEE
777 KSR R P E B RR Y SR A I BUR #l B FE LR
UN: £l

Note: For the year ended 31 December 2017, government grants
mainly represent grants received from certain municipal
governments of the PRC as encouragement for the Group’s
contributions to the development of the local economy and
amortisation of deferred income on government grants.
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

23 EMEE WX 23 EXPENSES BY NATURE

BE1+=-A=1+—BHLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—tF

—E—RF
2017 2016
ARET AREFIT

210

B R R B B am B B

Raw materials used and changes in

RMB'000

RMB'000

MTFEEE) inventories of finished goods and
work in progress 3,883,913 3,982,726
EERAAZ (KIFE25) Employee benefit expenses (Note 25) 291,167 265,192
BEEREERAN Advertising and promotion costs 122,250 222,729
B Transportation expenses 128,952 77,950
WENEHER Depreciation and amortisation charges
(Miz%6 ~ 7 K8) (Notes 6, 7 & 8) 98,855 91,334
NARMERX Utility costs 34,345 38,482
s R Machinery maintenance expenses 28,236 28,408
18 % M ANt Taxes and surcharges 29,084 27,824
KEHE Operating leases 20,736 20,147
=iRE Travel expenses 16,866 14,044
WA Office expenses 11,204 10,172
HEFE Entertainment fee 10,114 9,307
B 5 K H A FEUGRIE K& Provision for impairment of trade and
GFERERE other receivables and inventory 13,326 4,563
SN E Outsourcing fee 1,439 1,159
HAhF sz Other expenses 35,792 30,891
4,726,279 4,824,928
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24 Hfp(K#E) BE— F8E

BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

24 OTHER (GAINS)/LOSSES — NET

BEt+t-HA=1T—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—+F

—E—RF
2016
AREFIT
RMB’000

2017

ARBT T
RMB’000

HEWE - BER (Gains)/losses on disposal of property,

BAERE (R, BE — B8 plant and equipment, net (6,584) 23
B Donation 6,432 30,612
HE—RSEATIEARREWZ  Gain on disposal of partial shares in

ajoint venture - (4,534)

HEMRBAREER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - 8,053
At Others (5,247) 3,305
(5,399) 37,459

25 BERAFAEX

25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BEt-A=t—HLFE
Year ended 31 December

—E—+F —E—RF
2017 2016
AR¥BTT ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
IERFH® Wages and salaries 245,272 219,450
HeERERY Social security costs 45,695 43,343
BIR NS A EEE 2 Pre-IPO share award scheme-value of

— BT ARBEE(ME17) employee services (Note 17) 200 2,399
291,167 265,192

(@ EEESFMAL (@) Five highest paid individuals

HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE -
rEEHEERNAEEATARRES -
Hf & 25IRMEE34FTE D TA -

HE_Z—"F+ZA=1+—HEZ=ZZ
—+F+-A=+—HIFE  KEEH
BRI AR A T HERBE - 1E
BREMNBAEERNRMBEAEBEH
R A ERBERME -

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group are 5 directors, whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 34.

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2017, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest individuals as inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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HBHE-_T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

26 BAERA — FE 26 FINANCE EXPENSES — NET

BE1+=-A=1+—BHLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—E —E—REF

2017 2016
ARET AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B2 Finance expenses
— IRITERHF SR — Interest expense on bank borrowings 111,680 99,363
o BEREENERNLERE Less: amounts capitalised on
qualifying assets (5,407) (5,100)
7S B S st (B93E31) Total financial expenses (Notes 31) 106,273 94,263
BAFSURA - Finance income:
— SRITERBN B A (H5E31)  — Interest income on bank deposits
(Note 31) (7,321) (6,882)
— HEa B R A — Other finance income (797) (1,085)
(8,118) (7,967)
B 75 X AN 3 58 Net finance expenses 98,155 86,296
27 EE—REEQATRF 27 SHARE OF PROFIT OF A JOINT VENTURE

BEt+=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—tF
2017 2016
ARET AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEAE &= ) (FT5E 10) Share of profit (Note 10) 284 12,140
ESHRERRASEHER Movement of elimination of unrealised
RE R & E profits for sales from Nanpu to
the Group 432 (3,117)
716 9,023
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BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

FrEsimEx 28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BE+t=-A=1+t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—E —E—REF

2017 2016
AR®ET T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

& HIRT S H Current income tax 59,716 87,107

RIEFTIS A (3% 21) Deferred income tax (Note 21) (1,308) (3,016)

FifsfiFAx Income tax expense 58,408 84,091

(i) HASHSNESH (i) Ccayman Islands profits tax
AAREABMENRESHSAIHRT The Company is not subject to any taxation of
I8 o the Cayman Islands income tax.

(i) ABAEWMERERNEH (i) British Virgin Islands profits tax
BE(EBHRRHESEERRE)  £R The subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin
BHABRESEMK N E AT ER Islands under the International Business
RENEBHEBRFSFTE - Companies Acts of the British Virgin Islands is

exempted from payment of the British Virgin
Islands income tax.

(iii) BFABAFEH (iii) Hong Kong profits tax
BEBNET T HE G T FERTI U G2 16.5% Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at
B R ETHIR R o the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable

profits.

(iv) PEIEEREH (iv) PRC Corporate income tax
RIER BRI BERRAR - R BIEEMK The Corporate income tax (“CIT") is calculated
VHWBRARERE AT R - WHET based on the statutory profit of subsidiaries
BERRSORRAEROKZIEB E1T incorporated in the PRC in accordance with the
AEE FECEMSHILEERS PRC tax laws and regulations, after adjustments
Bl o BIB(REAREMBIDEMSH on certain income and expense items, which
F=) ([R¥EMBEZE]D  mARAENER are not assessable or deductible for income tax
RIS R ST — R 25% ° purposes. Pursuant to the PRC Corporate

Income Tax Law (“the CIT Law"), the CIT is
unified at 25% for all type of entities.
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

28 FiSHiBAR (&) 28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
(v) HEFEHAEHR (v) PRC withholding income tax
BIREZERETERFEBEARELEET D Pursuant to the CIT Law and tax treaty between
TRISIEAY - 72 B R B X 37 /O BB A B ) Mainland China and Hong Kong, a 5%
FATIRAIL S FEEUL 5% K TEFIFL withholding tax will be levied on the dividends
declared from the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the Mainland China to Hong Kong.

55 B 1 A1 PR R 0 B RS U
I P 4 35 48 3 i AR 0 I 2951
SHEORRSELT

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the weighted average tax rate applicable
to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

BEZE+t=-—A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—tF

—ETRF
2017 2016
AR®TRE ARKTE
RMB’'000 RMB'000

P85 Bl Al Profit before income tax 228,152 298,036

RARBEZOMERNER
BRFTEHBHIA

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable to profits in the

214

respective countries 55,263 74,292
e Adjusted by:
AR IE R B 2 Expenses not deductible for
tax purposes 1,278 7,333
RIERIELEN B L ERBIARTE Tax losses for which no deferred
tax asset was recognised 970 1,633
FERARERBELETRIAE E Utilisation of tax losses which was not
KR IE 5 18 recognised as deferred tax assets (3,686) (519)
AR B K BE IR M B & (R Withholding tax on the profits
S M TR0 attributable to the investors
outside of China Mainland 4,828 3,602
EREtE AR R —K&%Aa  Share of profits of associates and
B S B BB 12 a joint venture, which are not
subject to tax (245) (2,250)
B R Income tax expenses 58,408 84,091
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BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

29 ERER 29 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@) EX (a) Basic

BEt+t-A=1T—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—+F —ERF

2017 2016
NRERFE ARE R Net profit attributable to the equity
(AREFIT) holders of the Company (RMB’000) 159,975 204,834
BETEBERERELRRT Weighted average number of ordinary
B It B (FAR) shares in issue for basic earnings
per share (thousands) 2,205,970 2,078,326
FRERZH (ARES) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 7.25 9.86
BRERBRIIZARFERTEE AR Basic earnings per share is calculated by
MREAMBRUEBEE T —tF R T —~ dividing the net profit attributable to the
FH+_A=T—HIEFEEEHTLBER Company’s equity holders by the weighted
RO INEFIOEGTE - average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

29 BRERNE)

216

(b) #F

AAT T E ABERN

29

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted

BE+t=-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—+F —ERF

2017 2016

ARBTRE ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB'000

Net profits attributable to the equity

(AREETIT) holders of the Company (RMB’000) 159,975 204,834
BEITLBRERERZF Weighted average number of ordinary
B0 hnHE 19 B (FAR) shares in issue for basic earnings
per share (thousands) 2,205,970 2,078,326
KRBT RE AR (T %) Adjusted for share options (thousands) 5,597 10,114
BETEBERSREERT Weighted average number of ordinary
B NFE T8 (FAR) shares for diluted earnings per
share (thousands) 2,211,567 2,088,440
Fh#EERMN(ARES) Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 7.23 9.81

BREERNBRABAIEINEEY
BRI H AR - RIBE BT E BB INE
FHARHSEFE - ARRAIHENEEL A
P e EAREAE AR » SIOREARHE - RIBARTTRE
BREMMNABRENERER BT
AREBE(BESARRBRNNEAFE
mE) IBANRNDEE < R TG
BB E - BEKERETEMED
BITORMBB(EHLLR -

KIEERIZARAIRAT  Tenwow International Holdings Limited

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company's dilutive potential
ordinary shares comprised share options. For
the share options, a calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual market share price of the
company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with
the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share
options.
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BE
RZE-—LEtFEINHIBREAAREK
103,065000L( = & — X F: AR &
128,599,0007T) * BIEHE=ZZT—AF+=A
T+ —HALEFERARFIRES LZARYE
52,291,0007C (ZZE—RF : REAREFRRES
HARK78,088,0007T) * REE=—ZT—tF X
A=+ H1E}1E A+ 8RS A K% 50,774,000
T(ZT—NF : hERE AR®50,511,000
7T) o RENERITHIRRBEFAE £ - BERIK
BEARHRBE RSB ZTE—RF: K5
BB EAR0.57 Bl R FEFRIAR B &Rk 2.127%4L) -
& $£34,291,000 7% 7T (18 E 7 A K # 29,213,000
J0) (ZZF— /N4 : 59,348,000/8 7T * HHER A
R #51,907,0007T) © 7N B 75 ¥R 2= 0 oK R B 7% g
NARHBBRE -HE-_Z—+F+_-_A=+—H
LEFEEZREASEFRIBIN(ZE—R
&1 5.4058(0) -

BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

30 DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2017 were RMB103,065,000
(2016: RMB128,599,000), including final dividend and
special dividend totalling RMB52,291,000 (2016: final
dividend and special dividend totally RMB78,088,000)
in relation to the profits for the year ended 31
December 2016 and interim dividends amounting to
RMB50,774,000 (2016: interim dividend of
RMB50,511,000) in relation to the profits for the six
months ended 30 June 2017. A final dividend of
HK1.55 cents per share (2016: A special dividend of
HK2.12 cents per share in addition to a final dividend
of HKO0.57 cents per share), amounting to a total
dividend of HK$34,291,000 (equivalent to
RMB29,213,000) (2016: HK$59,348,000, equivalent to
RMB51,907,000), is to be proposed at the Company'’s
forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial
statements do not reflect this final dividend payable.
Total proposed dividend for the year ended 31
December 2017 is HK4.26 cents per share (2016:
HK5.40 cents).

BEt+t-HA=1T—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—+F

—TRF
2017 2016
ARBTRE ARETET
RMB’000 RMB'000

B HAAR B E AR A% 2.71 780l Interim dividend paid of HK2.71 cents

(ZZ—RF : §&R2.717840) (2016: HK2.71 cents)

per ordinary share 50,774 50,511
ORI B E R A 1.5578 Il Proposed final dividend of HK1.55 cents
(ZZ—"4F : FIR0.577810) (2016: HKO.57 cents)
per ordinary share 29,213 10,940
ERERIREZIRERAZ0.0078(l Proposed special dividend of
—E—NF B 2.127) HKO0.00 cents (2016: HK2.12 cents)
per ordinary share - 40,967
79,987 102,418
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

31 REREHR 31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) RETBELENES (@) cash generated from operations

BE+-A=1t—BLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—+F —E-RF

2017 2016
AR¥T ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
& B 1S A BT A Profit before income tax 228,152 298,036
KT Adjustments for:
— & (fi5x6) — Depreciation (Note 6) 94,805 90,301
— B (77 &% 8) — Amortisation (Notes 7 and 8) 6,159 5,687
— HEYE  BEMERE — (Gains)/losses on disposal of
(Wz), /B8 property, plant and equipment (6,584) 23
— HEMBAREE — Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
(B5E24) (Note 24) - 8,053
— HE—RELATIEMHAZHE  — Gain on disposal of partial shares
Yz (P 5 24) in a joint venture (Note 24) - (4,534)
— FLBUA (M 5E26) — Interest income (Note 26) (7,321) (6,882)
— R B (E26) — Interest expense (Note 26) 106,273 94,263
— EEEHERF R —REE — Share of profit of associates
NEIbi:l and a joint venture (979) (9,001)
— EWRIE R B R EEE — Provision for impairment of
(PfF5E23) receivables and inventory
(Note 23) 13,326 4,563
EEESED Change in working capital:
— FEEN — Increase in inventories (213,900) (33,674)
— B 5 K& H At fE W RRIBIE hn — Increase in trade and
other receivables (312,880) (271,752)
— B 5 REAERFRIBLE M — Increase in trade and
other payables 73,445 380,571

RTINS GRHE),/ RAFEEE  Cash (outflow)/inflow from
operating activities (19,504) 555,654

218 XEEEERARAT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited



B %% & MY A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT—+F+-A=+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

31 REREH @) 31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) FEBRLER (b) Net debt reconciliation
ANEHE T S EBERE BN FEE G This section sets out an analysis of net debt and
B AT o the movements in net debt for each of the

periods presented.

i

+=-—A=+—H

—E—+tF

As at

31 December

2017

AREFIT

Net debt RMB'000

Re MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 937,118
B — 1FREHES Borrowings — repayable within one year (2,184,031)
B — 1FEDHEE Borrowings — repayable after one year (548,383)
FARE Net debt (1,795,296)
He MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 937,118
BEE—EEFE Gross debt — fixed interest rates (2,072,439)
EEE — FEFIER Gross debt — variable interest rates (659,975)
FaE Net debt (1,795,296)

BEEHEE
HitEE Liabilities from
Other assets financing activities
ek 15R 15#
REZEN BHMER BfER

Cash  Borrowings  Borrowings
andcash  due within due after #ct
equivalents 1 year 1 year Total
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARET:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R=—Z—XE+=H=1+—-H Netdebtas at 31 December 2016

RaE 969,158 (2,024,650) (280,380) (1,335,872)
Bem Cash flows (23,937) (163,993) (284,660) (472,590)
INEGRR Foreign exchange adjustments (8,103) 4,612 16,657 13,166

R-Z—+%+=-H=+—H Netdebtas at 31 December 2017
BEE 937,118 (2,184,031) (548,383) (1,795,296)
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

32 E#® 32 COMMITMENTS
(@) BEARFEH (@) Capital commitments
REFEERBEINERKREENERFA Capital expenditure contracted for at each
3N balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as
follows:

BR+=-—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—+F —E-REF

2017 2016

ARBTRE ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB'000

THEFRE - W3 - BB &R Land use rights, property,

plant and equipment 285,586 203,745
(b) REBEERFL — AEENERES (b) Operating lease commitments — the
AEA Group'’s entities as lessee
REBRB A FGHEE SR EHEET - The Group lease buildings under non-
BIEZE A REESETHE - REBARK cancellable lease agreements. The Group’s
IEAERIBRELNT : future aggregate minimum lease payments

under these non-cancellable operating leases
were as follows:

BEt-A=t—HLFE
Year ended 31 December
—2—tF —T—RF

2017 2016

AR%T R ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

THBiE 1 F No later than 1 year 40,346 15,696
1E A EETHBIBESF Later than 1 year and no later

than 5 years 19,896 11,442

BB 5F Later than 5 years 1,327 3,279

61,569 30,417
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33 BBMALXRS
M—HBRNERIEEREFN S - KFEE
BRI REELMBEREERRRH ST
EIMEAZE RIS RGESE RS - &
7R ARES - AR BB RS o

BRARESEREIN UTRBE-_Z—RF
Bt FT-_A=tT—BUEFEAEEHE
HEAM TR —REEBRETAETEARSHN
BE  AERR-_Z-—REFR-F—+F+_-A
=+ BB R BELRER

(@) #E#KEEEKSNVER

i) EBRERR
MEERLE

(il =EEHSER
3N

al

(iii) FIEZERRERES

EBREARERAT]

(iv) FEENBELQT
LiBTEER

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

33 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party, has joint control over the party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operation decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to
common control.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the
following is a summary of the significant transactions
carried out between the Group and its related parties
in the ordinary course of business during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, and balances
arising from related party transactions as at 31
December 2016 and 2017.

(@) Name and relationship with related
parties
(i) Controlling Shareholder
Mr. Lin Jianhua

(ii) Joint venture of the Group
Nanpu

(iii) Controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder

Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd.

(iv) Associates of the Group
Shanghai Daoxiangcun
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HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

33 BHMARS (®) 33 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(b) EABEGETHRZWT : (b) The following transactions were
carried out with related parties:
(i) SHEEFERERSE (i) Sales of goods and services

BE+-A=1t—BLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—+F —E-RF

2017 2016
AR%T R ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
HEMm Sales of goods:
— A — Nanpu 369,549 1,110,557
— b BRBRERAERAR — Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. 21 31
369,570 1,110,588
RIEE R Provision of warehousing services:
— A — Nanpu - 4,043
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BHE-_T—+tHF+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

B AR5 (&) 33 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(b) BEABEGTETHRZWMT : (&) (b) The following transactions were
carried out with related parties:
(Continued)
(iiy BEERRRE (ii) Purchases of goods and services

BEt+t-HA=1T—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—+F —E—RF

2017 2016
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
BEMMm Purchase of goods:
— A — Nanpu 897,305 997,328
— LBREEN — Shanghai Daoxiangcun 100 =
— EBRBERABRAT — Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. - 2
897,405 997,330
BEXERERR Receipts of warehousing and
logistics services:
— MEESL A — Mr. Lin Jianhua 840 840
LB ETHNEER 5 IR The above sale and purchase transactions
BRI BRI BRI EBET with related parties are carried out based

on mutually agreed prices between
respective parties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

33 BBALRE (H) 33

() EAmLA&ARR

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(c) Balances with related parties

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—+F —E—RF

2017 2016
AR¥BTRT ARETE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
() BHREKGIE : (i) Trade receivables:
— A — Nanpu 347,079 587,781
— EBRBEERERAT — Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. 132 13
347,211 587,794
(i) EAbFEUFRIR (i) Other receivables:
— M — Nanpu 27,370 12,532
(iv) B S ERFIA - (ili) Trade payables:
— MR — Nanpu 125,726 95,378
— BB — Shanghai Daoxiangcun 117 =
125,843 95,378
(iv) E At ERTFRIR - (iv) Other payables:
— FH — Nanpu 1,463 3,301

Ht BB T AEREARE S
677 ST VRIS o LAl RE S RA R O BRIA
ZIERB T RAKB AR -

224 FREEERARAT e Tenwow International Holdings Limited

Other receivables from related parties mainly
represented the expense paid by the Group on behalf
of the related parties. Other payables to related
parties mainly represented the expenses paid by the
related parties on behalf of the Group.
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33 BHMARS (B 33 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d) TEEBEASHM (d) Key management compensation
TEEBAESEESE (H1TRIEHNTT) Key management includes Directors (executive
LERERRE - EERBEN MERE and non-executive) and senior management.
EEEAEWNEMER TR ¢ The compensation paid or payable to key

management for employee services is shown
below:

R+=A=+-H
As at 31 December
—E—+F —ERF

2017 2016

ARBTRE ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB'000

ITERHMEERF Salaries and other employee benefits 6,026 5,099
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34 EETARA= 34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS
(a) ESF=2 (a) Directors emoluments
BE_Z—t+Ft+-_A=+—HItEE - The remuneration of each director of the
KEBEN, BNAAREEZNFHE Company paid/payable by the Group for year
FgAR ended 31 December 2017 are set out as follows:
EEHE Name of Director

BRAH

REMRHA

HETE

Pre-IPO

Hit @R share

e A Other award @t
Salary Bonus benefits scheme Total

ARBTR AR®TR ARETRT AREMTR AR®TR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

HTES Executive Directors

MRELE() Mr.Lin Jianhua () 2,398 - - - 2,398
BEE e Mr. Yeung Yue Ming 575 - - 38 613
& A ) Mr. Lin Qi i) 497 - 73 - 570
MEE A Mr. Lam Hang Boris 902 - 62 9% 1,060
BEELL Ms. Au Lai Hang 795 - - 38 833
FYITES Non-executive Directors

BI815% 4 (i) Mr. Liu Zhao iii) - - - - -
BR S A (i) Mr. Yan Zhixiong (ii) - - - - -
BUFHTES Independent non-executive Directors

2Rt Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong 260 - - - 260
FEREAE Mr. Wang Longgen 260 - _ _ 260
REERE Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren 260 - - - 260
AREAE Mr. Shen Yalong 260 - - - 260

6,207 - 135 172 6,514
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

34 ESEANRF=E (&) 34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a) EEHFH2 (B (a) Directors emoluments (Continued)
BE_Z—FFt+-_A=+—HItEE - The remuneration of each director of the
AREFEN, BNARARSEENHFME company paid/payable by the Group for year
FgAR ended 31 December 2016 are set out as follows:
EEHE Name of Director

PN
REMRY
KRt
Pre-IPO

HiigH share
e e Other award 2R
Salary Bonus benefits scheme Total
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HTES Executive Directors

MEELA() Mr. Lin Jianhua (i) 1,633 - 16 - 1,649

BB L s Mr. Yeung Yue Ming 49 - 12 38 546

FEELE() Mr. Wang Juewei (i 480 - 69 38 587

WELE Mr. Lam Hang Boris 935 - 16 9% 1,047

EEELL Ms. AU Lai Hang 773 - 16 38 827

FHATES Non-executive Director

211 % A (i) Mr. Liu Zhao (i) = = = = =

BYFHTES Independent non-executive Directors

AL REAE Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong 260 - - - 260

FHEREAE Mr. Wang Longgen 260 - - - 260

REERE Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren 260 = = = 260
5097 - 129 210 5436
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HBHE-_T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

34 EERARAE @)

(a)

(b)

()

BEsHe (@)

0] ZEFEAKEREERLEREREFEER
REFMEBLWBEE  EhEoE2RER
ARRRENRB AR AR ZEERRE
8 AN ) ) % ) B Bk 73 BT 4 4 R 765 TS A e B e
&5 - WA ELERED

(ii) FHBRAEER T —tF=A-F+-HEE
ARRMTEE - MFEER T —LF=
AT —HEZEANITES -

iy BE-Z—tF+-_A=t—HBR=-ZT—X
FH+_A=1+-—BLFE BEFHIMHT
HHNITES -

HE_T—+F+A=+—HRZ=Z
—RNEFTA=+—BILFE HEES
BASBEWRERME - EREEMER
SEIANMBAKRERN RS HIFESBE
BE - WEEEWENXFBREEAH

ESERAKER
MECFNEEAEBEEARAHEN
&R 5 E R R H AL RS 2 3k
FEMHEMEARBR(ZF—RF : &) -

ESBRBARIER

REABERIEAMRLERTHIRULEES
AR 7% T [7) 2 28 SN AR ] 9 SRk B2 A2 1A
BAEREE(ZZ—RE &) -

228 FREEERARAT e Tenwow International Holdings Limited

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Directors emoluments (Continued)

(i) The director received emoluments from both the
Group and the related parties, Nanpu and Shanghai
Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd., part of which are in
relation to their services to the Company. No
apportionment has been made in respect of
emoluments from related parties as the director
considers that it is impractical to apportion the amount
between his services to the Company and his service
to the related parties.

(if) Mr. Wang Juewei resigned as executive Director of the
Company with effect from 22 March 2017. Mr. Lin Qi
was appointed as executive Director on 22 March
2017.

(ifi) No emolument was paid to non-executive Director for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, no directors received emoluments from
the Group as inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
No directors waived or had agreed to waive any
emoluments.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or
receivable by any directors in respect of their
other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking (2016: Nil).

Directors’ termination payments or
benefits

No payment was made or benefit provided to
directors as compensation for the early
termination of the appointment or in respect of
termination of the services of directors during
the year (2016: Nil).
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34 EEEARME )

(d) RECSESERBEMAF=FINKE

BESEBIMEAREARESRIEH
HEEBE M M EME =7 ek
MNHRBA(ZE—RE &) -

() FHBFNRESE BHAMESZGHN
FEREEARENESRNEN - £
EXRREMZZNER

REAR - BHEBFNNES HERESE
HlEEAE R EEBRENERNER &
ERREMZ S (ZT—RF : |&) -

() FHESRXE  REFGHPHE
RiEsm

ARRAGEILARRREZRETE
EARMBEEEERESMNFRINF
RERERDATFEENEE XK AR
MEARS  ZHRAKN(ZT—RF:
&) e

35 FHAREE

RZE—RF+_A=+—BRk_-_ZT—+tF
+ZA=+—8  AEENEEHEEFED
Bl A AR 991,000 7T & A R ¥ 873,000 L &
T fERAER AEEARERREBFZS T
FREFRESTEL MARZKETNEE
AT DA MG E - WL ERER S M B HE
REL B -

HE-_T—tHF+-A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)
(d) Consideration provided to third

(e)

(f)

parties for making available directors’
services

No consideration was provided to or receivable
by any third party for making available the
services of a person as a director of a company,
or in any other capacity while as a director
(2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors during the year (2016: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year
(2016: Nil).

35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016 and 2017, the Group is still in
the process of renewing certificates for certain land
use rights with net book value amounting to
RMB991,000 and RMB873,000 respectively. The Group
might incur certain obligations in connection with
such application of land use right certificates, while
since the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability, no provision was
made in the consolidated financial statements.
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

36 ARRAEERBERKREES

R+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—+F —F—RF
2017 2016
ARET T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
R—KHBRARIMKE Investments in a subsidiary 572,312 572,312
BLEENELES = & Loan to subsidiaries 1,323,127 1,520,297
1,895,439 2,092,609
REEE Current assets
m—EMREATNER Loan to a subsidiary 231,516 265,854
E e kIR Other receivables 16 38
ReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 193 515
231,725 266,457
EEHAE Total assets 2,127,164 2,359,066
R EQUITY
A% Share capital 176,448 176,448
B A5 (B Share premium 1,190,822 1,293,887
B Other reserves () 633,550 745,946
IREB A Retained earnings (a) 80,660 84,732
A Total equity 2,081,480 2,301,013
REEE Current liabilities
RN EPNGIE R Amount due to subsidiaries 45,684 58,053
EEHE Total liabilities 45,684 58,053
Bz EERAHE Total equity and liabilities 2,127,164 2,359,066

AEERBERCAHEZTER - \F=H
“to AR URREFERE -

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by
the Board of Directors on 22 March 2018 and was
signed on its behalf.

2 EFE
Director Director
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

36 APREEABRRHFERS (@ 36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(a) EATFEEE (a) Reserve movement of the Company

Rttt
Other Reserves
HRAR
HERE BRI A
513 RREGHE

REEH KA Ccurrency Pre-IPO
Retained Capital translation share award FH)
earnings reserve reserve scheme Total
ARBTT ARETT AR%ETT AREBTR ARETE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R=E-~E-A—H At 1 January 2016 (36,623) 572,312 70,200 5,902 643414
(U CHE Employee share options scheme - - - 2,399 2,399
FEEA Profit for the year 121,355 - - _ _
IEHEER Currency translation differences = = 95,133 = 95,133
R=Z-x%+=-A=1-H At31December 2016 84,732 572,312 165,333 8,301 745,946
RZZE-+E-A-H At 1 January 2017 84,732 572,312 165,333 8,301 745,946
EERETE Employee share options scheme - - - 200 200
FEEE Loss for the year (4,072) - - - -
NEFEES Currency translation differences - - (112,59) - (112,59)
R=Z—-t&%+=-HA=+-H At31December 2017 80,660 572,312 52,737 8,501 633,550
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37 FEMBATFHE 37 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES
N_E—+EFER_TE—RF+_A=+—8H - Particulars of the principal subsidiaries comprising the
AREFEBRTTIEWBATZEBOT Group as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 are as
follows:
FREREREDL
Effective interests held %
B4/ EMER
LR AR L (F7) ZB—tF ZTRF
X/t Registered +—A=+-H +=A=1+—H
ARER Country/place capital/ 31 December  31December FEEXK
Company hame of incorporation paid up ('000) 2017 2016 Principal activities
EREA
Directly Owned:
FHBRATF REBEREHE - 100 100 RELERESHEER
Praise Sheen Limited BVI - 100 100 Investment holding in BVI
RIEHE
Indirectly Owned:
BRABRERERAR (BERAR) &F 68,0007 7T 100 100 EABDHRMAKHAREZE
Nanpu International Limited HK HK$68,000 100 100  Distribution of food and beverages
(Hong Kong Company) and Investment in HK
EBRERR (EB)ARARF HE 990,000/ 7T 100 100 EREEEER SRR EE
Shanghai Tenwow Foods (Group) ~ PRC HK$990,000 100 100  Manufacturing and distribution of
Co., Ltd. food and beverages in PRC
B8 FaRMBERAR HE ARE 65.7 657 EREIEEER S HR mERE
25,0007T
Shanghai Dingshang Packing PRC RMB25,000 65.7 65.7  Manufacturing and distribution of
Material Co., Ltd. food and beverages in PRC
EERBERRRARAR HE ARE 52.5 525 TEREEER S HEEYE
2,0007C
Shanghai Tenwow Paper Products ~ PRC RMB2,000 52.5 525  Manufacturing and distribution of
Co., Ltd. packing materials in PRC
A EEEXERAR HE ARE 100 100 EFEETRRESKHES
50,0007T
Shenzhen Nanpu Industrial Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000 100 100  Trading of food and beverages
in PRC
REMRAERMABREEAHA HE ARE 100 100 EREEEER SRR EE
76,0007T
Wuhan Nanpu Co., Ltd. PRC RMB76,000 100 100  Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC
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37 EENEBARFE®) 37 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FRERERB AL
Effective interests held %
B&/EmER
EEailigo A (F7) i 2l i3 —T—F
R/ ih2 Registered +—A=+-A +=A=1+—8H
NGRS Country/place capital/ 31 December  31December FEEXK
Company hame of incorporation paid up ('000) 2017 2016  Principal activities
FERBRBEEERAR HE AR 95 95 fEREIREE RS HR AR
1,0007T
Shanghai Tenwow Food PRC RMB1,000 95 95 Manufacturing and distribution of
Production Co., Ltd. food and beverages in PRC
FERRERRBERAR HE AR 65.5 655 TEREIREER S HE mESRE
13,000 7T
Shanghai Mornflake Food Co., Ltd.  PRC RMB13,000 65.5 655  Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC

RE(REH)RABBRAR HE AR 100 100 EREEEER SR M EE
30,0007T
Tenwow (Inner Mongolia) PRC RMB30,000 100 100 Manufacturing and distribution of
Food Co., Ltd. food and beverages in PRC
RE(BE)RMBRAF HE AR 100 100 EREEEER SR M EHE
100,000 7T
Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB100,000 100 100  Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC

EEERBBERAR HE AR 51 51  fEREREE RS HR AR
12,0007
Shanghai Royal Winery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB12,000 51 51 Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC

BERERERHERAR HE AR 100 100 EREEEER SR M EE
15,000 7T
Fujian Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd. PRC RMB15,000 100 100  Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC

EBRBEEXERAT HE AR 100 100 EREETRAEKHES
130,000 7T
Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and PRC RMB130,000 100 100  Trading of food and beverages
Spirits Co., Ltd. in PRC
EB)IMANRRERAR HE AR 75 75 EREREE RS HR AR
1,350 7T
Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring ~ PRC RMB1,350 75 75  Manufacturing and distribution of
and Food Co., Ltd. food and beverages in PRC
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37 EENBARFE &) 37 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FRERERE I
Effective interests held %
B&/EmER
EEailifo A (F7x) —E—+tF ZEREF
EEYS: L] Registered +=—A=+-A +=A=1+—H
INCIES Country/place capital/ 31 December  31December FEEXK
Company hame of incorporation paid up ('000) 2017 2016  Principal activities
EBIERRERAR HE ARKS007T 75 75 EREREE RS HR AR
Shanghai Chuanxiang Food Factory PRC RMB800 75 75 Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC

FBERBEBRAT HE AR 100 100 EREETRAEKHES
10,000 7T
Shanghai Royal Wines and Spirits ~ PRC RMB10,000 100 100  Trading of food and beverages
Co., Ltd. inPRC
ERMRREEHEERAA FE AR 100 100 EREETRAEKHES
25,0007T
Ningbo Contemporary Trading PRC RMB25,000 100 100  Trading of food and beverages
Co., Ltd. inPRC
MMREBEEBRAE HE AR 60 60 HEFEETRRELHES
15,000 7T
Hangzhou Lin's Wines and Spirits ~ PRC RMB15,000 60 60  Trading of food and beverages
Co., Ltd. inPRC
FBERBEBRAT HE AR 100 100 EREETRAESKHES
120,000 7T
Shanghai Huasheng Wines and PRC RMB120,000 100 100  Trading of food and beverages
Spirits Co., Ltd. in PRC
BHS FREMHERAF FE AR 725 725 ERBEEERDHR mERK
5,0007C
Putian Dingshang Packing PRC RMB5,000 72.5 725  Manufacturing and distribution of
Material Co., Ltd. food and beverages in PRC
RE(RE)RRABRAR HE AR 100 100 EREEEER SR R ERE
220,0007T
Tenwow (Wuhan) Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB220,000 100 100  Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC

EERBERERRERAR HE AR 100 100 EREEEER SR R EE
80,0007T
Shanghai Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB80,000 100 100  Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC
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PGS
Company name

RERERERHERAH

Wuhan Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd.

EEMAERMBRAH

Tenwow (Chongging) Food Co., Ltd.

ELMERRGERETRR
Xiangyang Nanpu Co., Ltd.

RE (KRB RAERAH

Tenwow (Chengdu) Food Co., Ltd.

BRERABEZBRAF

Fujian Tenwow Shiye Co., Ltd.

RE(RR)RBERAH

Tenwow (Tianjin) Food Co., Ltd.

REZEYRER R

Changxinxian Jinshaquan Co., Ltd.

ARREHERERAR
Nanpu Fine Wine&Spirits
International Company Limited

AERERmEBRER AR
Tenwow Beverage International
Company Limited

AL
GV E

Country/place
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37 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

BA/EREXR

(F7)
Registered
capital/

of incorporation paid up ('000)

hE

PRC

P
PRC

P
PRC

hE

PRC

hE

PRC

hE

PRC

&
HK

&
HK

AR¥
15,0007T
RMB15,000

AR¥
10,0007T
RMB10,000

AR 5007T
RMB500

31,800 7T
US$31,800

ARE
200,0007¢
RMB200,000

ARE
10,0007T
RMB10,000

ARE
104,3007TC
RMB104,300

20,0007 7T
HK$20,000

07T
HK$10

FFEBERE ST
Effective interests held %
—E-tF —T—RNE
+=A=+—-H +=RA=+-—-H
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
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TEER
Principal activities

R BIBE R D R B

Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

TR BIBUE N 2 R f BN

Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

EHEETRRERHES
Trading of food and beverages
in PRC

TERBIRE R 2 R mE AR
Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

EREETRAESHES

Trading of food and beverages
in PRC

R BIBE R D R B

Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

R BIBE R D R B

Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

ABEBENTRRERNES
Trading of food and beverages
in HK

EEBETRMESHES

Trading of food and beverages
in HK
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37 EENBARFE®) 37 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FRERERE I
Effective interests held %
B&/EmER
EEailifo A (F7x) —E—+tF ZEREF
EEYS: L] Registered +=—A=+-A +=A=1+—H
INCIES Country/place capital/ 31 December  31December FEEXK
Company hame of incorporation paid up ('000) 2017 2016  Principal activities
RERMEE (L) EHEARA HE AR 100 100 EREETRAESKHES
200,0007C
Tenwow Food Group (Shanghai) PRC RMB200,000 100 100  Distribution of food and
Sale Co., Ltd. beverages in PRC
FRERBR TSR AR A A HE AR 100 100 EREEEER SR R EE
50,0007C
Chengdu Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB50,000 100 100  Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC

AE(KXR)RRERAR FE ARE 100 100 HEFEETRHEHHES
13,000 7T
Tenwow (Tai Yuan) Food Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB13,000 100 100  Distribution of food and

beverages in PRC

ABREMRHER AR AR BB ARE 70 70 HERBENTRRERHES
16,667 7T
Redew Bio-Technology HK RMB16,667 70 70  Trading of food and beverages
International Co., Ltd. in HK
ERTBRENREERAR HE AR 100 100 EREETRAESKHES
3,0007C
Shanghai Redew Bio-Technology ~ PRC RMB3,000 100 100  Distribution of food and
Co., Ltd. beverages in PRC
REMEHEAKERAT HE ARE 100 100 EREEEER SR R EE
13,050 7T
Changxing Meilin Drinks Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB13,050 100 100  Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC

HERASRARAT GE! ARH 100 100 ERERTRRESHES
20,0007
Shanghai Tianao beverages Co., Ltd. PRC RMB20,000 100 100  Trading of food and beverages
in PRC
BARE AR Es I B2 A The English names of the PRC companies referred to
WaEFTie RN E X Z AT IE Y ISR AF above in this Note represent management’s best
NZ B RERE - efforts in translating the Chinese names of those
companies as no English names have been registered
or available.
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BB R
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

BZ2+-A=t-HILEE
Year ended 31 December
Bt —E—f —T-hHF _—T-NF —ZT-=F

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
AR®TR ARBTT ARRTT ARETT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

A Revenue 5,018,430 5,218,649 4,908,022 5,084,012 4,724,888
HEMAR Cost of sales (4,109,461) (4,200,411) (3,992,520) (4,230,150) (3,988,435)
E Gross profit 908,969 1,018,238 915,502 853,862 736,453
DA Distribution costs (414,501) (439,154) (251,990) (211,439) (156,411)
THEY Administrative expenses (202,317) (185,363) (172,148 (143,046) (140,300)
HiolgA Other income 27,778 19,069 52,141 19,469 23,139
EiblUizs /(E18) — %% Other gains/(losses) — net 5,399 (37,459) 842 (2,314) (8,556)
MERH Operating profit 325,328 375,331 544,347 516,532 454,325
BB Finance income 8,118 7.967 15,090 20,931 8,871
A Finance expenses (106,273) (94,263) (99,039) (96,635) (91,334)
AR — 3 Finance expenses — net (98,155) (86,296) (83,949) (75,704) (82,463)
il ANyl Share of profit of associates 263 22) 3 514 565
JEIE—FIASDaEM  Share of profit of a joint venture 716 9,023 32,083 29,736 30,459
KA R AIER Profit before income tax 228,152 298,036 492,484 471,078 402,886
Fr&fiBx Income tax expense (58,408) (84,091) (126,176) (113,797) (105,501)
FEER Profit for the year 169,744 213,945 366,308 357,281 297,385
Hitt2EBA Other comprehensive income
HiEngegEnizs ltems that may be subsequently
BRHEE reclassified to profit or loss
—NENEER — Currency translation differences (23,647) 3,238 1,198 (1,783) (11,927)
FEGAERABE Total comprehensive income
for the year 146,097 217,183 367,506 355,498 285,458
FERNBER Total profit attributable to:
ARAEZEEA Equity holders of the Company 159,975 204,834 350,809 345,335 286,304
IR Non-controlling interests 9,769 9,111 15,499 11,946 11,081
169,744 213,945 366,308 357,281 297,385
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Year ended 31 December
T TR —T-mE —T-=F%
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
AR%ET ARETT AREFT ARETTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

—E—tfF

BEBARBR . Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
AREEEREA Equity holders of the Company 136,610 207,883 352,007 343,552 274,377
b % Non-controlling interests 9,487 9,295 15,499 11,946 11,081
146,097 217,183 367,506 355,498 285,458
AATERBEAEL  Earnings per share for
BRHERERN profit attributable to
equity holders of the
Company
—HEARREEERAR  —Basicand diluted earnings
(AERARES per share (expressed in
BIIER) RMB cents per share) 7 10 17 17 17
KE Dividends 79,987 102,418 122,783 103,601 242 891
mEEEHAE CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R+=B=+-H
As at 31 December
B2t T TR C—T-NmE —T-=F%
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ARETR ARETRT ARETT AR®ETT ARETRH
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ErBLERTE Total non-current assets 1,752,265 1,714,879 1,659,219 1,343,851 1,024,842
BB ERTE Total current assets 6,206,837 5,708,752 4,623,948 4,221,023 3,854,820
BEE Total assets 7,959,102 7,423,631 6,283,167 5,564,874 4,879,662
FrRBaEes Total non-current liailities 597,702 327,478 406,712 95,366 125,391
BB EEE Total current liabilities 4,077,003 3,845,331 2,976,837 2,835,582 2,347,229
BEEHE Total liabilities 4,674,705 4,172,809 3,383,599 2,930,948 2.472,620
BRE%E Total equity 3,284,397 3,250,822 2,899,568 2,633,926 2,407,042
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